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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief
the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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"CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

IRHES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of Directors (the
“Directors”) of National Arts Entertainment and Culture
Group Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
to you the 2017 annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”).

Entertainment culture has always been the core values of
the Group’s business. To promote the Greater China
entertainment culture, the Group has actively developed
the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio (the “Studio”) and
National Arts Resort Hotel (the “Hotel”) (collectively the
“Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project”).

With the aim of developing the Xigiao National Arts Film
Studio Project as an integrated industry hub featuring film
creation and production, technical research and
development, copyright trading, product demonstration,
talent nurturing, film tourism, etc., in 2017, the Group and
Guangdong Hongtu Guangdian Investment Co., Ltd.
(E®LBEEETHREBR A A]) entered into a subscription
agreement in relation to a capital injection into Foshan
Guohao Theme Park Management Company Limited
(FILTMERZSEEEERAF) (the “Guohao Theme
Park”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. As the
second phase of development of the Studio, the Guohao
Theme Park is planned to have a total of 6 indoor studios
and 2 boutique hotels to be constructed, which, in
combination with existing outdoor shooting sites, shall fully
satisfy shooting crews with different requirements and
become the grandest film studio in South China.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETLETERAT

HERRE:

AANEBRERBRBRECEBARQE ([RAAF])
Ex(8)g((EFg)) MAREZARARE
MEAR (MR AKE) 2 —F—FFEHE -

REX L —BERASENZOLEBRER REH
RPERE AEERBERAKLUEEY
B ([FAW]) REEERAERE ((ZBEE] G
MWIAELEEZREIER D -

RTRERLUEZEZRBAERITEKNSKET A
TEEE - RATATE - IRER 5 - KRR - AA 5T
B PRREEN -—BONEXRSETH -R_FT—+
FAKECEERLEBEEREAR QAR
TREALDBZ SRAARARZEZENET AR
BUTEERSREEEARARA(EERR])E
B RRYORREN_HBEA RERIHZ
AANBEABEZBEMEB @G E - ERRE
FHEGHEERE mE22mEmedTEFERY
Bl - AT RARBOZHREM -



Chairman’s Statement £ EiR%& =

In addition, as an extension of the Xigiao National Arts
Film Studio Project, the Group seeks to add international
cooperation to its investments in China and steer the
Group toward the global stage.

In addition to the development of Xigiao National Arts
Studio Project, the Group also continued its development
of the film studio business in Hong Kong. During 2016,
the Group invested in the production of a charity film
named “Our Days in 6E” (“FEI6EIL”), which was
released in the cinema in 2017. While promoting a
harmonious sentiment in our society through the film, the
Group will donate all box office proceeds from the film,
after deducting relevant costs, to charity organizations to
help the ethnic minorities and the underprivileged in Hong
Kong, making a contribution to our society.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude to the
Company’s shareholders for their continuing support and
the Board members and staff for their dedication and
contributions. The Group will further strengthen its core
businesses and explore potential business opportunities
relating to its entertainment and culture business to
create long-term value for shareholders.

Thank you for your support.

Sin Kwok Lam
Chairman and Non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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V ANAGEMNT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBE RO

BUSINESS REVIEW

Xigiao National Arts Studio Project

Located in Foshan city, Guangdong province, the Group’s
Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project has a total
developed land area of 444,000 square meters and is a
unique studio which incorporates tourism and recreational
facilities such as film shooting areas, theme parks, hotel
and performing arts complexes.

During the year under review, Xigiao National Arts Film
Studio successfully organised a number of events,
including “Lunar New Year Celebration and Snow
Paradise Event”, “Dreamy Windmill Festival 2017”,
“Students Study Tour”, “Candy Kingdom” and “Christmas
Carnival”. The number of visitors for “Candy Kingdom”
and “Lunar New Year Celebration and Snow Paradise
Event” were approximately 340,000 and approximately
220,000 respectively.

During the summer holiday of 2017, the Studio
cooperated with a company to organize the “Candy
Kingdom” (# &£ £ B), an event featuring the world-

renowned game “Candy Crush Saga”. The event
integrated entertainment and educational activities
including music concert, booth games, girls class,

exhibition and family candy fun workshop, successfully
attracted a lot of parents and children.
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Management Discussion And Analysis & 12 J& 51 3 & £ 41

In November 2017, the Group renewed a sales
partnership agreement with a PRC company in relation to
the sales of tickets of the Studio. Pursuant to the sales
partnership agreement, the PRC company is appointed as
an exclusive agent to sell the Studio’s tickets in the PRC,
and undertakes that the sales and distribution of the
Studio’s tickets will be at least 1 million per year. It will
effectively stabilize the Group’s revenue. Other than the
sales partnership agreement, the Group’s wholly-owned
travel agency company namely “National Arts Travel
Limited” has been established and commenced its
business in the year 2016.

The Group believes that the events held and the
agreements entered into by the Group will effectively
improve the brand awareness of the Studio and will push
the Xigiao National Arts Film Studio Project to the peak.

Film Shooting Base

The film shooting base is the core project of the Xigiao
National Arts Film Studio Project. It covers 374,000
square meters of land, including a lake of 120,000 square
meters and numbers of indoor and outdoor studios which
are equipped with the most excellent and comprehensive
ancillary facilities in order to provide the Southern China
and foreign shooting crews the most realistic and delicate
scenes.

By virtue of the extensive choices, supreme geographical
location and multifunctional ancillary services, the shooting
base has been heavily used by the production crews.
During the year of 2017, over 90 production crews filmed
in the shooting base.
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Management Discussion And Analysis % 12

During 2017, the Group has entered into several rental
agreement, taking the role of rental agent, with a number
of companies renting film shooting equipment. The
partners provided the plentiful props, attires and high-tech
shooting equipment including lots of ancient costumes of
Ming and Qing dynasties, antique furniture, simulated
ordnance and other performing props. It is believed that it
will bring substantial gain to the Group. Besides creating
enormous synergistic effect for the Group, it will enhance
the Group’s capability of provision of ancillary services in
respect of film shooting, and also facilitate centralization
of the industry as well as strengthen our competiveness
among the peers.

On 4 January 2018, Foshan Bureau of Culture,
Publication, Radio, Film and Television (the “Bureau”)
approved a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company to
assist the Bureau in the operation and expansion that
would facilitate film enterprises from various regions
moving into Foshan, policy presentation, solicitation of
investment and funding as well as shooting, etc.;
expansion of digital studios; expansion in respect of
diversification of props and equipment portfolio, leasing
and consolidation of props leasing business.

The Group is the first enterprise designated by the
Foshan Government to help building Foshan as the
largest hub for props and equipment in Foshan, with
focus on film and television industry, which boosted the
reputation of the Group in the industry, thereby further
consolidating the presence of the Xigiao National Arts Film
Studio in the film and television industry in Southern
China.
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Wedding Photography

The Group reached an agreement with a renowned
domestic wedding photography chain group in the fourth
quarter of 2013 to develop its new wedding photography
business. Through which, the Group leased the Studio
with an area of approximately 20 mu (13,333.33 square
meters) for a term of 12 years and the wedding
photography company invested RMB10 million for the
construction of scenic spots in different styles such as
European, Korean and Japanese styles and guarantee
there will be at least 28,800 couples taking wedding
photos in the scenic spots per year. The annual income
of this arrangement will be no less than approximately
RMB1.2 million starting from 2016.

In addition, the Group is negotiating with several jeweler,
Chinese and western bakery, Chinese style wedding gown
and wedding planning company in order to provide one-
stop service for wedding couples. The Studio is expected
to become a comprehensive wedding hot spot.

Hotel

The 5-star Hotel located next to the Studio has been
officially commenced its operation in November 2015. The
Hotel provides 350 suites facilitated from deluxe suites to
economic standard rooms. In addition, the Hotel is
equipped with a variety of recreational facilities such as
SPA, modern swimming pool and chess room. Apart from
the recreation, the Hotel also provides commercial
services such as business centre, meeting rooms and
lecture halls.

With the development of the Hotel and the Studio
becoming mature and its popularity having increased, the
number of tourists continuously grows, the Group will
introduce additional facilities such as beauty service,
barbecue facilities and other recreational facilities. And for
the catering, it will provide more dining options and
maintain high quality of food and services.
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At the 17th Golden Horse Awards of China Hotel, the
Hotel was awarded “The Most Distinctive Resort Hotel of
China in 2016-2017”. Widely accepted as the “Oscar” for
the hotel industry in China, the prestigious and
authoritative industry award rationalized and concluded
the overall development situation of the hotel industry in
China and recognized the corporate management quality
and service quality of the Group.

Film Production

Entertainment culture is the core value of the Group’s
business. The Group is committed to produce and
investing in movie and online TV programme to promote
the culture and the spirit of entertaining.

The movies invested by the Group, “lp Man — The Final
Fight” (3 — #4& — &) was selected as the opening
film of the “Hong Kong International Film Festival” in
2013, and was selected as the recommended film in the
“20th Hong Kong Film Critics Society Award”. And
“Golden Brother” (55 ARG A] LA g8) also won the best small
and medium cost film award in China Image Film Festival.
These achievements are really encouraging.

During 2016, the Group invested in the production of a
charity film named “Our Days in 6E” (“F&{fIHIBEHL"),
which was released in various major cinemas on
21 September 2017. The theme of “Our Days in 6E” is in
line with the current social status, laden with educational
significance. It was well-received in schools and relevant
institutions, raising concern and resonance in different
levels of our society.

In the 2017 Profima International Film Fest & Awards,
“Our Days in 6E” was shortlisted in “Best New Director
Award” and Shirley Chan (B fiX ) was a finalist in “Most
Promising Actor Award”. The film was nominated in “Best
Debut Work of Director” in the “Marianas International
Film Festival” as well. While it failed to scoop any award,
the nomination was a recognition for a Hong Kong film.
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Cinema

National Arts Films Production Limited (“NA Films”), an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
collaborated with its joint venture for the development of
cinema business in a large shopping mall in a
transportation hub area of Zhuhai, Guangdong, the PRC.

NA Films held 60% equity interest in the joint venture. The
cinema boasts eight screens and a total of more than
730 seats, and have commenced its operation since May
2014 which supports further comprehensive development
of the Group’s entertainment and culture business.

Artiste Management

To enhance the popularity of the Group’s artists such as
Rose Chan, Brian Yuen, Rachel Chau and Lemon Yip, the
Group has arranged a variety of performance
opportunities including the participation in the charity
movie, “Our Days in 6E” (¥ {PHI6EFE), the online TV
series “OCTB” (& /&), brand representative, dramas and
being the show host of the Lunar New Year Celebration
and guest performers for the “Dazzling Night in Shanghai”
gala (B k&R £8).

Besides, the Group also explores the PRC market for its
artists and makes arrangement for them to participate in
live reality show and online drama to enhance their
popularity.

With the huge market of domestic movies, the Group will
continue to recruit artists with potential in the future to
cope with the demands in the vast market and expand
the artiste management segment, hoping that it will
become one of the major income sources of the Group.
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FUTURE PROSPECT AR e

Market Trends mizE s

According to the statistics published by The People’s BRBEMINAARBRIAHGHSHAEHT  RZZE—N
Government of Sichuan Province, during the 2018 Lunar FREFHRBE BERENKRELBRANAEAR
New Year holidays, the gross tourism revenue in #4220 9B  RMZT — L F R HIE MN15.4% ©

Guangdong province was approximately RMB42,290
million and representing an increase of 15.4% compared
with that in 2017.

Revenue from tourism during the 2018 Lunar New Year 2018F BN BB EEMREWATTE — 51
holidays by provinces, regions and cities — top ten (on- B (ErH) -
going statistics):
Total
Year- number of Year-
Total revenue on-year tourists on-year
Rank Province, region & city from tourism growth received growth
BEHEBEE
&Zx HEW Tz 38 48 W N\ FLL R LY FLL R
(RMB billion) (million)
(ARE+ET) (B8 AR)
1 Sichuan ra )l 44.66 25.60% 70.7301 10.80%
2 Guangdong EX 42.29 15.40% 55.646 15.30%
3 Hubei ible 29.08 28.60% 26.658 20.50%
4 Shaanxi 5:3ii} 20.72 40.50% 40.969 35.30%
5 Anhui ZH 19.62 37.51% 31.56347 17.60%
6 Hunan W 17.65 27.59% 27.2099 20.06%
7 Fujian B 17.22 32.80% 22.6686 21.60%
8 Henan bR 15.60 94.22% 28.4 51.96%
9 Hainan isqea) 13.72 10.30% 5.6755 10%
10 Chongaing 5E 13.37 29.60% 42.8621 12.70%
Chart by: Liu Jia of http://travel.people.com.cn B AR@RpE8E 2=
Descriptions: This table was compiled based on the AR AREAMESERMIREZ AR
publicly available statistics and data e SETERATREEERE
provided by the tourism commissions of P—o
different provinces, regions and cities,
and their statistical scope are different
from each other.
(Reference: The People’s Government of Sichuan Province (22818 ARBFHAL : http://www.sc.gov.
web-site: http://www.sc.gov.cn/10462/12771/2018/2/23/1 cn/10462/12771/2018/2/23/10445348.shtml )

0445348.shtml)
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The gross tourism revenue in Guangdong Province in the
PRC continuously increased during the six years period
from 2012 (approximately RMB738,900 million) to 2017
(approximately RMB1,199,300 million). Guangdong
Province ranked among the leaders in China in terms of
gross tourism revenue.

-
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Gross Tourism Revenue in Guangdong Province
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On 21 March 2013, Motion Picture Association of RZE—=F=ZA=-+—HB ZEEXHg T
America published an annual report that China has FH - ETFEERRAAKNAMRE_RELH
replaced Japan as the world’s second largest film market 5 BARER  ZHTES —BEERBTE -
after the United States, and this ranking has so far been

maintained.

Following the cooling-off period for domestic films box FEREETMHBERET = g—/\iéﬁllﬁﬂi‘-&%?
office in 2016, China’s film market, though under huge REHR BXEHINPREERTS  KREZ
pressure, eventually reversed the downward trend in Tt FHEEEL - EE??%‘%% U stk b
2017. The total box office revenue reached a new record BRI SN RES50EBETARBRE &
high of over RMB 55.9 billion, representing an increase of EFERN2231% - £ 2F - B AXRBAIF S
22.31% as compared to last year. With the MER "REFTmHE M EAREEESR 52
unprecedented breakthrough in box office and attendance RAERRKEYMBERMNESIE -

rate, China’s film market has also entered into a
reasonably steady period, with a view to becoming a
major growth engine in global film market.

BB B E

Film Market Trends in the PRC
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Further Development

Currently, China’s film-induced tourism is at the
development stage, faced with various problems such as
insufficient follow-up abilities in product development and
innovation, scattered layout, and limited scale, etc. These
problems largely attribute to the effects of inadequate
management, absence of policies and consumer
environment. The Group will take measures
correspondingly in respect of its products, marketing,
policies and operation patterns, so as to facilitate a
healthy and sustainable development of the Group’s film-
induced tourism.

In addition, relying on the themes of films, various film-
induced tourism bases have been established throughout
the country, and unique and specialized tourism products
are proactively developed, in an attempt to meet the
cultural needs of the people. Therefore, with respect to
the current situation of China’s film-induced tourism and
based on the market demand, the Group has formulated
a series of development plans, including (i) diversifying
film-induced tourism products; (i) widening the cultural
connotations of film-induced tourism; (iii) devising
reasonable plans for and focusing on the environment of
the Studio; (iv) improving reception service ability; and (v)
extending the lifecycle of film-induced tourism products.
By doing so, film-induced tourism will be developed into
specialized cultural tourism, and its close relationship with
films allows it to demonstrate the maximized difference
between time and space, the immediacy of dynamic
changes and the condensation of activity contents.

With the advent of the leisure era and the further
development of the tourism industry, the Group believes
that film-induced tourism will present a more promising
prospect, advancing in a direction characterized by
diversified tourist attractions, individualized tourists,
updated tourism contents and integrated planning and
construction.

o .
_dCultureGrnup imited Qi‘%ﬁ’.ilﬁm'
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results

During the year under review, the Group reported a
revenue of increasing of approximately 282.8% as
compared to the revenue in previous year for the
continuing operations, primarily attributable to substantial
growth of operations of the Studio and the Hotel in the
PRC. The Company entered into a sales partnership
agreement with a PRC company in 2016 with a
guaranteed annual sales and distribution of at least
1,000,000 tickets of the Studio. Accordingly, ticket sales
revenue arising from such agreement increased by
approximately 527.8% when compared to last year.
Rental income increased as there were approximately 30
additional production teams which had arranged for
filmmaking in the Studio by approximately 50% (2016:
approximately 60 teams). Meanwhile, part of the revenue
was generated from the film production and distribution,
sales of travel related products, and artiste management.

Film production cost for the year under review decreased
by approximately HK$9.54 million as the cost for the
current year’s film production decreases.

Staff costs for the year under review increased to
approximately HK$69.19 million from approximately
HK$39.83 million in 2016. An increase of approximately
HK$29.36 million in staff costs was mainly due to the
increased employee benefit expenses. The loss of the
Group for the year under review is mainly due to staff
costs of approximately HK$69.19 million, which include
equity-settled share-based payment expenses of
approximately HK$21.84 million.

Finance costs for the year under review increased by
approximately HK$46.21 million by reason of the interest
charged on additional shareholders’ loan and interest
payment of bonds issued from 2015 to 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recorded a net loss of approximately HK$193.53 million as
compared to net loss for the year ended 31 December
2016 of approximately HK$327.09 million. Such, the loss
was mainly due to the share option expenses, finance
costs, staff costs and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment. The decrease of net loss mainly is due to the
increase in the number of visitors and the Hotel's
occupancy rate, rental income of the Studio and effective
cost control.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETLETERAT
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

y ill -,
‘And Culture Group Limited Qi‘%ﬁ’.ilﬁm'

Current assets MEEE
Current liabilities mENEE
Current ratio ME R

RBE2RMBER

2017 2016

—F—tHF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

270,592 81,689

1,310,455 378,832

20.6% 21.6%

Current ratio as at 31 December 2017 was 20.6% (2016:
21.6%). As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s total
positive cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$11.53 million (2016: negative cash and
cash equivalent approximately HK$4.22 million).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$1,039,863,000 and the Group continued to incur a
loss for the year of approximately HK$193,533,000. These
conditions indicate that there may exist a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Notwithstanding the existence of these indicators, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that it is
appropriate for the consolidated financial statements to be
prepared on the assumption that the Group will continue
to operate as a going concern. In order to improve the
Group’s financial position, immediate liquidity and cash
flows, and otherwise to sustain the Group as a going
concern, the directors of the Company have adopted
several measures, including the following:

(i) In relation to those bank and other borrowings which
will mature before 31 December 2018, the Group is
actively negotiating with the banks and other third
party lenders for arrangements to renew or roll over
the borrowings upon maturity. The Group has not
experienced any significant difficulties in renewing
most of its short-term and long-term borrowings
upon their maturities and there is no indication that
the banks and other lenders will not renew the
existing short-term and long-term borrowings upon
the Group’s request. The on-going negotiations with
the holders of the bonds falling due in 2018, with
carrying amount of approximately HK$306,369,000
as at 31 December 2017, are proceeding well and
expected to result, in the near term, in extension of
the maturity dates of the bonds. The directors of
the Company, having evaluated all the relevant facts
available to them, are of the opinion that the Group
would be able to renew such borrowings, including
the bonds falling due in 2018, upon maturity;

RZE—+tF+_A=Z+—BNARHL X E20.6%
(:;? NEFE 216%) W _ZET—tF+ - A
B ALEERESIKLRENESSESE
B 411,530,000 T (ZZE—~"F: &R EH
% S {E 18 B #4,220,000/%8 7T) °

R-T—tHF+-_A=+—8 AEENERHAE
ERBHASERE - Z5#1,039,863,000/5 7T * M
$%@EA1‘¢rﬂzZEﬁ réﬁai’7193533000/%
R ERBARMAGEEEATEERAE - 7] 4
%TZK%E’UT%%‘%«%@WJT%}?XEK%EFEJ CEER
RETE AR Té% BRAMERREAR
R HBEREC LN RE m%ﬁgéiﬁoﬁaﬁz
EZAREENGBRRL EBERDESRRERE
UREEMFHEFAEENFELSE A28
EECRMEERE  BREUTEE:

() BMRZE-NEFET_A=+—HxkzrHH
MR FARTT RE M (83X - AR S TR AR R 4R
TREME=ZTETER  KHEFNH
REERIER - ZISE@EAELEQ&EHHFH
IMEEE BEURCEEMERNRNE -
MEFRERNBITREMELD BT ERALE
BER ERENHAARAER - BTN\
FEHMEFR_FT—EF+_A=+—H
#Y) B TH 8 49306,369,0007% 7T) 5 B A K
EERRI  BANEHANLERGBSHEH
B e ARAREERNFEREFAAE A HEE
FEE RBAKESARZE BRI R
TUBEBE BE_ZF-N\FIHNES

Annual Report 2017 —F—t £ 5§

19



Annual Report 2017 =2 —t £ 5§

-

Management Discussion And Analysis % 12

(i) the Group has obtained an undertaking from Mr. Sin,
the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Group,
that he will provide funds to the Group to meet in
full all its financial obligations as they fall due for the
period of twelve months from 31 December 2017;
and

(i) in March 2018, the shareholders who had granted
debts to the Group agreed with the Group that the
maturity dates of the debts falling due in 2018 shall
be extended by another one year. As at
31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of such
loans amounted to approximately HK$688,869,000
in aggregate and were classified as current liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2017.

On the basis of the foregoing, and after assessing the
Group’s current and forecasted cash positions, the
directors of the Company are satisfied that the Group will
be able to meet in full the Group’s financial obligations as
they fall due for the period of twelve months from
31 December 2017. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been prepared on the going
concern basis.

Dividend
The Directors of the Company do not recommend

payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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Capital Structure and Gearing Ratio

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange on 17 October 2002. The capital of the
Company comprises only ordinary shares. As at
31 December 2017, 4,514,161,222 ordinary shares were
issued and fully paid. The details of the capital structure
of the Group in terms of maturity profile of debt, type of
capital instrument used, currency and interest rate
structure are set out in the note 6 to the consolidated
financial statement from page 172 to 178 of this annual
report.

Bank overdrafts RITHEX

Loans from shareholders R ER
Borrowings BE

Bonds B 5

Convertible bonds CEY e
Promissory note A HEE

Finance lease obligation B IS T E AR IE
Total borrowings RSt

Equity R

Total capital employed FriE A E A B5E

. -
nt And Culture Group Limited B & ﬂi%ﬁ: EEARAA

BARBRARILE

AARABRON -—_EZ-_FE+A++-BEEBIAR
GEM LT « AR R AEZB S LB - N _T—
FH+—-A=+—8"  H4514,1612221 K B 3 17
BEBRREBR AESEREHKESHEE AT
BEATEER EBRANEEEZENEEF
B HRAERFEIT2E1T8E 2R A B REMW
516 °

2017 2016
—F—tHF —E—RF

Relative Amount Relative
1H ¥ Gk sk
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %

THET FAET
8,416 0.4% 8,501 0.4%
504,060 21.8% 462,344 23%
221,202 9.6% 179,538 8.9%
719,920 31.2% 506,803 25.1%
106,697 4.6% 110,813 5.5%
83,991 3.6% 81,655 4.1%
22,631 1.0% 23,406 1.2%
1,666,917 72.2% 1,373,060 68.2%
640,431 27.8% 639,978 31.8%
2,307,348 100% 2,013,038 100%

The Group’s gearing ratio (i.e. the total borrowings to the
total capital employed) was approximately 72.2% as at
31 December 2017 (2016: 68.2%). If the bonds,
convertible bonds (liability component), promissory note
and finance lease obligation as stated above were to be
excluded, the underlying gearing ratio was 31.8% (2016:
32.3%) of the decreasing in the gearing ratio during the
year under review.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s reporting currency is expressed in Hong
Kong dollars. For the year ended 31 December 2017,
most of the transactions, assets and liabilities of the
Group were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. During the year under review, since the Group
had both Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi receipts and
payments, the net Renminbi exposure was not significant.
The Board considers that the Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk was not significant; therefore, no hedging
transaction was made during the year.
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had the following
capital commitments:

Management Discussion And Analysis & 38 J& &t 3 & 2 #7

B

R-B—+E+_A=+—B XEBEFUTE
IR

Contracted but not provided for: SHEREE ST
Construction of properties MEREE
Authorised but not contracted for: EHEERETH :
Construction of properties (Note) YIEER (iT)

2017 2016
—T-t# ZTRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
91,807 128,734
360,187 334,896

Note:  Capital commitment for construction in properties related
to capital commitment for construction of film studio and
hotel in Foshan, the PRC. The authorised amount was
approved by the Directors according to the land lease
agreements signed between Lux Unicorn Limited, the
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the local
authority in Foshan, the PRC, in relation to the leasing of
lands for development of tourism and related
entertainment business and hotel operations. The
completion of constructions and commencement of
operations of the projects shall be within three and four
years respectively from the signing of the lease
agreements.

Future Plans for Substantial Investments or Capital
Assets

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 13 December 2017, Foshan Guohao Theme Park
Management Company Limited (# LT EH 2 S[E &2
BB A7), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
(“Guohao Theme Park”) has entered into a subscription
agreement with Guangdong Hongtu Guangdian
Investment Co., Ltd. (“GD Hongtu”) (ERLBEERER
R A 7Al), pursuant to which GD Hongtu will make a
capital injection of RMB20 million into the Guohao Theme
Park, in respect of joint cooperation of the second phase
development of the Studio (the “Second Phase Project”).
The Second Phase Project is planned to have a total of 6
indoor studios and 2 boutique hotels to be constructed
next to the first phase of the Studio and the Hotel.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
plan for substantial investments or capital assets.
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Pledge of Assets

The investment properties which had a fair value at
31 December 2017 of approximately HK$34,780,000
(2016: approximately HK$33,700,000) were pledged to
obtain banking facilities for overdrafts.

Event After the Reporting Date

On 12 January 2018, the Company allotted and issued
3,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company pursuant to
exercise of share options of the Company granted on
16 May 2017. As at the date of this annual report, the
total number of issued shares of the Company is
4,517,161,222.

Contingent Liabilities

Other than the disclosure under “Capital Commitments”
on page 22 of this annual report, the Group did not have
any other material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2017.

Share Issues and Connected Transaction

On 20 January 2017, the Company entered into (i) a
share subscription agreement (“Share Subscription
Agreement”) with Mr. Sin, the Chairman of the Company
and a Non-executive Director, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and
Mr. Sin has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, an
aggregate of 112,107,623 shares of the Company (“Share
Subscription Shares”) at the subscription price of
HK$0.223 per share; and (i) the share subscription
agreements (“PRC Subscription Agreements”) with Liang
Yehong and Chen Zhimin (“PRC Subscribers”), being
independent third parties of the Group, pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue,
and the PRC Subscribers have conditionally agreed to
subscribe for, an aggregate of 387,984,117 shares (“PRC
Subscription Shares”, together with Share Subscription
Shares as the “Subscription Shares”) at the subscription
price of HK$0.223 per share.
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The nominal value of the Share Subscription Shares was
HK$11,210,762 and the nominal value of the PRC
Subscription Shares was HK$ 38,798,411. The net price
of the Subscription Shares was HK$0.223. The closing
price of the Company’s shares as at 20 January 2017 on
the Stock Exchange was HK$0.233.

Completion of the Share Subscription Agreement and the
PRC Subscription Agreements was conditional upon the
passing of an ordinary resolution by the shareholders of
the Company and the Listing Committee of the Stock
Exchange granting the listing of and permission to deal in
the Subscription Shares. The Subscription Shares were
allotted and issued on 21 April 2017.

As Mr. Sin was a Non-executive Director, the Chairman
and a substantial shareholder of the Company as at the
date of the Share Subscription Agreement, Mr. Sin was a
connected person of the Company.

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
13 December 2016, the Company was in negotiation with
Mr. Sin regarding the repayment of the interests of the
convertible bonds to subscribe for an aggregate of
556,666,667 Shares issued by the Company to Mr. Sin
(“Convertible Bonds”), the promissory note in the principal
amount of HK$80,000,000 dated 15 April 2015 issued by
the Company in favour of Mr. Sin (“Promissory Note”) and
the loans due to Mr. Sin in the principal amount of
HK$393,510,000 during 2015 and 2016 (‘Loan”). The
Company entered into the Shareholder Subscription
Agreement with Mr. Sin to settle the total interests of the
Convertible Bonds in the sum of HK$9,018,000; the
interest of the Promissory Note in the sum of
HK$7,200,000 and the interest of the Loan in the sum of
HK$8,782,000.

During 2013 and 2014, the Group entered into the
construction agreements with two PRC construction
companies, pursuant to which the PRC construction
companies provided construction services to the Group. The
Group were indebted to the PRC construction companies in
the aggregate amount of RMB76,674,430 under the
construction agreements (“Construction Loans”). In January
2017, the Group, the PRC construction companies and the
PRC Subscribers entered into loan transfer agreements,
pursuant to which the PRC construction companies have
transferred to the PRC Subscribers all rights, interest and
benefits of the Construction Loans of RMB76,674,430
(equivalent to approximately HK$86,520,458) (the “Loan
Transfer Agreements”). The Company entered into the PRC
Subscription Agreements with the PRC Subscribers to settle
the debt of approximately RMB76,674,430 (equivalent to
approximately HK$86,520,458) due to the PRC Subscribers
pursuant to the Loan Transfer Agreements.
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The Directors consider that issue of the Subscription
Shares will reduce the outstanding liabilities, improve the
gearing ratio of Group and reduce the interest burden of
the Group. As a result, it shall improve the financial
position and enlarge the shareholder base of the Group.

Further details of the Share Subscription Agreement and
the PRC Subscription Agreements are disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 20 January 2017 and
the Company’s circular dated 17 March 2017.

Employee and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 487
(2016: 460) staff based in the PRC and Hong Kong. The
Group remunerates its employees based on their
performances, experiences and the prevailing industry
practices. In addition to basic salaries and mandatory
provident fund, staff benefits including medical coverage
scheme and share options are offered.

The Group’s remuneration policy was reviewed
periodically by the remuneration committee of the Board
and the Board’s remuneration is determined by reference
to market terms, company performance, and individual
qualifications and performance. The Group aimed to
recruit, retain and develop competent individuals who
were committed to the Group’s long-term success and
growth. Remunerations and other benefits of employees
were reviewed annually in response to both market
conditions and trends, and were based on qualifications,
experience, responsibilities and performance.

The current remuneration of directors and key
management is determined by the individuals
performance and market trends.

During the vyear under review, the Group has not
experienced any significant problems with its employees or
disruption to its operation due to labour disputes nor has it
experienced any difficulties in the recruitment and retention
of experienced staff. The Directors believe that the Group
has a good working relationship with its employees.
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OGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Law Po Yee, aged 38, was appointed as the Vice
Chairperson of the Board on 26 October 2010, as an
Executive Director of the Company on 5 August 2010
and as the Chief Executive Officer and the Compliance
Officer of the Company on 9 May 2011. Ms. Law is also
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
Ms. Law obtained a Master Degree of business in the
University of Newcastle and has extensive experience in
the entertainment, artiste management and film production
industries. Ms. Law also has years of banking experience,
specializing in risk management. Ms. Law is the spouse of
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, the Chairman, Non-executive Director
and a substantial shareholder (within the meaning under
the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company.

Mr. Chow Kai Weng, aged 33, joined the Group in
January 2010. Mr. Chow holds a Bachelor Degree of
Business Administration with previous experiences in
media and financial industries. Mr. Chow was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 25 March
2011 and as the Vice Chairperson of the Board on
5 August 2016. Mr. Chow is also a director of a number
of subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Sin Ho Yee, aged 33, joined the Group in March
2011. Ms. Sin obtained a diploma of Communication from
the Melbourne Institute of Business and Technology.
Ms. Sin was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 25 March 2011. Ms. Sin is the daughter of
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, the Chairman, Non-executive Director
and a substantial shareholder (within the meaning under
the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, aged 60, was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the
Company on 31 May 2010. Mr. Sin was re-designated
from an Executive Director to a Non-executive Director of
the Company in October 2010. Mr. Sin is also the
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Board and
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Sin has over 20 years’ banking experience in various
departments including Internal Audit, Finance, Risk
Management and Business. Mr. Sin is an associate
member of the Chartered Institute of Banker, and he
holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from
Oklahoma City University, USA, a certified diploma in
Accounting and Finance from the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a graduate Diploma in
Law Course from City University, London, UK and a
Bachelor Degree of Laws (LL.B.) from Manchester
Metropolitan University. Mr. Sin was the chairman (since
November 2011) and an executive director (since March
2009) of First Credit Finance Group Limited (Stock Code:
8215), a company which shares are listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange, until he resigned on 7 February 2018.
Mr. Sin is the spouse of Ms. Law Po Yee, an Executive
Director.
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Dr. Lam Lee G. (#hER#EE L), aged 58, is a Non-
Executive Director of the Company. Dr. Lam joined the
Company in June 2017. He is the Chairman of Hong
Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited, Non-
Executive Chairman — Hong Kong and ASEAN Region
and Chief Adviser to Macquarie Infrastructure and Real
Assets Asia, a member of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government’s Committee on
Innovation, Technology and Re-Industrialization, the Hong
Kong Council on Smoking and Health, the Council on
Professional Conduct in Education (CPC), and the Court
of the City University of Hong Kong, Vice Chairman of the
United Nations Economic and Social Commission for Asia
and the Pacific (UNESCAP) Business Advisory Council
and Chairman of its Task Force on Banking and Finance,
Chairman of the Permanent Commission on Economic
and Financial Issues of World Union of Small and Medium
Enterprises (WUSME), a board member of Pacific Basin
Economic Council (PBEC), a member of Belt and Road
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council,
a member of Sir Murray MaclLehose Trust Fund
Investment Advisory Committee, Honorary Advisor to the
Hong Kong Business Angel Network (HKBAN), Honorary
Chairman — Asia Pacific of CMA Australia, Chairman of
Monte Jade Science and Technology Association of Hong
Kong, President of Hong Kong-ASEAN Economic
Cooperation Foundation, a Vice President of the Hong
Kong Real Property Federation, Special Adviser to the
Asia Pacific Real Estates Association, a board member of
the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce of Hong
Kong and the Australian Chamber of Commerce in Hong
Kong and Macau, a founding board member and the
Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong Vietnam Chamber
of Commerce, Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Myanmar
Chamber of Commerce, a founding member of the Hong
Kong-Korea Business Council, and a member of the Hong
Kong-Thailand Business Council.
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Dr. Lam earlier also served as a part-time member of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government’s
Central Policy Unit, and a member of the Task Force on
Industry Facilitation under the Digital 21 Strategy Advisory
Committee, the Assessment Panel of the Small
Entrepreneur Research Assistance Programme under the
Innovation and Technology Fund, the Derivatives Market
Consultative Panel of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited, the General Council and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong
Listed Companies, the New Business Committee of the
Hong Kong Financial Services Development Council, the
Education Bureau School Allocation Committee and the
Legal Aid Services Council.

Dr. Lam has over 30 years of international experience
in general management, strategy consulting, corporate
governance, direct investment, investment banking and
fund management across the telecommunications/media/
technology (TMT), consumer/healthcare, infrastructure/
real estates, energy/resources and financial services
sectors. Dr. Lam earlier served as a General Manager
of Hongkong Telecom, Vice President and Managing
Partner — Greater China of the international management
consulting firm A.T. Kearney, President & Chief Executive
Officer and Vice Chairman of the board of directors of
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (now renamed
as C.P. Lotus Corporation) of multinational conglomerate
CP Group, Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer of
Investment Banking Division of BOC International Holdings
(the international investment banking arm of the Bank of
China group), Executive Director of Singapore Technologies
Telemedia (a member of Temasek Holdings), and Chairman
— Hong Kong, Vietnam, Cambodia, Laos, Myanmar and
Thailand and Senior Adviser — Asia of Macquarie Capital.
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Dr. Lam holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in sciences
and mathematics, a Master of Science in systems science
and a Master of Business Administration from the
University of Ottawa in Canada, a post-graduate diploma
in public administration from Carleton University in
Canada, a post-graduate diploma in English and Hong
Kong Law and a Bachelor of Laws (Hons) from
Manchester Metropolitan University in the United
Kingdom, a Master of Laws from the University of
Wolverhampton in the United Kingdom, a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from the City University of Hong Kong,
a Certificate in Professional Accountancy from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong School of Continuing
and Professional Studies (CUSCS), a Master of Public
Administration and a Doctor of Philosophy from The
University of Hong Kong. A former member of the Hong
Kong Bar Association, Dr. Lam is a Solicitor of the High
Court of Hong Kong, an Honorary Fellow of Certified
Practising Accountants (CPA) Australia, a Fellow of
Certified Management Accountants (CMA) Australia, a
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators, an
Accredited Mediator of the Centre for Effective Dispute
Resolution (CEDR), a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and an Honorary Fellow of the University of
Hong Kong School of Professional and Continuing
Education (HKU SPACE).
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Dr. Lam is an independent non-executive director of each
of CSI Properties Limited (Stock Code: 497), Glorious Sun
Enterprises Limited (Stock Code: 393), Vongroup Limited
(Stock Code: 318), Mei Ah Entertainment Group Limited
(Stock Code: 391), Elife Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
223), Haitong Securities Company Limited (Stock Code:
6837 which is also listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange with Stock Code: 600837), Huarong Investment
Stock Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 2277), Xi'an
Haitiantian Holdings Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 8227,
previously known as Xi’an Haitian Antenna Holdings Co.,
Ltd), Hua Long Jin Kong Company Limited (Stock code :
1682, formerly known as Highlight China loT International
Limited), and Kidsland International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 2122); and a non-executive director of each
of China LNG Group Limited (Stock Code: 931), China
Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited (Stock Code:
412), Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 188) and Tianda Pharmaceuticals Limited (Stock
Code: 455), the shares of all of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He is an independent non-executive
director of each of Asia-Pacific Strategic Investments
Limited (Stock Code: 5RA), Rowsley Limited (Stock Code:
A50), Top Global Limited (Stock Code: 519), and
Singapore e-Development Limited (Stock Code: 40V), the
shares of all of which are listed on the Singapore
Exchange. Dr. Lam is also an independent director of
Sunwah International Limited (Stock Code: SWH), the
shares of which are listed on the Toronto Stock
Exchange; an independent non-executive director of
AustChina Holdings Limited (Stock Code: AUH), the
shares of which are listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange; and a non-executive director of Adamas
Finance Asia Limited (Stock Code: ADAM), the shares of
which are listed on the London Stock Exchange.

Dr. Lam was a non-executive director of Dr. Lam was
also an non-executive director of ZH International
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Heng Fai Enterprises
Limited) (Stock Code: 185), DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as UDL
Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 620) and Roma Group
Limited (Stock code: 8072), the shares of all of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange until he resigned on 27 July
2015, 8 December 2015 and 11 December 2017
respectively. Dr. Lam was a independent non-executive
director of Ruifeng Petroleum Chemical Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 8096), Mingyuan Medicare Development
Company Limited (Stock Code: 233) and Imagi
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 585), the
shares of all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange,
and Vietnam Equity Holding (Stock Code: 3MS), the
shares of which are listed on the Stuttgart Stock
Exchange until he resigned on 30 March 2015, 26 May
2015, 28 January 2016 and 28 February 2018
respectively.

National Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETLETERAT

MBLTAEAEBHMESR Q& (BRMHMNRR:
497) - JER T EBR A A (MM : 393) ~ =1
BEERAF(BRMHAIR :318) - ZHIREENE
EERAFBMHRYE :301) ZEFEBRERA
Al (MRS 223) BBEFBRHER AR (&
MR 6837 MR LEEBBEHFRZ LT KK
5% - 600837) - ERLIRE R AR QA (RH R
SR :2277) AL BRRKEERHDG AR AR A
AR RRKGIERBHERAT - BRHARIE:
8227) ERESIEABR AR (A%« &P XY
HEBBRAE - RMHAIE - 1682) R A1 LR R
TRRAR AT (BRI 2122) % 8 2 B IEH
TEE UEPRRAREEBR 2R (KH AR
5R:031) HELRSREMEBER A A (KK
RSR:412) FEEESBMIZERER QA (RMOHA
5% :188) « RAKNEXABR DA (RMH AR - 455)
BAZIFNTEE (A LRRZIRMDHNE AT
m)e #  AAsia-Pacific Strategic Investments
Limited (A% {3 1L 5% : 5RA) » Rowsley Limited (% {7
K 8 : A50) M Top Global Limited (% {3 X 5% -
519) & B8 2 W 7 FE 17 & £ » M K&Singapore
e-Development Limited (J& {3 5% : 40V) Z JEBTT
BEEUERRZBOERFTNEBZILSR S L
™) o 18+ I8 ASunwah International Limited (&
MR/ SWH) ZBUEFE(EBROREBREES
RS Fr ™) AustChina Holdings Limited (A% 171X
SRCAUH) 2B IERMITEE (ERMHMNBRAF
B H X H A £ ™) M MAdamas Finance Asia
Limited (B& {2 X 5% : ADAM) 2 B 3EH1TE E (H
BORBRELFRZAH LET) -

MELEH R ALEBEEREERER QR (BIEAEE
TEERERAE)(BRMGRSE : 185) « KEFA M4
BEEEBRERAR (AIBATEEEFRAR) (K
MR 6200 R EFEBMBER QA (DRI :
8072)(FTE R BN MD R R AT L) MIERITE
H HEESAIR-_ZE—FEFELtA-t++tH =
E—AFE+-_ANBE=-_ZE—+F+=-HA+—H
BT -MEBELORAREAIEREGRAR (KRG
RiE:8006) HEEEZHRAR2AKHOA
B 233) N EBBEIERER QR (MK :
585) (Fr A & 7] B9 B 19 7A B8 22 B £ ) A B Vietnam
Equity Holding (A&7 5% : 3MS ) (E & 5 74 H B hn
BESRGHEM NBYEATEE BEEFD
MR -—_FE-—RE=A=+RH —ZE—F"HEHA
—t+ARXA - ZE—ARF—A-+NBERZZ—N
F-A -+ N \BHEIE-



Biographical Details of Directors = =& &

INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor, aged 58, has been in the
legal field for over 20 years. Mr. Chan received his legal
education in England where he was awarded the
Postgraduate Diploma in Laws (the Legal Practice Course)
from the University of Wolverhampton after he had
obtained the law degree from the University of London.
Apart from his law degree, he also obtained a Bachelor
Degree in Chinese literature and history. Before he
commenced his practice, Mr. Chan worked in the
Insolvency and Criminal Litigation Sections of the Legal
Aid Department for 12 years. As for public service,
Mr. Chan was an honorary chairman and legal adviser of
the Urban Services Staff Association (Tsuen Wan Welfare
Section). Mr. Chan is a general practice lawyer and also
the Vice-Chairman of the Hong Kong Legal Professionals
Association and the legal adviser of Hong Kong License
Consultants Association. Mr. Chan has also obtained a
certificate from the Peking University Law School in
“Partners in the Hong Kong Firms of Solicitors Study
Programme” in 2017. Mr. Chan is currently an
independent non-executive director of Sun International
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8029), a company which
shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in May 2009.
Mr. Chan is currently a member of each of Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Board.
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Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert, aged 61, holds a Bachelor
Degree in Commerce and is a practicing Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Chui was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
May 2009. Mr. Chui is currently the Chairman of each of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of
the Board. Mr. Chui is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants. Mr. Chui
is currently an independent non-executive director of Tse
Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (Stock Code:
417) and Wing Lee Property Investment Limited (Stock
Code: 864), shares of both companies are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and PPS International
(Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 8201) and F8 Enterprises
(Holdings) Group Limited (Stock Code: 8347), shares of
both companies are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director
of 21 Holdings Limited (now known as Huanxi Media
Group Limited) (Stock Code: 1003), a company which
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, until he resigned in September 2011 and
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (Stock Code: 8148),
a company which shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, until he resigned in March 2016. He retired as
a non-executive director of Addchance Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 3344), a company which shares are listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange, with effect from 23 May
2017. He is also a director of a number of private
companies and associations.
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Prof. WONG Lung Tak, Patrick, B.B.S., J.P., aged 70,
was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company in 2010 and is currently a member of
each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Prof. Wong is
a Practicing Certified Public Accountant. He is the
managing practicing director of Patrick Wong CPA Limited
and has over 40 years experience in the accountancy
profession. Prof. Wong obtained a Doctor of Philosophy
Degree in Business, and was awarded a Badge of
Honour in 1993 by the Queen of England. Prof. Wong has
been appointed as a Justice of the Peace since 1998 and
was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (B.B.S.) in 2010 by
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. Prof. Wong is currently an Independent non-
executive director of C C Land Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1224), Water Oasis Group Limited (Stock Code:
1161), Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited (Stock Code:
27), Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
702), Winox Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 6838), BAIC
Motor Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 1958) and Li Bao
Ge Group Limited (Stock Code: 8102). All the share
companies have their share listed on the Stock
Exchange. He was also an independent non-executive
director of Munsun Capital Group Limited (previously
known as China Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co.,
Limited) (Stock Code: 1194), Bisu Technology Group
International Limited (previously known as Excel
Development (Holdings) Limited) (Stock Code: 1372),
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings
Company Limited (previously known as Guangzhou
Pharmaceutical Company Limited) (Stock Code 874) and
Real Nutriceutical Group Limited (Stock Code 2010), all of
which have their shares listed on the Stock Exchange
until he resigned on 3 October 2016, 10 August 2015,
23 June 2017 and 12 October 2017 respectively.
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Mr. Li Kit Chee, aged 63, has more than 30 years’
experience in auditing, accounting and secretaria
services. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor Degree of social
sciences (with honours) in The University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Li is also a fellow member of The Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants. Mr. Li is a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a managing director of Arthur Li,
Yau & Lee C.P.A. Limited. Mr. Li is a director of Cheong
Yip Secretary Limited, which is principally engaged in
corporate service related business. Mr. Li is currently an
independent non-executive director of Hong Kong
International Construction Investment Management Group
Co., Limited (Stock Code: 687), a company which shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Immediately prior to his appointment as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in June 2014,
Mr. Li was an independent non-executive director of First
Credit Finance Group Limited, a company which shares
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
8215) until he resigned in May 2014. Mr. Li was an
independent non-executive director of Henry Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 859), a company which
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, until he resigned in February 2018. Mr. Li is
currently a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Board.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERETRARE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Report is presented by the Company to the public in
compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide as set out in
Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules. In this report, the
Group strives to disclose its policies and practices
towards the environmental, social and governance
aspects of the Company and its principal operating
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the PRC for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE POLICIES

The Group incorporated corporate, environmental and
social responsibilities into its business strategies to
promote healthy entertainment to and integration of
society, contribute to environmental sustainability, achieve
healthy and harmonious developments of its staff as well
as continue to create long-term value for its stakeholders.
During the year of 2017, the Company has implemented
relevant ESG policies, which:

o are in compliance with the requirements of the
relevant laws and regulations on corporate
environment, society and governance that have a
significant impact to the Group’s business;

° continue to facilitate social integration by actively
implementing the concept of “eliminating racial
discrimination and building a harmonious society”;

. encourage the employees to raise their awareness
towards “energy and resource savings”, support
and promote energy saving and emission reduction
measures;

. integrate green philosophy into the development of
the Group and ensure the Group is in compliance
with the environmental laws and regulations; and

o strive to establish healthy and harmonious
relationships with its employees, shareholders,
suppliers and other stakeholders.

The Board is responsible for the evaluation and
identification of ESG risks of the Group and ensuring that
the Group sets up an appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal control system. The
management of the Group provides the Board with the
confirmation of the effectiveness of the ESG system.

BB L& KB

1

AR AR R BIAR B GEM _E T AR Bl B 82208 & 2
BE HEREAREEIANARERIERE
HERER(RE e RER]DHRE - EARE
N AEBBRIBEEHZE_T—+tF+=A
Zt+—HILEEE ®ARQ T&E%;‘%&EPI%
EEMNBARERE HEREAFEZIEER
CSTA

B
mﬂ*ﬁ

i)

3

BB g KRB RBUR

REEBLE REMHEEEIMAELERR

NHEEREREME S AR RREA ii““’l“_{{’?
HER BEREFENENBE THER B FFSE
BREFNERERBEE R-_ZT—tF &
RADEHBERARE HE8REBERE HRE -

. MAUAEEEBBREATE ZABER
FOERZERRE HE8RERME

. ﬂiﬂffﬁﬁﬁﬁr/ﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&@;ﬂ%ﬁ
/\szﬁ {E = /\Iﬁﬁ

. HEREERSEHISFHNERRERIOE
B SRR R h0 ok S B KR PR R 1

. EREEZERBPIMAZEHRS  BRAKE
BTRFRERER &

. BORERE BR - HEBREGRENHE
BYRIFMAMENRBER -

EEgAETMKEERAEREAHERER HTtak
ERMEAR  UHARAEERZZEEREBHIR
B HERELRAREBERABEZRR A&
IE’]”E.EEE,\ﬁ%$ﬁ‘%{ﬁﬁ@§ESG§iﬁ%E
ﬁ)&mﬁﬁwu°

Annual Report 2017 —F—t £ 5§

hl."'-

Culture Group Limited E%ﬁ’. SEARL

35



i

Annual Report 201

Environmental, Social And Governance Report IR 1%

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group consistently values the stakeholders that are
influenced by the Group’s operational activities including
clients, suppliers, employees, community groups and
government bodies, etc. The Group communicates
irregularly through various communication channels with
each other in order to build up a mutual understanding of
each other’s vision and expectation on environmental and
social responsibility. With reference to these, the Group
develops a designated environmental and social
responsibility framework and sets long-term objectives for
the sustainable development of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions

As the Company is principally engaged in investment
holding and its principal subsidiaries in Hong Kong mainly
participate in film production and distribution, provision of
management service to artistes and provision of travel-
related products, it does not have significant air
emissions, discharge into water or land in relation to its
operations in Hong Kong. And no substantial hazardous
waste was produced by the Group during the reporting
period.

In relation to the operation of the Hotel and the Studio in
the PRC, to mitigate environmental pollution, the Group
strives to reduce, reuse and recycle throughout its
operations and promotes green construction in carrying
out development projects, such as dust control, noise
reduction and waste water treatment.

The Group has required all staff to address environmental
responsibilities in normal operating procedures and has
enhanced the awareness of environmental and resource
efficiency issues amongst the staff and stakeholders. The
Group strives to be environmentally responsible by
adopting good environmental practices in respect of office
premise, equipment and consumption of resources and by
supporting practical measures and policies aiming to
protect and preserve the environment of the countries
where it operates. This principle is integrated into the
code of conduct for all employees.
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Throughout the period under review, the Group has
strictly complied with national and regional laws and
regulations in the PRC in respect of emission, disposal
and generation of waste, including the Law of the PRC on
Environmental Protection (7 A R £ F R B REE),
the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Pollution From Environmental Noise (7% A R H£ FE IR 5
IR 255 B A %), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (F 2 A F £ FE A
TS A7K), the Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution (fF Z A B % 1 B /K
55 5358 7%), Regulations on Environmental Protection
Administration of Construction Projects in Guangdong
Province (BR & 2% 1B B RIFRETEEH), as well as
the relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong related to
environment protection, health and safety.

As minimum environmental impact was resulted from the
Group’s operation, KPIs A1.4 and A1.6 are immaterial to
the Group’s operation and have not been disclosed in this
report. In addition, as there is no substantial hazardous
waste generated from the Group’s operation, KPI A1.3 is
not applicable to the Group and has not been disclosed
too. After the promotion of environmental responsibilities
to our employees, utilities expenses in 2017 slightly
decreased by approximately 1%.

In 2017, the Group’s greenhouse gas emission from
direct emission (Scope 1) resulting from LPG were 490
tonnes of CO, and energy indirect emissions (Scope 2)
resulting from electricity consumption were 2,480 tonnes
of CO,. The greenhouse gas emissions were 2,970
tonnes of CO, in total and 6.1 tonnes of CO, per
employee.

Emission
BERE

A1.1 FUEL TYPE- LPG

WhEE — R

Energy consumed (MJ)
BEFUHAE OKEREH)

8.0u°"

BEAMBER (

Scope 1 Direct Emission-CO, (Tonnes)

@ E1 EEHR— -S|t (8)

490

NOx emission (Kg)

31.98
A1.2 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION
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Year ended 31 December 2017
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Year ended 31 December 2017
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Scope 2 Indirect Emission-CO, (Tonnes)
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Use of Resources

With the operation of the Studio and the Hotel, energy
and water consumption have increased accordingly.

In order to reduce unnecessary usage and improve
efficient use of resources, the Group has established the
“energy and resource savings” policy, under which:

o lights and electronic appliances in living area or
workplace must be turned off when they are not in
use;

° the temperature of the air conditioners shall be
maintained at 25.5°C;

o LED lighting shall be used when replacement of
lighting is needed;

° power of the computers, copy machines, printers
and other office equipment must be turned off
when the staff are off duty or on leave;

° switch off some of the lifts during off-peak hours;

° turn off lighting and air conditioning when the guest
room is vacant;

o recyclable resources e.g. recycle paper, washable
tableware, water recycling shall be used;
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o solid waste shall be reduced by practices such as
using e-memo instead of physical paper and food
waste shall be reduced by promoting the concept of
“not to order more than enough”; and

o carry out regular leakage tests on concealed piping
and check for overflowing tanks, waste, worn tap
washers and other defects of the system.

After adopting these policy, utilities expenses in 2017
slightly decreased by approximately 1%.

The Group will continuously monitor and manage the use
of resources in order to reduce its operating costs as well
as the carbon footprints.

As there is no issue in sourcing water, KPl A2.4 has not
been disclosed in this report. Further, as only immaterial
packaging material was used in the Group’s operation,
KPI A2.5 is not applicable to the Group and has not been
disclosed in this report.

Environment and Natural Resources

Over the past few years, the Group has developed rapidly
and a series of new projects that may have a significant
impact on the environment and natural resources have
been constructed.

In view of that, the Group has established a green policy
in project construction, which requires:

° to take into account of environmental protection and
take reasonable actions at the initial project
planning stage to the largest extent to avoid
damage to the natural ecology in the construction
process;

. implementation of the greening projects in the Studio
and the Hotel, in particular, more than 630 trees in
total have been planted in the Studio and the Hotel
during the year under review; and

o construction waste screening facilities to be
established to reuse inert materials.

The Group regularly reviews its environmental protection
policy and has adopted preventive measures that are
necessary to the reduction of the environment risks and
has ensured that the Group is in compliance with relevant
laws and regulations.
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USE OF RESOURCES IN 2017
—E-tFRREH

Year ended 31 December 2017

A2.1 ENERGY CONSUMPTION - ELECTRICITY EtiFiEiE — EH BE-S—tH&+t-A=t—HiEE
Total Electricity Consumption Total Electricity Consumption
(Kwh) (Kwh / Employee)
BENEHEFE(TRE) ENEHER(TRE ES)

4.6 wminion== aroundmg,400

Year ended 31 December 2017

A2.1 ENERGY CONSUMPTION - LPG EEiEi&5E — it ElE BE-F-tF+-ASt+—HLFE
Total LPG Consumption Total LPG Consumption
(Tonnes) (Kg / Employee)
o@ AL BHRAEHFER (1) RILEEREEER (AT ES)

162 333

Year ended 31 December 2017

A2.1 ENERGY CONSUMPTION AEiRHEE BE-R¥—tF+-ASt-BLFE
Total Energy Consumption Total Energy Consumption

- Electricity (MJ) A - LPG (MJ)
RERAHER HERAHER

— ENCKEE) — Rt BER(EER)

1 6-5Mi|lion§% 8MillionE§
Total Energy Consumption Total Energy Consumption
(MJ) (MJ)

RERAEHERCKER) REREHEECKER)

24 . Sviion=x amundjcm5o,000

Year ended 31 December 2017

A2.2 WATER CONSUMPTION Fik& HE-R—t&+-A=+-HLEER
Total Water Consumption Total Water Consumption
(Tonnes) (Tonnes / Employee)
4Rk E (M) HERKE(MEE)

wrsn 187,000 383
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SOCIAL

Employment

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 487
full time employees, an increase of approximately 5.87%
from 460 of the last year. Breakdowns of the current
employees by gender, location and age are set forth
below respectively:

Staff Distribution by Gender
RIERIE 7

50% 50%

= % Female ® 3 Male

94%
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Staff Distribution by Age
REERERIED

23%

15%

21%

| le=25

m 26—35
= 46—55 m Over 55 Bi@55

37%

m 36—45

Annual Report 2017 —F—t 8§ l|1



Annual Report 2017 =%

Environmental, Social And Governance Report IR 1%

The Group understands that the employees are its most
important asset. In view of that, the Group has spared no
effort in recruiting and retaining talented staff by
establishing a human resource policy, under which:

o employees are reviewed annually on a performance
basis with reference to the market standards for
consideration of promotion and/or reward;

o a wide range of benefits are provided, including
comprehensive medical insurance, continuous
education scheme and staff discount scheme;

o the employee who passed the probation will be
entitled to the subsidy for the specified course
approved by the management;

o in order to promote a harmonious and mutual
respect working environment, a staff manual is
established to govern the recruitment, promotion,
discipline, working hours and leaves. The staff
manual also stipulates the anti-discrimination
policies and employees’ code of conducts;

. variety activities are organized from time to time to
improve the cohesion of staff members including
annual carnival show, Mid-Autumn Festival reunion
dinner, “monthly star” birthday parties and sport
day;

° clear work processes according to professional and
ethical labour practices which have been clearly
communicated to all employees. Certain policies to
govern employees’ affairs such as payroll,
attendance and termination are clearly set out in
staff appointment letters in compliance with the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong); and

o diversity of workforce are promised, including in
terms of age, gender and nationality, as well as a
culture of including equal opportunity and
anti-discrimination. The management regularly
reviews the Group’s remuneration policy in relation
to relevant market standards.
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As of 31 December 2017, the Group had a total number
of 487 employees. The proportion of the Group’s male
and female employees is equally distributed where the
majority of the Group’s employees are aged from 18 to
35.

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare during the year under the
review.

Health and Safety

To enhance employees’ work ability, the Group strives to
provide a healthy and safe work environment, such as:

o providing auxiliary tools e.g. trolley, pump-action
water dispenser, ladder, etc;

. organizing a series of trainings in relation to
occupational safety;

o equipping fire extinguishers, sprinklers, hose reels
and smoke detectors;

o arranging regular pests control; and

o supporting team members to achieve a healthy
work-life balance.

Appropriate measures will be continuously taken by the
Group to improve the safety and health of the employees
in workplace.

During the year under review, there were no material
accidents in the course of the Group’s business operation
which gave rise to any claims and compensation paid to
our employees and the Group is not aware of any
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards during the vyear
under review.

'-ﬂ -
d Culture Group l,lmlted Qﬁ%ﬁ:% BERAA

RZEBE—+tF+_A=+—8 ~AEBHEEF487F
BE -AEENEZRERELNHHEFY  KEH
AZEEB FH N T18E355 °

COBEFEE AEELTAELHIMEERE B
BRAE ITH B FERE ZHEE RK
BREMEMNTEME  HASEBREATE
ZEBRBEBEERERNETMERSEMN -

BREZZ

BMRIESH TN  ARBHNRERER
RERMIEEE  fim:

o REEFHH T A PIWFHE  RAKHE &
=,

. ME-RNERXLE2HEHNEI

. RPN TERE - B YR REFRAZS

. RHEHETRR R
. XEREGKEEREBENTHEEE S -

AEEREERDEEREGE XSREETISHHN
ZERERE-

REEFE REFBRTHEXLEAEESR
S MEBEAMEBERRABBEHHEE ARA
SEAUTHBENROESRRE L2 TERERR
EREAXBERETIEMS HUAEEBENKE
FEZABBBERIERNEFAEREMF-

Annual Report 2017 —F—t £ 5§

43



Annual Report 201

t

Environmental, Social And Governance Report 1% -

Development and Training

Following the business development and the changes of
the environment of the business operation, the Group
encourages and supports the employees in personal and
professional training and also encourages a culture of
experience-sharing.

In order to promote the employees’ long-term career
development, the Group strongly supports the employees
to join the training courses organized by external
professional organizations. The Group will subsidize the
employees according to their needs of career
development.

During the year under review, the Group made full use of
internal resources to organize various forms of training
covering management, customers service, financial, etc to
the PRC office with support from Hong Kong head office.
Other than the internal training programme, the Group
established a continuous education scheme (the
“Education Scheme”). According to the Education
Scheme, the employee who passed the probation will be
entitled to the subsidy for the specified course approved
by the management with the maximum amount of
HK$50,000.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly prohibits any child and forced labour in
its Hong Kong and PRC operations. A Comprehensive
recruitment processes are established requiring
background checks on candidates and formalized
reporting procedures to address any exceptions found.
Group also performs regular reviews and inspections to
detect the existence of any child or forced labour in the
operations. In the meantime, the Group also avoids
engaging vendors of administrative supplies and services
and contractors that were previously reported to have
employed or were suspected of employing child or forced
labour in their operations.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact relating to preventing child or forced
labour on the Group during the year of 2017. In addition,
no non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
resulted in significant fines or sanctions had been
reported in the year of 2017.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group believes that the quality of its products and
services as well as its reputation will be influenced by the
work with its suppliers. Therefore, the Group strives to
establish a stable and long-term cooperation with its
suppliers and established a policy for selecting and
reviewing the suppliers.

In selecting new suppliers, the Group compares between
at least three different companies and emphasizes the
legal compliance and integrity culture of suppliers’
operations, beyond cost considerations. On-site
inspections and research are conducted before the
commencement of business with suppliers, followed by
annual examination and evaluation in various aspects
including occupational health and safety, employee rights
protection, environmental protection and corporate social
responsibility to ensure suppliers operated in compliance
with the national standards or relevant requirement, and
there are no child labour or forced labour issues. The
examination and evaluation results will be used as the
basis for continuation or termination of cooperation in the
future.

As to constructors, all major raw material suppliers are
required to comply with the Environment Protection Law
of the PRC (FEARLMBEIRRE) and those with
ISO14000 environmental management accreditation will be
given priority in the selection process.

Product Responsibility

The Group adheres to a policy of quality products and
customer-oriented services, providing consumers with
high-quality products and comprehensive services. The
Group has developed a series of standards on quality
assurance and has adopted a day-to-day quality control
system over the Group’s products and services.
Meanwhile, the Group also emphasizes the importance of
communication with its customers. The Group has built up
several communication channels for its customers to
provide their feedback and rate the Group’s services,
where any complaint cases accepted will be recorded in
the quality control systems and followed up and handled
by the customer service team. Meanwhile, the team will
identify the causes with the relevant responsible
departments and develop preventive measures. For
significant issues, it will be reported and discussed at the
monthly meeting.

For the advertising of travel-related products, the Group
provides guidance on the Trade Descriptions Ordinance
(Chapter 362 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to its travel
consultants. The Group prohibits its travel consultants to
make false trade descriptions, misleading elements, false
or incomplete information and misrepresentation in the
course of transactions in order to protect the interests of
clients.
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To respect and support the innovation, the Group develop
a copy right policy according to the guideline issued by
Intellectual Property Department. Before using the
registered original film, image and music, the Group will
first apply to the relevant authorities and obtain approval.
For the film production and distribution in Hong Kong, the
films will be reviewed and approved by management and
the Office for Film, Newspaper and Article Administration
of the HKSAR before the publication. And before the first
publication and use, the management will review the
relevant approved documents again to ensure that there
is no violation of the relevant legislation.

Other than the statutory requirement mentioned as the
above. During the year under review, the Group has also
complied with Food Safety Law of the PRC (ff # A R £
ME & % 2 %), Measures for the Control of Security in
the Hotel Industry (K £8 ¥4 % & 12§ %), Fire Prevention
Law of the Peoples Republic of China (% A R 15
SEBE) as well as the statutory requirements in Hong
Kong, including Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Prevention of Copyright Piracy
Ordinance (Chapter 544 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
other relevant laws and rules in relation to the Group’s
business operation.

Protection for Customer Privacy

The Group attaches great importance to the protection of
customer privacy and strictly complies with the relevant
provisions of the national laws and regulations including
the Personal Data (Privacy Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Tort Law of the PRC (% A R £
B2 # &F £5%) and General Principles of the Civil Law
of the PRC (FZE AR AFMBE R XL ). During the year
under review, there were no incidents or substantiated
complaints concerning breaches of customer privacy or
losses of customer data.
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Anti-corruption

The Group aims to maintain the highest standards of
openness, uprightness and accountability and all its staff
are expected to observe the highest standards of ethical,
personal and professional conduct. The Group does not
tolerate corruption, bribery, extortion, money-laundering
and other fraudulent activities in connection with any of
our business operations.

The Group adopted a whistle-blowing system for reporting
any improprieties in financial reporting, internal control,
suspected or actual fraud or other matters. Whistleblower
can drop email directly to the Chairman of the audit
committee of the Board (“Audit Committee”). If they
prefer, they can choose to use an anonymous email
address to report the matters. This reporting channel will
also be posted in the Company’s Website.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee can call for a
meeting with the Board to investigate the reported
matters.

The Board may also decide whether the Group need to
engage external professional consultant or third to
regulations (including ICAC or Police, etc.) to deal with the
matters.

The Group is not aware of any potential or confirmed
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
Group or its employees during the year under review. No
whistleblowing disclosures were received during the
reporting period.

Community Investment

With the mission of “eliminating racial discrimination and
building a harmonious society”, the Group is committed
to reduce community conflicts. We prioritizes the
community interests in its business operations to facilitate
social integration.

The Group has actively implemented the concept of
“eliminating racial discrimination and building a
harmonious society” and invested in a charity movie
named “Our Days in 6E" (“FMEY6EIL") to facilitate the
social integration.
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The charity movie was shown in cinema in Hong Kong in
the year of 2017. In addition to promoting the awareness
of social integration through the movie, all of the revenue
generated (after deducting costs) will be donated to a
charity organization to help the ethnic minority and
vulnerable groups in Hong Kong.

The Group also supports employees to participate in
community development activities and encourages its
artists to participate in charity activities, such as
encouraging artists to participate in community activities in
their own name.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEEREE

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Board is pleased to present this corporate governance
report for the year ended 31 December 2017. This report
highlights the key corporate governance practices of the
Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Throughout the year 2017, the Company has adopted
and complied with all code provisions, where appropriate
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) with an aim of maximizing
the shareholders’ interest, enhancing the stakeholders’
transparency and accountability.

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with sound and
reasonable corporate governance practices and
procedures during the year ended 31 December 2017
discussed the below:

Code Provision A.1.1 (Board meetings)

. The Company held four regular Board meetings
during the year 2017.

Code Provision A.4.1 (Re-election of non-executive
directors)

o Non-executive Directors were appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. One Non-
executive Director was re-elected at the AGM held
in June 2017.

Code Provision A.5.1 (Establish a nomination
committee)

° The Company has established a Nomination
Committee with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and duties. The
Nomination Committee of the Company comprises
three independent Non-executive Directors and one
Non-executive Director which is chaired by the
Chairman of the Board.

Code Provision C.1.5 (Present annual and interim
reports)

o The Company announced the unaudited interim
report and audited annual report of the financial
year 2017. In addition, the Company also
announced the unaudited operational information for
the first and third quarters of the financial year
2017.
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Code Provision C.2.3 (Risk management and internal
control system review)

o The Company adopted a systematic and sustainable
risk management and internal control system during
the year under review. The Board reviews and
considers the nature and extent of significant risk in
its business and the external environment and the
scope and quality of management’s ongoing
monitoring of risks and of the internal control
system annually.

The other key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company are also outlined in this
corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with sound and
reasonable corporate governance practices and
procedures with an aim of maximizing the shareholders’
interests as well as to enhancing the stakeholders’
transparency and accountability. The Company had
adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company had also made
specific enquiry of all Directors, and the Directors
confirmed they have complied with the required standard
of dealings and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions during the year ended
31 December 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has a balanced composition of Executive and
Non-executive Directors which represents a mixture of
experts specializing in management, law, accounts and
finance. All Directors possess comprehensive
qualifications and experience as well as exposure to
diversified industries which are crucial to the growth of the
Group.

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, formulating and overseeing the Group’s business
strategies and monitoring the financial performance, risk
management and internal control of the Group’s business
and operations.
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To oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs, the
Board has established three Board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. The Board has delegated to the
Board Committees respectively to be responsible for
maintaining an appropriate financial reporting, risk
management and internal control system, reviewing its
directors’ remuneration policy and reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board. The details of each
Board Committee are set out in the section headed
“Board Committees” from page 56 to page 60 of this
annual report.

The Board has delegated the management to be
responsible for () the day-to-day management of the
Group’s businesses; (i) implementation of the strategies
approved by the Board; and (iii) providing all such
information to the Board as is necessary to enable the
Board to monitor the performance of the management.
The Board also gives clear directions to the management
team as to their powers of management, and
circumstances in which the management team should
report back.
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Board Composition EETER

Throughout the year and as at the date of this annual REARRAFRBEH EFTSHUTREIERR
report, the Board comprises two Non-executive Directors, TEE ZEZ2HPTESRNEEIERNTESH
three Executive Directors and four Independent Non- X

executive Directors as set out below:

Date of first appointment Date of last re-election

Name of Directors to the Board as Director
ESKE BREZEEESTENHEY RE-REEAESHEH
Non-executive Directors
HHNTEF
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman) 31 May 2010 29 June 2015
BT & (EE) —E-ZTFRA=+—8B Z—ET—HFNA-t+AIAH
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim (Resigned on 5 January 2018) 18 May 2009 29 June 2017
FHRAEEER_ZE-NF-—HABET —EEAFRA+=R ZZE—+tHFAZTNH
Dr. Lam Lee G. (Appointed on 30 June 2017) 30 June 2017 —
MREBELT(RZFT—EFAA=ZTHEZE) —E—tFXA=+H
Executive Directors
HITEF
Ms. Law Po Yee (Vice Chairperson) 5 August 2010 29 June 2015
BERLL(BFE) ZET-TFNARER ZZET—AFXAZT+NAH
Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Vice Chairperson) 25 March 2011 29 June 2017
AR £ (B E/E) —E-——%=A-+HHB Z—E—+E~A=-t+hH
Ms. Sin Ho Yee 25 March 2011 29 June 2017
Vi) K=k -gun —T——%=AZ+HH ZE—tHFXAZ+NAH
Independent Non-executive Directors
BIIHPTEE
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor 13 May 2009 24 June 2016
BR RS 58 A& —EENFERA+=H ZE-RNERAZ+THEA
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert 13 May 2009 24 June 2016
B E ZETNFHEA+T=R ZE-—XRES~AZTHEA
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick 3 February 2010 24 June 2016
HEBHE ZE-TF-A=HA ZE-R"FXAZTMHNH
Mr. Li Kit Chee 1 June 2014 29 June 2015
TR EE —ZEZ-NENA-B Z—E-AEXA-F+ANA
The biographical details of each of the Directors and the EEFCRERBESE2HEERWMB)ERAFRE
relationships between them (if any) are set out in the 26EBMEMIEEREE] &1 -

section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” from
page 26 to page 34 of this annual report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As required by Code Provision A.2.1 of Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules, the role of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual to ensure a clear
division between their respective independence and
accountability and to maintain a balance of power and
authority. The Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are currently Mr. Sin
Kwok Lam and Ms. Law Po Yee respectively.

The Chairman of the Company, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, is
responsible for formulating the long-term strategies of the
Company and overseeing its overall business
development. The Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, Ms. Law Po Yee, focuses on implementing the
Company’s business strategies and policies approved and
delegated by the Board and overseeing the Company’s
day-to-day operations.

Non-executive Directors

Under Code Provision A.4.1 of Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules, Non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
Each of the existing Non-executive Directors has been
appointed by the Company for a specific term of two
years and is subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws”).

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
complied with Rules 5.05 and 5.08 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Company appointed four
Independent Non-executive Directors and with at least one
of them having appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board is responsible for the appointment of any
potential new Directors and the nomination of Directors
for re-election by shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting (the “AGM”). In accordance with
the Bye-laws, the Directors shall have the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board, whom is subject to
retirement and re-election in accordance with the Bye-
laws.
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All Executive Directors are engaged on service contracts
with the Company for a term of three years.

The Company has also entered into a letter of
appointment or reappointment with each of the Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors for a term of two years subject to retirement,
re-election and removal in accordance with the Bye-laws.

In accordance with Bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first general meeting of
shareholders of the Company after his/her appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to the Bye-law 84(1) and 84(2) of the Bye-laws,
at each AGM one third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Such retiring Directors shall be
eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
in respect of legal action against the Directors.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

Directors’ ongoing training is very important to the
maintenance of high corporate governance standards in
the Company. The Company adopted a policy on
Induction of and Continuous Professional Development to
encourage all Directors to update themselves, on a
continuous basis, on developments in the statutory and
regulatory regime and changes in the business and
market environment in which the Group operates to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities and
obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

To assist the Directors in continuing their professional
development, the Company recommends that they
regularly attend relevant seminars and courses at the
expenses of the Company and the Directors are required
to provide the Company with his/her annual training
record to ensure the enhancement of their knowledge and
skill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017, all Directors have BHE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HLFE 28=F
participated in the continuous professional developments EHELUEUETSEAZERNER B2 2B
in relation to regulatory updates, duties and BHBERAEEEB  HETERREY &
responsibilities of the Directors and the business of the BT

Group in the following manner:

Types of
Name of Directors Training

EEfs sl E R

Non-executive Directors

FHITEF

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman) A&B
BB A (/)

Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim (Resigned on 5 January 2018) A&B
FHREEER_ZE-NF-HOABET

Dr. Lam Lee G. (Appointed on 30 June 2017) A&B
MEBELT(RZTE-—tFA=ZTHEZE)

Executive Directors

HITEF

Ms. Law Po Yee (Vice Chairperson) A&B
RERRL(BFE)

Mr. Chow Kai Weng (Vice Chairperson) A&B
B & 5k (B F )

Ms. Sin Ho Yee A&B
Vi Ki=R e

Independent Non-executive Directors

BIHPTEE

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor A&B

BRR %4

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert A&B
HEEE

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick A&B

HREEHE

Mr. Li Kit Chee A&B

T2 R E

Remarks: Bt -

A: Attending internal briefing session in relating to corporate A: 2MBEBECEERANNIHRS H
governance

B: Reading materials in relation to regulatory update B: HMEEHEEEEZRFTMENER
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Directors’ Responsibilities For Financial Reporting in
Respect of the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017, the Directors have consistently
selected and applied appropriate accounting policies and
standards, make judgments and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable, and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to the events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. The Board therefore continues to
adopt the going concern approach in preparing the
accounts.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company
regarding its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report
on page 105 to 111 of this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance and to
enhance the function of the Board, three Board
Committees namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
have been established. Each Board Committee was
established with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authority and duties and are reviewed
from time to time.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board was established in
2002 with its written terms of reference in compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee currently comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
(Chairman), Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong Lung
Tak Patrick and Mr. Li Kit Chee.

The Company has complied with Rules 5.28 of the GEM
Listing Rules that the Audit Committee must comprise a
minimum of 3 members, have at least one of whom is an
Independent Non-executive Director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise and be chaired by an
Independent Non-executive Director.
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The primarily duties of the Audit Committee are to: (i)
make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of
its resignation or dismissal; (i) review and monitor the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems; and (i) review of the
Company'’s financial information.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit
Committee held five meetings for the reviewing of the
Group’s annual, half-yearly and quarterly results,
assessing and evaluating of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management procedures and internal control
system. The Audit Committee has also made
recommendations to the Board on the reappointment of
the external auditor after reviewing the scope of services
offered and the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor. The attendance record of these
meetings are set out in the section headed “Board and
Committees Meetings and Attendance” on page 59 to 60
of this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was
established in 2005 with its written terms of reference in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. Pursuant to
Rule 5.34 to the GEM Listing Rules, the Remuneration
Committee currently comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
(Chairman), Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong Lung
Tak Patrick and Mr. Li Kit Chee.

The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include: (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
Group’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
management remuneration and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (i) reviewing and determining the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments; and (i) ensuring that none
of the Directors or their associates will involve in deciding
his own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
adopted the approach under Code Provision B.1.2(c)(ii) to
make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Directors and the management of the
Company.
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Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year
under review are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements contained in this annual report.

During the vyear ended 31 December 2017, the
Remuneration Committee held two meetings in relation to
the overall remuneration policy and structure and making
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and the
management in assessing their performance and approval
of the relevant terms of service contracts; and reviewed
the proposed director’s fee of Dr. Lam Lee G. and
recommended the same to the Board for approval. The
attendance record of the meeting is set out in the section
headed “Board and Committees Meetings and
Attendance” on page 59 to 60 of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was
established in 2012 with its written terms of reference in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises one Non-executive
Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman), Mr. Chan Tin Lup
Trevor, Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick and Mr Li Kit Chee.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee are
mainly (i) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board
regarding the identification of suitable, qualified individuals
for selection and appointment as Directors; (ii) to assess
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company; and (jii) to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment or re-
designation of, and succession planning for, Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy in
September 2013 concerning diversity of the Board. Under
this policy, the diversity of the Board is considered in
terms of factors such as gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments are based on merit, and candidates
are considered against various objective criteria, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Nomination Committee discusses and determines the
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the
Board and recommends the same to the Board for
adoption on an annual basis. The Nomination Committee
will review the policy on a regular basis and will discuss
any revision that may be required, and recommend any
proposed changes to the Board for approval.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Nomination Committee held two meetings and (i) reviewed
the structure, size, composition and the diversity policy of
the Board; (i) assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors; (iii) reviewed the
training and continuous professional development of
Directors; and (iv) evaluated Directors’ time commitment
and the contribution required from the Directors to
discharge their responsibilities; and (v) reviewed the
biography of Dr. Lam Lee G. and recommended it to the
Board for approval in relation to the appointment of him
as a Non-executive Director. The attendance record of the
meeting is set out in the section headed “Board and
Committees Meetings and Attendance” on page 59 to 60
of this annual report.

Board and Committees Meetings and Attendance

The Board is scheduled to meet at least four times each
year on a quarterly basis to discuss the Group’s business
development, operations and financial performance.
Notices of not less than 14 days in advance together with
the formal agenda are addressed to all Directors for all
regular board meetings. For additional Board meetings
which require discussion and resolution of significant
issues arising from the operation of the Company, notice
is given in a reasonable time in advance. To enable the
Directors to make informed decisions, the Board papers
together with all appropriate and relevant materials and
information in relation to the matters to be discussed and
considered at the Board meeting are sent to all Directors.
Proper minutes of Board meetings and Committees
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary of the
Company. Draft minutes are normally circulated to
Directors for comments and records respectively within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version
is open for inspection on reasonable notice by any
Directors.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board
meetings, the Board Committees meetings and general
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2017 is set

out in the following table:

RBE-E—+t5+-A=+—BItFE &%
FREEFOEY EFZECUARKEAS
ZRERIIMT -

Remuneration Audit Nomination
Board Committee Committee = Committee General
Name of Directors Meetings Meeting Meetings Meeting Meeting
£FE FNESE BERZZEE REBZEE
EERA =f Ef F-f Bk BEXE
Executive Directors HITEF
Ms. Law Po Yee BERLT

(Vice Chairperson) (B E£5) 7/7 — — — —
Mr. Chow Kai Weng AR R A&

(Vice Chairperson) (Bl F ) 7/7 — — — 1/2
Ms. Sin Ho Yee b K =g 7/7 - - - 1/2
Non-executive Directors H#77E F
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam 5 B 5 A

(Chairman) (F/E) 5/7 - - 1/1 2/2
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim 265 3t 58 A&

(Resigned on (R=ZZE—N\F—

5 January 2018) AERBBE)

(Note 1) (B 5E1) 6/7 - - - 2/2
Dr. Lam Lee G. MREE L+

(Appointed on (RZZT—EFX

30 June 2017) A=Z+REZT)

(Note 2) (B 5%2) 2/7 - - - -
Independent Non- BUHHTEE

executive Directors
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor [& K754 6/7 2/2 5/5 2/2 2/2
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert £ &1 %4 6/7 2/2 5/5 — 2/2
Prof. Wong Lung Tak HEBEHRE

Patrick 6/7 2/2 5/5 2/2 2/2
Mr. Li Kit Chee Tz EAE 6/7 2/2 5/5 2/2 2/2
Total number of FHRAH

meeting(s) 7 2 5 2 2
Note 1: Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim resigned as a Non-executive B EET FHRAELTERZZE-NF-ARBHMER

Director on 5 January 2018. NEERITESE -
Note 2: Dr. Lam Lee G. was appointed as a Non-executive BfaE2 : MREBLR _ZT—tFEA=1+HEZ

EARRBERITES - At - HENE
E_ET—+tEF+_A=Z+—BLEFEEHE

MRAEEEEH -

Director of the Company on 30 June 2017.
Therefore, he only attended two board meetings for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

nd Culture Group Limited ElEREXLEMERAA
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions performed by the
Board include: (i) formulating and reviewing the corporate
governance policies and practices of the Company; (ii)
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and the
management; (i) reviewing and monitoring the policies
and practices of the Company in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulatory requirements; (iv) developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors; and (v) reviewing the compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code by the Company and the
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

On 27 December 2017, Mr. Luk Ho Lun (“Mr. Luk”)
resigned his position as the Company Secretary of the
Company and Ms. Sun Shui (“Ms. Sun”) was appointed as
the Company Secretary of the Company. Ms. Sun was
nominated by ComSec Team Limited (“ComSec Team”) to
assume such office and ComSec Team has been
providing certain corporate secretarial services to the
Company pursuant to an engagement letter entered into
between the Company and ComSec Team. Ms. Sun is
not a full time employee of the Company. The primary
person at the Company with whom Ms. Sun has been
contacting in respect of company secretarial matters is
the Financial Controller of the Company.

Mr. Luk was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in
October 2015. Mr. Luk is an Accredited General Mediator
of Hong Kong Mediation Accreditation Association Limited
and Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre, a
Certified Fraud Examiner of Association of Certified Fraud
Examiners (United States), a member of Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators (United Kingdom). Mr. Luk obtained
a Bachelor Degree of Laws (with Honors) and a
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from City University of
Hong Kong, and a Master Degree of Laws from the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Luk has over 4 vyears’
experience in legal and corporate secretary area.

Ms. Sun is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Sun obtained an
Honours Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
University of Lincoln, a Master of Corporate Governance
degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
Juris Doctor degree from City University of Hong Kong.
Ms. Sun has over 15 years’ experience in corporate
secretarial, corporate governance and compliance
matters.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board has
access to the advice and services of Mr. Luk (before
27 December 2017) and Ms. Sun (from 27 December
2017) at all time in accordance with Code Provision F.1.4
of Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. Both Mr. Luk
and Ms. Sun has taken no less than 15 hours of
professional training during the vyear under review
pursuant to the Rule 5.15 of GEM Listing Rules.

THE AUDITORS

The Company engaged HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited (“HLB”) as the external auditors for the financial
year ended 31 December 2017. HLB is independent and
there are no relationships between HLB and the Company
that are likely to impair its independence. The roles and
responsibilities of HLB are stated in the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 105 to 111 of this annual
report.

The fees paid/payable to HLB, the independent auditors,
in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2017 are analyzed below:

Type of services provided by the independent auditors

EE2gRIEGEM E T 4R BI M 8x152 57 B 1§ XX 5
FAMERI R ERELE(R-_ZE—tF+=A
—ttBHEMFELRE(BE T —+tF+_A
“t+EERBR)NERRRE -REEFENRN - EL
S RERLTHEBEGEM R B E5.1516% %
TNLRI5 R B EEZ I -

% B Hil

AARIERBREerMmEEMER AR (A
EFEE—ZEZ—+E+-_A=+—BLHHREE
ZONEB X BT c EIATB M A A A E BRI A EAK
AR ECWAEEEERE YT ENER BEN
BEEREEEHIARAFRFIGE1E 2 BILZ
BRI R & -

RBEZZ—+F+ZA=Z+—BILFE B
A7 BED B AT ER ¢ 2 AT AR TS M SE B AT AR IE 1 XX
/NN BEBRIMMT

Fees paid/payable

BARBMIREMNRBEES Eft EBEHERAE
HKS$
BT

Audit services EiT R 1,118,000

Non-audit services IEEZIRTE

— Other — Hitp 35,500

TOTAL: &5 1,153,500
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing
the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of such systems through the Audit
Committee. The Group’s risk management framework sets
out the process of identification, evaluation and
management of the principal risks affecting the business,
please refer to “Risk Management Report” of this annual
report for detail. The Group’s system of internal control is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage and eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems and fulfiment of the business objectives. The
internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis
by the Board in order to make it practical and effective in
providing reasonable assurance in relation to protection of
material assets and shareholders’ interests.

Internal Control Policies

The Group’s internal control has put in place by the
Board, management, and other personnel of the Group,
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
achievement of objectives in the following categories:

° Effectiveness and efficiency of operations
° Reliability of financial reporting
° Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

In the Group, the internal control covers every activity and
transaction, while the Group emphasized that everyone is
an important part of internal control systems. The internal
control policies of the Group comprises five aspects:

. Separation of Duties

Separation of duties involves splitting responsibility
of particular experienced employees for personnel
administration, planning, performance monitoring,
marketing and accounting and requiring critical
tasks to be reviewed by the management of the
Group.

o Access Control

Controlling access to different parts of data and/or
system via passwords, lockouts and electronic
access logs can keep unauthorized users out of the
data and/or system while access tracking can also
serve to deter attempts at fraudulent access in the
first place.
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. Approval Authority

Requiring specific managers to authorize certain
types of transactions such as large amount orders,
significant transaction, etc and approval for
particular activities such as recruitment, marketing
plans, large payments and expenses, etc to prevent
unscrupulous employees from making large
fraudulent transactions.

o Documentations

Standardizing documents used for particular
activities (e.g. Hotel room reservation form, petty
cash claim form, administration memo, etc) to
maintain consistency in record keeping over time.
Using standard document formats can make it
easier to review past records when searching for
the source of a discrepancy in the system.

o Internal Audiit

Internal audits include test on the Group’s operating
procedures, documents examination, hand-counting
cash and any physical assets tracked, etc to
oversee the effectiveness of the internal controls.

As the corporate and operation structure of the Group is
not complex and a separate internal audit department
may divert resources of the Group, the Company
currently does not have an internal audit department.
However, the Group has engaged an independent third
party internal control consultant to, on an annual basis,
review and provide recommendations on improving its
internal control system in order to manage our business
risks and to ensure our smooth operation. The review
covered certain operational procedures. No significant
control failings or weakness have been identified by the
consultant during the review.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board
considered the risk management and internal control
systems effective and adequate. No significant areas of
concern that might affect shareholders were identified.

It should be acknowledged that the Group’s risk
management and Internal control system are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives at the reasonable level, but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal control for the
handling and dissemination of price-sensitive information,
the Company is aware of its obligations under Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Law of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) and the GEM Listing
Rules and has established the inside information/price-
sensitive information disclosure policy (the “Disclosure
Policy”) with close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure
of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Future
Commission of Hong Kong.

The Disclosure Policy includes, among other things:

(i) only designated persons are authorised to
communicate the Company’s corporate matters with
investors, analysts, the media or other members of
the investment community;

(i) Directors shall report to the Chief Executive Officer
any potential/suspected inside information as soon
as practicable for him to consult (if appropriate) the
Board thereafter for determining the nature of
developments, and if required, making appropriate
disclosure;

(i) disclosure of inside information must be made in a
manner that can provide for equal, timely and
effective access by the public to the disclosed
inside information;

(iv)  inside information must be kept strictly confidential
until a public announcement is made and shall be
disseminated in accordance with the requirements
of the SFO and the GEM Listing Rules before it is
released via other channels.

CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

There is no any changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2017.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and
transparent communication with all shareholders which
enables shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decision and to have better understanding on
the Group’s business performance and strategies. The
Board also believes that it is vital for developing and
maintaining continuing investor relations with the
Company’s potential and existing investors.
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The Company maintains a website at “www.nationalarts.hk”
as a communication platform with all Shareholders and
investors, where the Group’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public
access.

The Board considers general meetings of the Company as
an important channel for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board and will endeavor to be available at the
meetings to answer any questions raised by shareholders
of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure shareholders’
interest. To do so, the Company maintains on-going
dialogues with shareholders and encourage their
participation in the AGM or other general meetings.
Notice of meeting containing agenda, proposed
resolutions and proxy form are sent to registered
shareholders by post. All shareholders are entitled to
attend annual and special general meetings, provided that
their names are registered in the register of members of
the Company on the record date which is used to
determine the entitlement to attend a meeting.

According to the Bye-laws, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company, to require a special general meeting (“SGM”) to
be called by the Board, provided that such requisition
properly states the object(s) and deposited at the
registered office of the Company for the attention of the
Company Secretary, and be verified with and confirmed
by the Company’s share registrar that such requisition is
proper and in order.
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The SGM shall be held within 2 months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) or any of them representing more than
one-half of their total voting rights may do so, but any
SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of 83 months from the date of deposit of the requisition. A
meeting convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be
convened in the same manner as if the meeting was
convened by the Board.

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of registered shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100
registered shareholders, can request the Company in
writing to (i) provide shareholders entitled to receive
notice of the next general meeting with notice of any
resolution(s) which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting; and (ii) circulate to
shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meetings any statement(s) in not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolutions or other businesses to be dealt with at that
meeting. A requisition signed by all the requisitionist(s)
with a sum sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant
expenses shall be deposited at the registered office of the
Company not less than six weeks in case of a requisition
requiring a notice of resolution(s) or before the meeting. If
an AGM is called for on a date six weeks or less after the
deposit of such requisition, such requisition, through not
deposited within the required time period, shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purpose
thereof.

Enquiries from shareholders

Shareholders’ enquiries regarding their shareholdings
should be directed to the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited. Other enquiries from shareholders
can be directed to the Company whose contact details
are shown on page 4 of this annual report.
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To ensure the long-term growth and achieve the Group’s
strategic objectives, an effective risk management takes
an essential and important role. Since 2016, the Group
adopted a systematic and sustainable approach in order
to provide a clear responsibility and accountability
structure for risk management.

The Group’s risk management framework clearly stated
the role of the Board, Audit Committee, managerial
officers of the Company (the “Management”) and business
unit and their own responsibilities to risk management.
The aim is to identify risks and then manage them so that
they can be understood, reduced, mitigated or avoided.
The Group’s Risk Management Report was presented to
the Board for review in December 2017.
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THE GROUP’S RISK A £ Y L B AR P R A
MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group’s risk management framework and its own AEEMRREBEELEESNEMR:
responsibilities:

The Group’s risk management framework FREMEREERE

Top-down approach:
The Board Evaluate and monitor the strategic

e Board Oversight risk to achieve the Group’s goals

e Goal Formulation BT

AR R EEREREIEER - UEBRAE
NSRS

Audit Committee
* Independent Assurance

BEZEST

* B %8

Risk escalation and
assurance
BEEARREE The Management
Risk Reporting and
Communication
Risk and Control Oversight
Function

Guidelines, role and
& 1 B responsibilities
. 3 B REE

o RlfR K BE % B R MR

Business unit/individuals
e Risk and Control Ownership
¢ Mitigating Plans

EBEM EA
o [@ 2 %J@ﬁ%f
° % =1+ 2

Bottom-up approach:
Identification and prioritization of all material risk by cross functional workshop

BTmLE:
BRI XBETIEDBNRRESESHIMEERNRAR
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The Group’s Risk Management Responsibilities

1.

The Board is responsible to:

Formulate the annual business objectives,
planning and decision making at the strategic
level;

Oversee management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management framework and approve risk
appetite. Meeting with Audit Committee and
the Management to ensure the risk
management framework is maintained
appropriately and effectively.

Audit Committee is responsible to:

Oversee the Group’s overall risk assessment
along with the effectiveness of the risk
controls and mitigation process and identify
all material risks that may impact the
achievement of the Group’s business
objectives;

Review the risk reports and breaches of risk
tolerances and policies, and discuss with the
Management in relation to the selected risks
for more detailed review. Summarise the
material risk and circulate to the Board.

The Management is responsible to:

Review the risk management process
regularly, and report on the key risks and
consider common risks across the Group.
The Group Risk Management Report shall be
prepared and submitted to the Audit
Committee;

Identify the Group’s financial risks and non-
financial risks, including strategic reputational,
regulatory, operational risk and rank the risk
with reference to their own materiality and
circumstances. Risk register shall be
established;

Establish various policies, procedures and
guidelines with defined authority for effective
segregation in relation to the risk
management and established an effective
communication channel to report on any
malpractice and unethical conduct. The
training programme is arranged for the
Group’s employee regularly to ensure their
understanding of the Group’s business
objective and their own duties.
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4. Business units are responsible to: 4. EBEBEMNEE:

i Carry out risk management activities in day- i BREZEHENRITERRES
to-day operation in their areas of CEHEZEABRPRTBREAEAN
responsibility, making effective risk g BEEED  FHAMMERE R
management processes and mitigating plans BFREFETE

in accordance with good practices and
guidelines established by the Management;

i Reporting any malpractice and unethical i, ERANEBMANTRMTERTBEST
conduct within the Group without fear of B MBEREBREIZE  KEH®
reprisal and victimization, and discuss with the BB E IR K] R 2R E IR TR o
Management on any difficulties in relation to ARUEBELNRRERRS  WE
the risk management on a timely basis. RTERE -

Business Unit Risk Management Reports shall
be prepared and submitted to the
Management.
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The Group’s Risk Management Process

The Group’s risk management process consists of five major phases: 1) Establishing the risk context; 2) Identifying
risks; 3) Risk assessment and evaluation; 4) Developing control and mitigation plans; 5) Risk reporting and
monitoring, covering the business and decision-making processes including strategy formulation, business
development and planning, capital allocation, investment decisions and day-to-day operation:

FREMEREERRF

AEBNRBREEEFEJRAABR: VRERBRE R &M ER ARG - 46 EEERFETS : 5)E
BRMERER REEBRRKERERF  BREAIETERE EBERERAIY B0 REARTLEELE:

1). Establishing the risk o Risk reference tables for the Group were established and updated by
context the business units and reviewed by the Management regularly.
RERBER

EBBEUR/AKERIREHARSER UHEREETHEH -

° The Management sets a common risk language to avoid any conflicting
terminology or confusion.

BEEERE-—MREABRES BRERTAERFARIES

2). Identifying risks o In annual business planning process, divisions and departments are
a5k Bl /2 B required to identify all material risks that may impact their
achievement of business objectives.

E2EXBREBREST  DHBRAFIEIN TR EHLEREKA
RHMAEXRRER

o Divisions and departments identify the risks at the business unit level
and the Management identifies the risks including financial and non-
financial risk at the Group level.

DEHEEBPIERNEBELEmNRLR ERERNEEERNTE
KRR TS R o

nd Culture Group Limited ElEREXLEMERAA
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3). Risk assessment and
evaluation

[ B 5F £

Divisions and departments assess and score the risk identified along
with their impact on the business and the likelihood of their
occurrence.

7 8B B &P PI&F 1 B 5F 18 A7 2 Bl 0 [ B
HEH) AT BEME ©

CARESEBNRZERHEE

The Management shall ensure project risk for each investment project
be assessed in detail and properly documented.

BIEERERILE
RIS -

E®REFEBETHANIEL RRFGE  LZET

The risks identified in the annual business planning process and/or in
each investment planning process are evaluated based on the same
set of risk profiling criteria as the quarterly risk review process.

E2FEBRIBRED R/ LESEREREBIED A ERORR
RiEEFEZRREHBENR —ERR DT ELFG -

4). Developing control and
mitigation plans

i % B 4 R AT AR T B

The Management reviews the effectiveness of the risk management
process and approves the mitigation plans.
EREERAEREREFNE R R EFETE -

Divisions and departments identify risk and then processes the

mitigating plans in accordance with good practices and guidelines
established by the Management.

“%&%WL%A@F%ﬂEMEﬁ%ﬁ&h%
i E A7 A -

sk Bl B B - R 1R

5). Risk reporting and
monitoring

ARBERER

Emerging risks and/or overarching strategic risks, which may have a
material impact on the Group over a longer timeframe, are monitored
and discussed on a quarterly basis by the Audit Committee and the
Board.

HEKEHERKE REENEELEARREN S XSHREBERX
EAFE RAAKREERZECRETEERNEBTETIR

The Board established a communication channel including bottom-up
and top-down review process across the Group.

EFxgtIERBRE
BB o

CERHASEERETATMEEALEMT

Business units prepared the quarterly Business Unit Risk Management
Report and submitted to the Management. The Management reviews
the Business Unit Risk Management Report and highlights the
material risk in the Group Risk Management Report and submits to
the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

FEBENREFEXGEURAREEREWERTERE -T2E
BEENEBECRRERRE  REREHEIRRERRS D
MBERRER ITEXTFTEXZES -
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Material Risks of the Group FEEMERAR

In 2017, the Group adopted the ERM System in the RIE—tF FAEERACERBRERSE
identification and analysis of existing and emerging risks LRI R DT AEEMNEREEREMELERE
to the business strategy planning and business WIRBERFEKRRE  BEELE FEREER
development of the Group including: Business, strategic S MERAKRIEEERR TRANTCERRKRE
and regulatory risks, Financial risk and Operational risk. BHRENRBEENERE  NVAEEERSE R
The ERM System adopted was compiled to cover: 1) the EEBPHNEARAR MO)EEFEEEED L
material risks of the Group in both existing and new WEARNRRAEREITEI T B REEE - a0

business; and 2) associated action plans and controls
designed to mitigate the material risks, where applicable,
at appropriate levels:

Risk Description Risk Mitigations
L B 4t LB 4T 4R IR Tk

Business, strategic and regulatory risks: They are the risks in relation to the impact from the market environments,

changes of corporate structure, non-compliance of regulatory, rules or laws and the strategy planning of the

Group. These risks included longer-term risks for the upcoming 3-5 year and are reviewed by Audit Committee

quarterly and documented in the Group’s Risk Management Report.

X% FBRETRAR WEDETIHRE AFEREY BEREERTE RASCEERASE KBRS ME
TEEHANRAR ZEEREERKIESFHRARR AEZZESETEHNRESERREB®RE PR

ER-

Failure to react to rapid growth of online activities *  Inthe film production segment, the Group plans to
(Online threat) introduce various elements e.g. Computer

Graphics Technologies, Virtual Reality, etc. and
The continuous and rapid growth of online activities invest in online TV programme, micro movies, etc.
including digital media and online marketing further drives to cope with the high demands in online market.
changes in business behavior while altering the entire MEBEEENE KREBFESIATRABIITE -
competitive landscape, especially in the PRC. PlanEEREN EHRESS URENLE

REPE  MEXLE UWEHE LTHHHERTFR -
KRB HERERRHPALEH (RLEB) . The Group uses variety of online media e.g.

Facebook, Instagram etc. to establish
communication channel with existing and new
customers. In the meantime, the Group
cooperates with other online media to put more
focus on marketing efforts to attract target
customers.

KEBEF AR HE EEEE - tiFacebook
Instagram® * LB KM E PRBRES
B AR NEEEEME FEESE BT
EFRMELZEHER-

Non-compliance with Corporate Governance Code *  In 2017, the Group has continuously improved and
enhanced the enterprise risk management

WLEDHERRMER BRE BBEEERALEH
E-—TRELHITARE ARNEEEARFERRE &
Bl EEPE -

With effect from 1 Janual’y 201 6, the Stock EXChange has framework and Strengthened a range of guide”ne’
amended its Corporate Governance Code relating to risk procedures and policies for employees across the
management. Insufficient employee’s risk awareness and Group to comply with the amendments and
risk management technique may result in non-compliance further adjustments are being made to relevant
issue. processes to ensure timely compliance.
RIZE—+tF AEEELBERERRSEMCEA
EEELRTHER BERRE M — RIS TR
St N 2 [ A B R S o . e o
Bz A5— B BEFEOEBRERER oo o EE IS IR e
MEXERTR -BEINERERARAREERG TR s E
&

BR
A BEEBUE R & -
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Risk Description

I, B 4 it

Risk Mitigations
[ B 4F 4B 1R B

Product Competitiveness

The Group is well known for operating the Xigiao National
Arts Studio Project including film shooting areas, theme
parks, etc. in Foshan City. However, some of the tourists
may raise their attention to the theme park with similar
nature nearby which got the national AAAA level tourist
attractions identity since August 2016.

AEBEGILTEENOARLUEZZRBERES &
FRMBEMESN  TEARSE - A B TIRE AL
EMEEMOEBEUAEENTIERAE RS rEA -
T-RNFNAEEFESBEFIARIRESE

° To enhance the competitiveness of Xigiao National
Arts Studio Project, the Group has continuously
enriched the festival events and entertainment
programs, cooperated with resourceful companies
to jointly organize or/and develop a series of
unique projects such as 24-hour Ultra Marathon,
Superhero Orienteering Competition, Super Hero
Orienteering Run, Candy Kingdom and Dreamy
Windmill Festival 2017 etc. in 2017.
RESAKBLEEZRWBANGF N K&5H
THE2EEEEHEHMREBEMHANDY - WK
ERBEENRRAE HRAHBS RER—F
FIRMBHEE WBE4NEE BHREETH
i R T ERMEE 201755 -

° Meanwhiles the Group planned to launch the
second phase of construction project in 2018 to
expand both indoor and outdoor shooting bases
and enhance the filming ancillary facilities.
HFEE AEEEFEAR_Z-N\FEFRB_H
HE BRZEZENBEN 2RNEER RE
MBEERE -

° The Group has become the first nominated
corporation to assist the State Administration of
Press, Publication, Radio, Film and Television of
Foshan City in the operation and expansion of
digital studios and shooting bases establishment
and movie prop equipment leasing service etc.
after Foshan Municipal People’s Government
announced its “Foshan City Support Policies for
Film and Television Industry Development” on
1 August 2017. As such, the Group will benefit
from the supportive policies and actively invite
different film and television companies to settle in
Foshan with the provision of the Group’s film and
television services so as to effectively expand the
Group’s customer base in different areas and
increase the reputation of the Group in the
industry.
REBKAEBLUTARBNR-_ZE—tFN\A
—BAEMUBILT KRBT REZFERONE TER)
AR - BEGCEXBIERUBEIGHILTXEESE
TEEREEERTREGESN EXESY
RIER FREEARMEESEK -SEKXE
RERFFBUR - B TR A B E 6L TR
PREREENZERE - L BEE B SEE
HRIAAFTEHNEFH REERESHEE -

Financial risks: They are multiple types of risk associated with financing, including financial transactions. Financial
risk is one of the major concerns of the Group across different fields and geographies. The Group reviewed the
financial performance and assessed these risks before and after making each investment decision. The Group’s
risk management report in relation to these risks was prepared and reviewed on quarterly basis.

MR ERE(BESeRRSZ)HANZEREER HBEEARAREEETARE BN EZMBEL —
AEERNUBRRERMNMEESEKREREARAETZEA R AEEHRZEARZEAREERERTETE —

RAETT R R ER -
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Risk Description

1, B 4 2t

Risk Mitigations
[ B 4F 4B 1R B

Highly Dependent on Debt Financing

The repayment of the debts and the payment of the
relevant interest as a result of the financing by issuing
bonds, convertible bonds, shareholder’s loan with an
regular interest payment may put pressure to the Group’s
cash flow.

The Group passed a resolution at the special
general meeting held on 6 April 2017 under which
the Directors were granted a specific conditional
mandate to allot, issue and deal with Shares for
fund raising purpose. Substitution of debt
financing with equity financing can effectively
reduce debt interest payments and improve the

Group’s cash flow.
EEGEEBME AEBMA-—T—LFNAANHRTHREERA
IO ERAMERAZE BUHEREREMEE MU
ERTIES  TARES  REARRE ML EARERT . B B E R o F
B AESHEERBRINARNEHAREORS BEBRMATARALZIHEBFH S ARS A%
TIEME S o BREESRE
° The Group is in discussion with the Directors in
relation to the interest repayment of the
shareholder’s loan, convertible bond and
promissory note by the way of issuing new shares
instead of cash payments.
REBBEREE=RETN S FHEEERRE
oA MRES RAEALREZANE  LETHR
MERIRE XM e

=

Foreign Currency Risk Associated with the Groups . Maintain current currency matching practices of

revenue, cost and debt.

HFREB AR E IS AR REHEBHEE ML
Project level debts to be denominated in and/or
swapped into functional currency where possible.
e E B AER /S EBRAEEE (HER)
BWIEBER -

investments

The Group’s foreign currency risk remains low through
currency matching practices of revenue, cost and debt.

RASEREFHANINERR

FRRMY NG RARBEEEHEAY h . KeEdy °© Adopt hedging transaction in line with the Group
N FE [ B 4 15 8 K T o Treasury Policy, where applicable, at appropriate
B levels.
BWTHERNEBERBRNBEKTFERZS (M
WA e

Operational risks: They are the risks of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events. The Group considered that these risks are closely related to good and quality
management. In view of that, the Group has set up an effective internal control system. Details on Internal Control
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 49 to 67 of this annual report.

KgeERR  AANERERF BIRERIRHRIMEIIKREEMESL AEERARZSERARERFILSESERE
A - ﬁ%ﬁ%b REEERIABRANMBEZERLG - NEEENFE %zﬁéﬂiﬁiﬁ%mimﬁﬂﬁmi BV ©
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Risk Description

I, B 4 it

Risk Mitigations
[ B 4F 4B 1R B

Recruitment, staff retention and training

Film and service industries in the PRC are developing
rapidly, and demand for talent has increased
substantially. New technologies emerged yet there is a
lack of relevant external training. The Group may face
shortages and losses in human resources and
technology.

BE -KES T RIR

TREZRRETELARER  HATFRINA S8
£ o #7 EL T 3R B R = AR R SN AR o AN 5K B Sk
ANEREEMZIERRERX -

The Group recognizes that young people play an
important role in its future success, and it is
essential to attract them to join the Group and
encourage them to develop their career with the
Group. The Group shifts the focus towards
recruiting fresh graduates and develop a range of
training programmes to cultivate home grown
talents for the future management pipeline.
REERSFEAHBEMOREKIIERESE
BPARSIFEAMAREB RSB ERAEE
BREFX -AEEKELEBRERBRESRSE
ERFE-RINKRIBEEAFERN DAL ERR
BEIE o

The Group held a series of activities for employees
(e.g. Chinese New Year Celebration, Annual
Dinner, etc) and provides Employee Discount
Program with an aim to enhance the staff’s sense
of belonging to the Group and to establish a
good working relationship with the management.
REBREERT—FRIED(WERPRHEE
ME - FEBRES) RMRERESTNER  URES
BEIRAEENEERIETEERY RIFBIE -

Failure of Infrastructure project

The business of the Group in the PRC (including hotel,
film shooting base, cinema) grows rapidly. The Group may
be exposed to infrastructure risks, including weak local
management team structure, inexperience of staff and
inadequate systems, etc.

F o Y 3 85 3% R

AEERTECER(BREGE EXMHEEL  EX0MK)
RRER - AKEIEHRERERAR  BEAMERE
EGRERS BIRBRTIRERAGTIRESE -

Tailored training programmes covering
management, customers service, financial, etc are
offered with support from Hong Kong head office
to enhance employees’ capability and to improve
personal performance.

ERRRAENXFE RHEEFEMNEIIE
B -URSEEEHIREAARR-

Management of Hong Kong head office will travel
to the PRC office for experience sharing and an
effective communication channel was established
between Hong Kong head office and the PRC
office for reporting and enquiry.
BERERARZERERETPEANERIELRR
MmO BERARAIRTEREE MELERER
REBUMEREREH -
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The Group understands that to be a successful business, AEBERMNEBEEY —HKIIEEMSHRAH
risk management is very important. In 2018, the Group BR-R-_ZT-—NF AEEHFEBE(RFEETR
will continue to (including but not limited to): n

— Improve and enhance the risk management — HERRESEBEBEERRNIT  WERAR
framework and its implementation to ensure AEREERTRAIREMBERER -
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
and other applicable regulations.

—  Offer risk awareness training programme to the PRC —  MPEBRBEFAGTIEHERE#RIZIIER
existing and new business and continue to review R E R R WE‘B%&%%FE’J%@ M o
the effectiveness of the Internal Control System in
the PRC.

Tﬁ&%i@ﬁﬁi#ztitlﬁiﬁ&/iﬂ\iﬂi%%)ﬂ :
LMIHEJ—L B B A N B TR A B

— Seek for opportunities to provide both internal and/ —
or external training for the employees to enhance
their risk awareness and risk management

technique.
It should be acknowledged that the Group’s risk EOLSR AEE E’JJ—L B IR EE R A BOAE
management focuses on the risk detection, reducing, and /}ﬁé B REEREREAEKT RERKER

jz%aé‘i{‘ﬁﬁjr#%ﬁi‘lﬁ’ﬂ%%‘f °

avoidance to the reasonable level but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

On behalf of the Board AEEZMm

National Arts Entertainment HEREILEBFRAT
and Culture Group Limited ,ss/EE/% HITEFFTHAE

Law Po Yee ﬁgﬁ’.

Vice Chairperson and Executive Director AR ZE-N\F=ZA=++tH

and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
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The Board has pleasure in presenting the directors’ report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in investment
holding. The principal activities of the Group include film
production and distribution, the provision of management
services to artistes, event coordination, provision of travel
related products and operations of film studio and hotel.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Group are set out in
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities
(including an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business) and a review of the performance of the
Group for the year under review can be found in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of
this annual report. These discussions form part of this
Directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The operation of the Group’s business may be affected by
major risks and uncertainties which are set out in the
“Risk Management Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES
AND COMPLIANCE WITH
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is dedicated in promoting an environmentally-
friendly corporate environment and incorporating green
philosophy into the development of the Group. Details of
the Group’s environmental policies and performance
during the year under review as well as its compliance
record of laws and regulations which have a material
implication or impact on its operation are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report.

L

ainment And Culture Group Limited EEiRa )Ul’. EMERAA

EZeEMAREAKEEBE_FT—EFET A
ST RUFEZEEERES @u,\“%ﬁﬁﬁ%

Bx -
FEREH

ARATBRERERR - AKEZEIEZEBTE

RERRERENT TET,\,:/\E?EH&F D
f RHKRTHEBERREEZRBAEE -

AEBEFEEBREEWR 2D MERERS M B
R LS

BEREFEINE—SImEO T (BRAKER
BRI R R BER ZIET) R AKERBEFER
ReBRENANFRIEERBTwWEDON] —6 -
ZENREBRAEETEREE 20 -

3 2 B K A e &R

AEBZEBEBA YT ERR LT EE R
EZRE HERAFRIAREERS] -

BRBEBOR BOE S LR

AEBHNETRREEFB RN AEHE RS
BMAZKEED ARAEERNDEFEREBRE
RRBURHEERBEEREEATENERER
FERZERCHEFAERNAFRIRE HELE

AE] o
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RESULTS AND
APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 112 to 113.

No dividend was paid during the year. The Board does
not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the financial results and the assets,
liabilities and equity of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 252.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group during the year
are set out in note 15 and note 16, respectively, to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND
WARRANTS

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

tertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & w{LEMERLA
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CONVERSION OF
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 31 May 2016 and 12 July 2016, 470,000,000 and
196,666,666 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the
Company (“Shares”) were allotted and issued respectively,
at HK$0.180 per Share upon the exercise of the
subscription rights attached to the 9% convertible bonds
(“CB5”) in the principal amount of HK$300,000,000 issued
by the Company on 15 April 2015. The CB5 was issued
as part consideration of the Company’s acquisition of
100% interest in Lux Unicorn Limited, details of which are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated
22 December 2014 and the Company’s circular dated
23 March 2015.

Pursuant to the CB5,

(1) the maturity date of the CB5 is the date falling on
the day being the third anniversary of the issue date
of the CB5 or if that is not a business day, the first
business day thereafter;

(2)  the holder of the CB5 can convert the CB5 into
Share (“Conversion Share”) during the period
commencing from the date of first issue of the CB5
up to and including the date falling on the seventh
day immediately prior to the maturity date of the
CB5 provided that if (a) the Company shall default
in making payment in full in respect of the CB5
which shall have been called for redemption on the
date fixed for redemption thereof or (b) the CB5 has
become due and payable prior to the maturity date
by reason of the occurrence of any of the events of
default described in the instrument constituting the
CB5 or (c) the CB5 is not redeemed on the
maturity date, without prejudice to the right of the
holder of the CB5 to receive default interest, the
conversion right attaching to such CB5 will revive
and/or will continue to be exercisable up to, and
including, the close of business on the date upon
which the full amount of the moneys (both principal
and interest) payable in respect of the CB5 has
been duly received by the holder of the CBS5,
PROVIDED THAT no holder of the CB5 shall
exercise any conversion rights attached to the CB5
to the extent that immediately after such conversion
(i) the holder of the CB5 together with parties
acting in concert with it, taken together, will,
directly or indirectly, control or be interested in 30%
or more of the voting rights of the Company (or
such percentage as may from time to time be
specified in the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and
Mergers as being the level for triggering a
mandatory general offer) or otherwise being obliged
to make a general offer for Shares in accordance
with the requirement of the Hong Kong Code on
Takeovers and Mergers or (i) there will not be
sufficient public float of the Shares as required
under the GEM Listing Rules;

 §

-
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i 3 W] R R

R-E—RERA=Z+—BE-_ZT—X<FtA
+ZB  AATREE_ZE-—AFEMNA+H B
1778 % 58 /300,000,000 7T 2 9% Al # iR & & ([ 58
AR ESFDNENRBEEETER  BS
1%0.1807 T 2 B #& + 2 Bl fid ¥ K& % 17470,000,000
fi% X 196,666,666[% & J& H {E0.1%8 7T 2 A% (T
M) - RRABBEITERITBRRESEASLRDF
UREE BB A TR A RI100%E 5 Mo R E - 15
RARBBBAEA-TE—NF+_A=-+=-HZA
ERARBBHAE-_TE—RAF=ZA-_+=B2E
Iil o

REBEERRATIRIRES

(1) FEHTBRERESZIHERFAHATRK
BHRETAMZE=ZRAFEA AMEAL
FEXER RAZHZzEEMEXA

@ FEHRATBBESFFEATRTIHEKS
Tt AT E BB AR ([ kK])
BERETFEFRAHATMKRES BHEERE
FRAMARRESFINPEMELR (BHEE
H)EME - @A AR RERERER’TE
BOEMRELER 2 EARATRERESEH
SARIE - RO)REE B 281 EBEEBK
FERHABRRESFZXEMAZEMROE
M S DAL AR A E S B HIE AT - 3(o)
REBE AEBRFEFLHTHRKRES &
TEEFAHRTRBRESFE ARBUZOH
BZBERT ARFLSTHRERESNEZ
HMERENBRL NG EETEITE
EEFOHRABRBRESHE A LRI %
EERAHABBESENZMELRE (KL
EMB)zEZAHER(BEER) B
MmN ER LR VBRI RRESF
BAERE-BITHALTAEABEERRMEE
ZH A RN R AR REI0%HIA £ 2 s
(BB QAW KA GBI A s T AT A
EHERFMEEABBROKFEZABE D
b)) SERARBEE QBB RS G
AREHRMRREE2EEEENNITE @ X
(iNBfn 2 AR BERERGEM EM R A2
2K BRI BBESEEABRIET
158 F f] 35 T #E T 460 % 1 25 BT 75 B9 SE 4 4
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8) the initial conversion price is HK$0.18 per Conversion
Share, which are subject to adjustments;

(4)  the CB5 bears interest of 9% per annum and the
holder of the CB5 is entitled to request the
Company to pay interest to it under the provisions
of the CB5 by way of allotment and issuance of
new Shares (“Interest Conversion Shares”);

(5)  based on the initial conversion price of HK$0.18 per
conversion share and assuming full conversion of
the CB5 and all interest on the CB5 are paid by
Interest Conversion Shares, there will be up to
1,666,666,666 Conversion Shares and up to
450,000,000 Interest Conversion Shares. As at
31 December 2017, 1,110,000,000 Conversion
Shares and 0 Interest Conversion Shares have been
allotted and issued respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company has
approximately HK$49.08 million reserves available for
distribution to shareholders (2016: approximately
HK$177.26 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Chairman and Non-executive Director:
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam

Vice Chairperson, Executive Director and

Chief Executive Officer:
Ms. Law Po Yee

Vice Chairperson and Executive Director:
Mr. Chow Kai Weng

Executive Director:
Ms. Sin Ho Yee

Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Lam Lee G. (Appointed on 30 June 2017)
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim (Resigned on 5 January 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick

Mr. Li Kit Chee

tertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & w{LEMERLA
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In accordance with Bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws,
Dr. Lam Lee G. shall retire and, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Bye-law 84 of the Bye-laws, Ms. Law
Po Yee, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam and Mr. Li Kit Chee shall
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. All other Directors continue in office.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years. The
service contract is terminable by either party by serving a
written notice of not less than one calendar month to the
other.

Each of the Non-executive Directors and the Independent
Non-executive Directors has been appointed for a term of
two years with specific terms as stated in the letter of
appointment or reappointment. The letter of appointment
or reappointment is terminable from either party by
serving a written notice not less than one calendar month
to the other.

Each of the Executive Directors is entitled to a basic
salary and a discretionary bonus, and each of the Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors is entitled to a director’'s fee, subject to an
annual revision by the remuneration committee of the
Board.

Details of the directors’ fees or emolument payable to
Directors are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.
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INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Board considers all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company and
their respective associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”) which were required to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the

tertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & w{LEMERLA
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register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as

follows:

1. Long Positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.1

ertainment And Culture Group Limited BIER&ET{LEMBERAR

HMEBAZLRzELMRZERZ R
RIEGEM E TR B 555.4616 25.6716 2 1R
RARNE Rz S MABWNT

o

YR
EEHE

1. REALTBREEIETZTER((RHDZ

each of the Company (“Share”)

e

Approximate
percentage of the
issued share capital
of the Company

Number of (Note 1)

Shares held EEAT S8BT

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Zikc BEzZ#BHESHT

EEna By HntE BRHBEHE (Bt 5E1)

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (“Mr. Sin”) (Note 2) Beneficial owner 795,580,623 17.62%
ERnEBA

BB AR A (D54 D (M #E2) Interest of spouse 23,352,000 0.52%

Be (8 1 &

Ms. Law Po Yee (“Ms. Law”) (Note 3) Beneficial owner 23,352,000 0.52%
EREBA

BERZ T (BT M) Interest of spouse 795,580,623 17.62%

i 18 4 =

Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial Owner 1,000,000 0.02%
FERR & & & ERnEBA

Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor Beneficial Owner 1,620,000 0.04%
BRR A& EREBA

Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick Beneficial Owner 2,240,000 0.05%
HEEHER ERnEBA

Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert Beneficial Owner 3,000,000 0.07%
EXLCEE BEmnEAA

*Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim Beneficial Owner 4,480,000 0.10%
FEMAKE ERnEBA

Mr. Li Kit Chee Beneficial Owner 4,480,000 0.10%
FHZRE BEmnEAA

*

Director on 5 January 2018.

Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim resigned as a Non-executive

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

This is based on the total issued shares as at
31 December 2017 (i.e. 4,514,161,222 shares).

Mr. Sin is beneficially interested in 795,580,623
Shares, representing approximately 17.62% of
the issued share capital of the Company. For
the purposes of Divisions 2 and 3 of the SFO
only, by virtue of SFO, Mr. Sin, the spouse of
Ms. Law, was deemed to be interested in all the
Shares in which Ms. Law was interested.

Ms. Law is the spouse of Mr. Sin and for the
purposes of Division 2 and 3 of the SFO only,
Ms. Law is deemed to be interested in the
Shares in which Mr. Sin is deemed or taken to
be interested for by virtue of the SFO.

N FHEARER _FT-N\F-ADABEFE
WITESE -

B EET

B 52 -

B 53 -

WHERZZTE—+F+_A=+—H0%
ZBE B 1T 10 (B14,514,161,2220%) °

7 % £ R 5 795,580,6230% % 11 7 5 HE
= (AARAREBITRALN17.62% ° 2
RIEFEFH RS GO F2RFE3DE - %
EERBZLIZEB) HEAREL L
BB ZMBRGO TP EERER -

EREES R AR EME2RFEIDE
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2. Long positions in the underlying Shares 2. RERRBZEE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of the
Company
(Note 1)
Number of XX T ST
Name of Director Capacity shares held BARZELY
ESKE S5 40 4= B 5 b (P aE1)
Mr. Sin Beneficial Owner 572,471,230 (Note 3) 12.68%
A& EmEA A (Mt 5E3)
Interest of Spouse (Note 2) 11,822,483 0.26%
Bie % #e 25 (Pt 542)
Ms. Law Beneficial Owner 11,822,483 (Note 5) 0.26%
i E=mEAA (M 3E5)
Interest of Spouse (Note 4) 572,471,230 12.68%
Bic 435 # = (BT 554)
Ms. Sin Ho Yee Beneficial Owner 5,824,161 (Note 6) 0.13%
Vb -Reun EmEAA (B 5E6)
Mr. Chow Kai Weng Beneficial Owner 45,063,695 (Note 7) 1.00%
JE R 8E 5 A= EmEA A (M 5E7)
Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor Beneficial Owner 67,024 (Note 8) 0.001%
BRR S % & EmEAA (B 5E8)
Prof. Wong Lung Tak Patrick Beneficial Owner 2,307,024 (Note 9) 0.05%
HEBHE EmBEAA (Fff3E9)
Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert Beneficial Owner 1,546,896 (Note 10) 0.03%
ELkE BEHEAA (Mt 5£10)
*Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim Beneficial Owner 33,466 (Note 11) 0.001%
TR A EmEA A (P 5E11)
- Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim resigned as a Non-executive - FHREEER T -NF—AABEEE
Director on 5 January 2018. HWITESE -

ure Group Limited EHERLT{EMERLA
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Notes:

This is based on the total issued Shares as at
31 December 2017 (i.e. 4,514,161,222 Shares).

For the purpose of Divisions 2 and 3 of the SFO
only, by virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sin, being the
spouse of Ms. Law, is deemed to be interested in
all the underlying Shares in which Ms. Law is
interested.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 7,964,160
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Mr. Sin on
3 September 2010 pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted on 22 July 2002 and terminated
on 29 September 2010 (“Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme”) under which Mr. Sin may exercise the
said options from 29 September 2010 to
2 September 2020 at an exercise price of HK$2.89
per Share; (i) 3,360,403 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Sin on 28 March 2011 pursuant to
the share option scheme adopted on
29 September 2010 (“New Share Option
Scheme”) under which Mr. Sin may exercise the
said options from 28 March 2012 to 27 March
2021 at an exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share; (iii)
556,666,667 underlying Shares which may be
exercised by Mr. Sin from 15 April 2016 to 14 April
2018 at an exercise price of HK$0.18 per Share;
and (iv) 4,480,000 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Sin on 16 May 2017 pursuant to the
New Share Option Scheme under which Mr. Sin
may exercise the said options from 16 May 2017
to 15 May 2020 at an exercise price of HK$0.2456
per Share.

For the purpose of Divisions 2 and 3 of the SFO
only, by virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law, being the
spouse of Mr. Sin, is deemed to be interested in
the wunderlying Shares in which Mr. Sin is
interested.

ertainment And Culture Group Limited [ & 48 2 X {k
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WHER_ZE—+F+_A=+—HKHE
LTI 42 2 (BN4,514,161,2220 i 1) »

ERESFRBPEGMNE2RID M E R
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EEBRETE DR =_Z—ZFNLA=A
BYECENBEVEERRERTFERE
F & 17 27,964,160 R& 19+ &t - ke A&
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E——F=ZA=-F+NHEZZE=—F=A
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These underlying Shares represent (i) 3,982,080
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Ms. Law on
3 September 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which Ms. Law may exercise
the said options from 29 September 2010 and
2 September 2020 at an exercise price of HK$2.89
per Share; (i) 3,360,403 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Ms. Law on 28 March 2011 pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme under which
Ms. Law may exercise the said options from
28 March 2012 to 27 March 2021 at an exercise
price of HK$7.62 per Share; and (iii) 4,480,000
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Ms. Law on
16 May 2017 pursuant to the New Share Option
Scheme under which Ms. Law may exercise the
said options from 16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at
an exercise price of HK$0.2456 per Share.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 1,344,161
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the physically
settled share options granted to Ms. Sin Ho Yee on
28 March 2011 pursuant to the New Share Option
Scheme under which Ms. Sin may exercise the said
options from 28 March 2012 to 27 March 2021 at
an exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share; and (i)
4,480,000 Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
physically settled share options granted to Ms. Sin
on 16 May 2017 pursuant to the New Share Option
Scheme under which Ms. Sin may exercise the said
options from 16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an
exercise price of HK$0.2456 per Share.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 24,888 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chow Kai Weng on
3 September 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Chow may
exercise the said options from 29 September 2010
and 2 September 2020 at an exercise price of
HK$2.89 per Share; (ii) 58,807 Shares to be issued
upon exercise of the physically settled share
options granted to Mr. Chow on 28 March 2011
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme under
which Mr. Chow may exercise the said options
from 28 March 2012 to 27 March 2021 at an
exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share; and (i)
44,980,000 Shares to be issued upon exercise of
the physically settled share options granted to
Mr. Chow on 16 May 2017 pursuant to the New
Share Option Scheme under which Mr. Chow may
exercise the said options from 16 May 2017 to
15 May 2020 at an exercise price of HK$0.2456
per Share.

Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl ZRZ Xt EEERAF

ZERBERMDEBORBEE R AHAEER
BREAEA TS ZSFHLA-BRTE
TTMEMEERRERTERE THT
23,982,080 i fn - #H Ik - B T AR
Z-ZENA-t+NABEE-_ZT-_TFNA
—HBEETERRERE THEEARER
2898 L (NN IREMBREFEIR=F
——F=ZAZF+N\BETFTELITNEDE
HERREEITE RS T 317 .28,360,4038%
BH B BRETAR-_T—=-F=A
T+ NBEZE-—F=ZA-++HHH
TTERIMERE  FTEEAERT.628 T
Ry IRIEFBERESER - —F A
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10.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 33,420 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor
on 20 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Chan may exercise
the said options from 20 May 2010 and 19 May
2020 at an exercise price of HK$3.38 per Share;
and (i) 33,604 Shares to be issued upon exercise of
the physically settled share options granted to
Mr. Chan on 28 March 2011 pursuant to the New
Share Option Scheme under which Mr. Chan may
exercise the said options from 28 March 2012 to
27 March 2021 at an exercise price of HK$7.62 per
Share.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 33,420 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Prof. Wong Lung Tak,
Patrick on 20 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme under which Prof. Wong may
exercise the said options from 20 May 2010 and
19 May 2020 at an exercise price of HK$3.38 per
Share; (i) 33,604 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Prof. Wong on 28 March 2011 pursuant
to the New Share Option Scheme under which Prof.
Wong may exercise the said options from 28 March
2012 to 27 March 2021 at an exercise price of
HK$7.62 per Share; and (jii) 2,240,000 Shares to be
issued upon exercise of the physically settled share
options granted to Prof. Wong on 16 May 2017
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme under
which Prof. Wong may exercise the said options
from 16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an exercise
price of HK$0.2456 per Share.

These underlying Shares represent (i) 33,292 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
on 13 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Chui may exercise
the said options from 13 May 2010 and 12 May
2020 at an exercise price of HK$3.66 per Share; (i)
33,604 Shares to be issued upon exercise of the
physically settled share options granted to Mr. Chui
on 28 March 2011 pursuant to the New Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Chui may exercise
the said options from 28 March 2012 to 27 March
2021 at an exercise price of HK$7.62 per Share;
and (i) 1,480,000 Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the physically settled share options
granted to Mr. Chui on 16 May 2017 pursuant to
the New Share Option Scheme under which
Mr. Chui may exercise the said options from
16 May 2017 to 15 May 2020 at an exercise price
of HK$0.2456 per Share.

10.
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11.  These underlying Shares represent (i) 25,065 Shares
to be issued upon exercise of the physically settled
share options granted to Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim on
20 May 2010 pursuant to the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme under which Mr. Li may exercise
the said options from 20 May 2010 and 19 May
2020 at an exercise price of HK$3.38 per Share;
and (i) 8,401 Shares to be issued upon exercise of
the physically settled share options granted to
Mr. Li on 28 March 2011 pursuant to the New
Share Option Scheme under which Mr. Li may
exercise the said options from 28 March 2012 to
27 March 2021 at an exercise price of HK$7.62 per
Share.

3. Long position in the debentures of the Company

1. ZEHBROBOINBEERAHREER
BREASEA - ZSFRAA-THET
THRETENEYLEEBERERITERE
F 217 225,0650 8% 1 ¢ B 0 FAEAAR
—E—ZTFRA-t+HE-_T-_ZTFHA
THABHETEMRERE TEEAE
f&3.388 7T ¢ K (i) IRIEF BT 2R =
E-—FZA-F+N\BETFEELENED
EEBERREITERE TET 28401088
BB EAETR-_ZTE—Z=_F=A
“t+tNBE-EBE-—F=A-++BHM
TT{ERM R AE - 1TEBABRT.628 T -

3. REATFRHZHER

Denomination or
unit size of the

Currency of debenture Amount of
Name of Director Capacity debenture EHzHEE debenture
EENE S BHZEE B BHEEE
Mr. Sin Beneficial owner HKS$ 596,469,657 606,957,657
A& EmEBE A o

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company or their associates had, as at
31 December 2017, any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

tertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & w{LEMERLA
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SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONYS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the persons or corporations,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company,
who had interests or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO or had
otherwise been notified to the Company were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares

Name of shareholder Capacity

B & S

 §

-

inme at And Culture Group Limited g!@%i?{:; BERLA

3B B A N R i R
FH BA ity 2 HE 4 B iR AT

R-F—+F+-A=+—F BHADTEE
B % R DI EXV B BT E 2 B2
FiiRd AARTSEAR - T AL IOEE (B
AR R E B RITHBAIN) IR RADRBRI P
B RKA

Rik#Bzize
Approximate
percentage of the
issued share capital
of the Company
Number of (Note)
shares held {HAEATEEHTERSE

FAERGEE ZHBHE S (&)

Tse Young Lai Beneficial owner
Eil EnEAA

Note: This is based on the total issued Shares as at 31 December
2017 (i.e. 4,514,161,222 Shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the
Company has not been notified of any persons, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, who
had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole shareholder of
the Company dated 22 July 2002, the Company
conditionally adopted and approved Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme. The principal terms of which are set out
in Appendix IV to the prospectus of the Company dated
9 October 2002.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company dated 29 September
2010, the New Share Option Scheme was adopted and
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme was terminated. The
principal terms of New Share Option Scheme are set out
in the circular of the Company dated 6 September 2010.

563,547,600 12.48%

M RE-_T—+F+_A=+—HEETRM
(BN4,514,161,2228¢ B 7)) 5t & -

B EXHEEEIN R_FE—tF+_A=+—8"
ARBLEBEFMAL(BRARAESTHEIRITH
ABSN) BA - RAR B B SARRE M 0 A %
BRABRMAMARBKENCTAREE S KLY
B IR DI EXVEN E33615 R 17FE 2 & il -

B B¢ HE

BREARIKE—RER_ZFTE_F+LA=-_+=H
ZEERZR  AARBKGHIERMA R EEIR
AHAEREERETS - EENETZKRIERE
HA—ZST-_F+ANAZARRBREIEH
PR e

BREARAR_ZF-—FFAA_TNLBRTZR
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ARNBEHZBIA -

Annual Report 2017 —FE— L& #§

N



Annual Report 2017 ZF—t £ #

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme BRXAMBRERKESE
As at 31 December 2017, the share options to subscribe RZE—+tF+A=+—H RBREBXLHARA
for an aggregate of 12,096,325 shares of the Company BrEREAEEEMIRBEBARAQAAEGH
granted pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme 12,096,3250% B 10 7 B R M R EITE - R =T
were outstanding. The details of the Post-IPO Share —tF+ AT —BZERAHBREBRE
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2017 are set out as FHEIGEAT
follows:
Number of share options
BREYE
Exercise Outstanding as at
price per As at  Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 31 December 2017
Category of Share 1 January 2017 during during during during R-ZB—+t%
participants Bk Date of grant Exercise period RZF—t%  the year the year  the year the year +=ZA=+-H
SENER fTHE RHEH Eegid ] —-A-8 £/RH ERTE ERER  EREES HRITE
(HKS)
(B71)

Directors 3.66 13 May 2010 13 May 2010-12 May 2020 33,292 - - - - 33,292
%% “Z-T¥RAT+=H “Z-TFREA+TZH -

“Z-ZERA+C-H
Directors 3.38 20 May 2010 20 May 2010-19 May 2020 91,905 - - - - 91,9056
% —Z-Z£RA-+H “Z-TFREACZTH -

“E-ZFIRATAA
Directors 2.89 3 September 2010 29 September 2010~ 11,971,128 - - - - 11,971,128

2 September 2020
5 —Z-TFAAZH ZZ-ZTFAAZ+ARA -

“T-ZEAACH
Other participants 3.66 13 May 2010 13 May 2010-12 May 2020 249,698 - - (249,698) - -
HEft2BAL —Z-T¥RAT=H “Z-TFREA+TZH -

“Z-ZERA+C-H
Other participants 2.89 3 September 2010 29 September 2010- 539,240 - - (639,240) - -

2 September 2020
Hth2®|AL —Z-TFhA=R —Z-TFAA-tAA -

“E-TEAACH
Total 12,885,263 - - (788,938) - 12,096,325
#H
Note: All share options granted under the post-IPO Scheme are Mier MEBERAREERTEHRLNERES IS A

vested immediately. BB -

HEREXLEMERAA

re Group Limited



Directors' Report EEGH{EE

New Share Option Scheme

In accordance with the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) held on 29 June 2017, the
scheme limit on the grant of options under the New Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company has been refreshed to up to 449,848,122
Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the AGM
date based on 4,498,481,222 Shares in issue (excluding
share options previously granted, outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised under the New Share Option Scheme)
(the “Refreshed Scheme Limit”"); and the Directors are
authorised, at their absolute discretion, to grant share
options to subscribe for Shares within the Refreshed
Scheme Limit in accordance with the rules of the New
Share Option Scheme; to allot, issue and deal with the
Shares pursuant to the exercise of share options granted
under the New Share Option Scheme within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit; and to do such acts and
execute such documents for or incidental to implement
the New Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed
Scheme Limit.

Under the New Share Option Scheme, the Company has
on 16 May 2017 granted to certain eligible individuals
share options conferring rights to subscribe for an
aggregate of 288,740,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$0.2456 per share.
The closing price of the Shares on 15 May 2017 was
HK$0.246.

ertainment And Culture Group Limited E & &Yt E@MERAR
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As at 31 December 2017, the share options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 281,292,987 Shares granted pursuant
to the New Share Option Scheme were outstanding. The
details of the share options granted under the New Share

Option Scheme as at 31 December 2017 are set out as

R-B—+tE+-A=+—8 BEFERES
2% 1 A R BB A 1£281,292,987 0% A% 15 2 BE A% #E 14
KETFE - RZE—+F+-_A=+—H2Z1RE
FERETERENEREFBSOT

follows:
Number of share options
BRENE
Outstanding
Exercise Asat  Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled as at
Category of  price per 1 January during the during the during the during 31 December
participants Share Date of grant  Vesting period Exercise period 2017 year year year  the year 2017
I3
—B-tf
I3 +=A
Bk —¥-t% =+-H
SEAER fiffE RHEH BEH s -B-8 E£RENE EATE ERKY  EREH HARTE
(HKS)
(1)
Directors 7.62 28 March 2011 28 March 2011- 28 March 2012- 8,232,987 - - - - 8,282,987
27 March 2012 27 March 2021
#= —E——% ZE-—F=A-+/\BE ZT-ZF=R=-T)\HZ
=ZAZ+/NB “3-ZfZfA-+tR ZEZ-F=fA=t+H
Directors 559 31 March 2012 — 31 March 2012- 605,025 - - (605,025 - -
30 March 2017
£ —E-f - ZTZ-Z#Zf=+-BE
“A=t-8 ZE-tF=fA=1H
Directors 0.2456 16 May 2017 — 16 May 2017- — 80,820,000 (15,680,000) - — 65,140,000
15 May 2020
= ——+tf - ZZ-tFRAt/AEZ
AA+/A —“Z-ZFRATEA
Other participants 7.62 28 March 2011 28 March 2011- 28 March 2012- 1,881,825 - - (1,881,825 - -
27 March 2012 27 March 2021
EhsEAL —I-—f “E--%#-fA-+/\RE —E--F-A-t)\BZ
=ZAZ+/NB “3-ZfZfA-t+tR ZEZ-F=fA=t+H
Other participants 5.59 31 March 2012 — 31 March 2012- 67,225 - - (67,225) - -
30 March 2017
Eh2EAL —E--f - ZZ--Zf=f=1-H%
“A=t-8 ZZ-tf=ZA=1H
Other participants ~ 0.2456 16 May 2017 — 16 May 2017- — 207,920,000 - - — 207,920,000
15 May 2020
H28AL ZE-tF - ZEZ-tFRAt/REZ
fA+7A “Z-ZFRATEA
Total 10,787,062 288,740,000 (15,680,000 (2,554,075) — 281,292,987
2y

ure Group Limited EHERLT{EMERLA
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New Share Option Scheme’s purpose

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to
attract and retain the best available personnel, to
provide additional incentive to selected person and
to promote the success of the business of the
Group.

Qualifying participants

The participants of the New Share Option Scheme
include any employee of the Company or any
subsidiary of the Company, a director, a
shareholder, a supplier, a customer or any
subsidiary of the Company; an agent, adviser,
consultant, strategist, contractor, sub-contractor,
expert or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or any
valuable services to Company or any of its
subsidiary; a holder of any securities issued.

Maximum number of shares

In accordance with the resolution passed at the
AGM, the scheme limit on the grant of options
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company was
refreshed to up to 449,848,122 Shares, being 10%
of the Shares in issue as at the date of the meeting
(i.e. 4,498,481,222 Shares in issue) (excluding share
options previously granted, outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed or exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme) (the “Refreshed Scheme Limit”") and
representing approximately 9.96% of the issued
Shares as at the date of this annual report (i.e.
4,517,161,222 Shares); and the Directors are
authorized, at their absolute discretion, to grant
share options to subscribe for Shares within the
Refreshed Scheme Limit in accordance with the
rules of the New Share Option Scheme; to allot,
issue and deal with the Shares pursuant to the
exercise of share options granted under the New
Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed Scheme
Limit; and to do such acts and execute such
documents for or incidental to implement the New
Share Option Scheme within the Refreshed Scheme
Limit.

i)
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(vi)

Maximum entitlement of each qualifying participant

No qualifying participant shall be granted any
options which, if exercised in full, would result in
such person’s maximum entitlement exceeding 1%
of the aggregate number of Shares for the time
being issued and issuable under the New Share
Option Scheme in the 12-month period up to and
including the proposed grant date unless such grant
is approved in advance by the Shareholders in
general meeting. No qualifying participant who is a
substantial Shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director, or any of their respective
associates shall be granted any options, which, if
exercised in full, would result in the shares issued
and issuable to such person under the New Share
Option Scheme in the 12-month period up to and
including the proposed grant date for such options,
unless such grant of options is approved in
advance by the Shareholders of the Company in
general meeting: (a) representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the number of Shares then in issue; and (b)
having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on each relevant
date on which the grant of such options is made to
such person under the relevant scheme, in excess
of HK$5 million.

Option period

The share options may be exercised in whole or in
part by the participant at any time during the
exercise period, i.e. not exceed 10 years from the
date of grant of the relevant new share options
pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, by
delivering to the Company a notice duly signed in a
form approved by the Board (together with payment
of the exercise price in full in respect of each new
share to be subscribed for) and delivery of the new
share option certificate for amendment or
cancellation.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised

No offer of a new share option which is capable of
or open for acceptance shall be made after the
expiry of the exercise period pursuant to the New
Share Option Scheme.
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(vii)

(v

Payment on acceptance of the option

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the share option offer. The share
option offer will be offered for acceptance for a
period of 14 days from the date on which the offer
is granted.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price for the share under the New
Scheme will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of making the offer
of grant of a new share option but in any case the
subscription price must be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of the offer of grant, which must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business day
immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

Remaining life of the New Share Option Scheme

The New Share Option Scheme will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing on the date
on which the New Share Option Scheme becomes
unconditional. The Board may amend any of the
provisions of the New Share Option Scheme or
withdraw or otherwise terminate the New Share
Option Scheme at any time but no alterations shall
be made to the advantage of any participant unless
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting.
All new share options granted prior to such
termination and not then exercise shall continue to
be valid and exercisable subject to and in
accordance with the terms of the New Share
Option Scheme.

(vii)

(vii)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below, no Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance subsisting during
or at the end of the year under review:

i the Directors’ interests in the CB5 as set out below:

RGN R

BTIXEEESIN HMEEETNOEFARFRT
BZEMNEARS REXANTEERABEE
BEA#ER

TREIEENFRIAIRRES 2B

As at Outstanding as at
1 January Acquired Converted Transferred Red d 31 D b
Name of the director Date of acquisition 2017  during the year  during the year  during the year  during the year 2017
R-T-t&
R=B-t% +ZA=+-8
3 WekE B H —-R-8 E32704: ERiLBR FRER FREE HRTE
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Mr. Sin 22 December 2014 100,200,000 - - — - 100,200,000

Vbt —Z-mE+=-A=+=H

100,200,000

- - - - 100,200,000

ii. Mr. Sin’s interests in the promissory notes (“PN1”)
which was in the principal amount of
HK$80,000,000 as at the date of its first issue and
issued by the Company on 15 April 2015. The PNA1
will expire on 14 April 2018 and bear interest at the
rate of 9% per annum on the outstanding principal
accrued daily on a 365 days basis and payable
annually in arrears. During the year ended
31 December 2017, no early repayment of the PN1
was made by the Company, the outstanding
principal amount of the PN1 as at 31 December
2017 amounted to HK$80,000,000. Further details
of the PN1 are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 22 December 2014 and the
Company’s circular dated 23 March 2015;

iii. The Directors’ interests in the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme, details of which are set out under the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” of this Directors’ report;

iv. The Directors’ interests in the New Share Option
Scheme, details of which are set out under the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” of this Directors’ report;

V. Mr. Sin’s interests in the Share Subscription
Agreement, details of which are set out under the
paragraph headed “Share Issues and Connected
Transaction” in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section of this annual report.
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Vi.

Entertainment And Culture Group Limited

EREVMEMERAA

The Directors’ interests in the Shareholders’ loan and vii TRENEEFPRIRERRERAFTESZHN
other loan agreement advanced by the Directors to ZHMWERBHE B
the Company as set out below:
Outstanding as
As at Drawdown Repaid at
Interest Principle 1 January during during 31 December
Name of the director Date of loan Nature of loan rate amount 2017 the year the year 2017
RZZ—t&
RZZ-t& +ZA=+-H
EEfE HABH HAME #E 28 -A-8 FRER FhRE RIEE
HKS HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
B B BT BT BT
Mr. Sin 12 May 2015 Terms Loan 13% 7,500,000 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000
BERE —ZT-RFRA+ZH BHER
02 June 2015 Terms Loan 13% 5,000,000 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
—E-HEFXAZH BHER
11 August 2015 Terms Loan 11% 3,000,000 3,000,000 — - 3,000,000
—Z-R¥N\A+-H BHER
25 August 2015 Revolving Loan 12% 20,000,000 16,000,000 - - 16,000,000
“Z-RFEANA-TRE RBRER
09 October 2015 Revolving Loan 10% 50,000,000 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000
—E-REtANA ERER
03 November 2015 Terms Loan 10% 62,000,000 62,000,000 — - 62,000,000
—Z-n%+-A=H BHER
29 January 2016 Revolving Loan 11% 150,000,000 105,000,000 - - 105,000,000
ZZ-AF-AZthB RBREXR
19 February 2016 Terms Loan - 40,000,000 40,000,000 - - 40,000,000
—T-RE-AtAhR BHER
19 February 2016 Revolving Loan 6% 100,000,000 59,900,000 — - 59,900,000
ZZ-RFZATAIB ERER
30 June 2016 Revolving Loan 15% 150,000,000 75,110,000 45,049,657 (42,290,000) 77,869,657
ZT-AERAZTH BRER
587,500,000 413,510,000 45,049,657 (42,290,000) 416,269,657
Ms. Law 01 October 2016 Terms Loan 5% 39,748,800 35,660,834 - - 35,660,834
Bat ZZ-"%tA-H BHER
39,748,800 35,660,834 - - 35,660,834
Mr. Chow Kai Weng 01 October 2016 Terms Loan 5% 48,048,000 48,048,000 = (1,797,600) 46,250,400
BRREE —Z-X%tA-H BHER
30 September 2017 Revolving loan 10% 50,000,000 = 5,000,000 = 5,000,000
“Z—tEAA=+A ERER
98,048,000 48,048,000 5,000,000 (1,797,600) 51,250,400
725,296,800 497,218,834 50,049,657 (44,087,600) 503,180,891
Note: The maturity date of the terms loans and revolving M : REEENEHEREBRERZEHE

loans from the Directors is on or after 30 June

2019
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the share option scheme of the Company and
the CB 5, being equity-linked agreements of the Company
subsisting as at 31 December 2017, including the class
and number of shares that may be issued, and
consideration that the Company has or will receive, are
disclosed under the paragraph headed “Share Option
Schemes” in this “Directors’ report” on pages 91 to 97 of
this annual report and the paragraph headed “Conversion
of Convertible Bonds” in this Director’s report on pages
81 to 82 of this annual report respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of
outstanding principal amount of the CB5 was
approximately HK$100,200,000, which may be converted
into 556,666,667 ordinary shares of the Company at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.18 per conversion share.

During the year under review, the Company has entered
into the Share Subscription Agreement with Mr. Sin, the
Chairman and a Non-executive Director. Details of the
Share Subscription Agreement are set out under the
paragraph headed “Share lIssues and Connected
Transaction” in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
SCHEMES

Before 30 November 2000, the Group did not contribute
to any retirement benefit scheme for either its employees
or the Directors in Hong Kong. With effect from
1 December 2000, the Group had joined the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme under the rules and regulations
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority. The
Group’s employees in Hong Kong are required to join the
scheme. The Group has followed the minimum statutory
contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregate income.

The Group’s subsidiary in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in
social insurance schemes (including retirement benefit
scheme, medical insurance scheme and unemployment
benefit scheme) operated by the relevant local
government authorities. The Group is required to make
contribution to the social insurance schemes on behalf of
employees who are registered permanent residents in the
PRC. The insurance premium is borne by the Group and
the employees on a specified proportion of the
employees’ salaries laid down under the relevant PRC
law.
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During the year, the employer’s contributions to the
retirement benefit scheme charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income amounted to
approximately HK$10,156,000 (2016: HK$6,277,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR
REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2017.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or controlling shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) or their
respective close associates had any interest, whether
directly or indirectly, in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY
PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout
the year under review. The Company has arranged for
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors
and the management arising out of corporate activities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC
FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, the Company maintained a sufficient public float as
at the date of this annual report.
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RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions undertaken
by the Group during the year in the ordinary course of
business are set out in Note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of such related party
transactions falls under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the applicable disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 32.69% of the Group’s revenue for the year
under review. The Group’s largest customer accounted
for approximately 24.05% of its revenue.

The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 56.99% of the Group’s purchases for the
year under review. The Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 25.19% of its purchases.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates
nor shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers at any time during the year
under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance with sound and
reasonable corporate governance practices and
procedures with an aim of maximizing the shareholders’
interests as well as to enhancing the stakeholders’
transparency and accountability. In this respect, to the
best knowledge of the Board, the Company has complied
with all of the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2017.
Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 49 to 67 of this annual report for details.
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REQUIRED STANDARD OF
DEALINGS FOR DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors adopted by the
Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in
2002 which now comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chui Chi Yun Robert
(Chairman), Mr. Chan Tin Lup Trevor, Prof. Wong Lung
Tak Patrick and Mr. Li Kit Chee.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has
met five times to review the Company’s annual reports
and financial statements, interim reports and quarterly
reports and discuss with the management over issues
relating to auditing, internal control and financial reporting.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017.

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 49 to 67 for details.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited (“HLB”) who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for reappointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of HLB as auditors of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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CHANGE OF DIRECTORS AND
DIRECTORS INFORMATION

1

@

Dr. Lam Lee G. was appointed as a Non-executive
Director with effect from 30 June 2017.

Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim resigned as a Non-executive
Director with effect from 5 January 2018.

Updated biographical details of the Directors since the
2017 Interim Report of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of this
annual report.

Save as disclosed above, there were no substantial
changes to the Directors’ information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing

Rules.

On behalf of the Board

National Arts Entertainment

and Culture Group Limited

Chow Kai Weng
Vice Chairperson and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS™ REPORT
BIGHUMRES

HLB B o EH AR E

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF NATIONAL ARTS
ENTERTAINMENT AND CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 112 to 251, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSA”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY
RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3 in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately HK$193,533,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017 and, as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$1,039,863,000. As stated in Note 3,
these events or conditions, along with other matters as
set forth in Note 3, indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section,
we have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key audit matter

B EE

Fair value of hotel properties and film studio

BIEYERTGERE LR E

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAMETNAEEARENEE

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

AR A MK TS -

Hotel properties and film studio are property, plant and
equipment measured using the revaluation model. The
fair values of the hotel properties and film studio were
approximately HK$786,409,000 and HK$947,698,000
respectively as at 31 December 2017. Management
engaged an independent external valuer to assist in
determining the fair values of the properties.
BEMERZEBDEAEEELAENYE  KE
RRE BEMEREEHRR T —+F+T_A=1T—
B & 2 5 B 5 5l 4 A786,409,0007% 7T K 947,698,000/
T EBREER—ABUNEREMTANEEZSE
MERRRE-

The area is of most significance in our audit because
the balances are material and the valuations of the
hotel properties and film studio involved the use of
significant estimates and assumptions and judgements.
PR EEERMNEAEZREEZ  BREBBHRERT
BRAEMERZERNGEEY RERNGEE RERMH
B o

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of
the fair value of hotel properties and film studio mainly
included:
HMPABTBEETHEEDERZERN D 1 E TR
BFEEaE:

° Evaluating the objectivity, independence and
competency of management’s valuer;

. BMEEREMEGAEMNNTE B MBEE

° Engaging our own valuation expert to assist us in
assessing the methodologies and reasonableness of
inputs and assumptions adopted in the valuation of
the hotel properties and film studio;

. BITEBHEEZER G RMTZEE Y E R R
HEMRABN A ERNEABIEEBRRNAIEN

o Checking on the accuracy and relevance of the
inputs data used; and

. ERARAEARBNEGMEERE X

° Considering the accounting treatment of any
revaluation gains or losses in the consolidated
financial statements.

. ERAMEGBEABEREEVHERRANES
BRIBFIE °

Impairment assessment of long-term other receivables

=B R b B W =6 TE B9 sk (B AF 1

Refer to note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

B2 a Mg R M 2T -

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had long-term
other receivables of approximately HK$100,181,000.
RZE—+tFF+ZA=+—H EEEHEY
100,181,000/ 7T #9 & HA H b J& U 5/ IH ©

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
of long-term other receivables mainly include:

B E IR B 5T H R B H A JE M SR RE FTERERE A2 7
ITEBE:

° Conducting analytical procedures and assessing
management judgement for the fair value of
consideration receivables; and

. fg%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁm
\/I 4 ‘ &

o Evaluating the objectivity, independence and
competency of management’s valuer.

e REEBEMBMHEMNETER BIRBEE: R
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Key audit matter

B EE

Carrying amounts of land lease prepayments

14 7 BT {1 389 AR B B

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAMETNAEEARESNEE

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

FL2HEEVBERMERMTT -

The carrying amounts of land lease prepayments were
approximately HK$456,304,000 as at 31 December
2017.

THHEBNRR T —tF+_A=1+T—BHNEB
(ERS) 7,%456,304,000/%75 °

The carrying amounts of land lease prepayments are
reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. .
EEAEEMEFSGRAR S BETREREES I EEK
PR g8 THHEEENAEEESIERER -

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the
recoverable amounts were determined by management
based on the facts and circumstances. In carrying out
the impairment assessments, significant judgement was e
required to determine the reasonableness of key
assumptions, including discount rates and constructions
costs. °
HREFEMS  AAKCOSEREREERESENIR
RET o ETREMRS S FEELERAEIAETE o
RERXR(BEFRELERBEA)NHEEL -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not and will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment
of the carrying amount of the land lease prepayments
mainly include:

B EEET G T wHAERNROREEEMKRARE
FFEEBE:

Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & {LEMERLAA .

° Conducting analytical procedures and assessing

management judgement of the carrying amounts of
land lease prepayments;
ETHMEFRABEREGRLIEEENRE
TH {5 #9 1) 7

Recalculating and checking the amount of
amortisation based on the amortisation rate and
considering whether amortisation methods are
consistent and reasonable; and
RIEHERENENEREE SR W
WERBEH —BHEE &

Understanding of management’s process around
impairment assessment, where indicators existed.

FRERG THREEERTRENENER -
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSA will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

 §
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AUDITORS" RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSA, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & {LEMERLAA .
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AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Hui Chun Keung, David.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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EAEERHB TR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B E FHERT FEL
Revenue KA 7 221,372 57,827
Other income Hipdg A 7 867 13,514
Other losses Hih&#E 7 (23,454) (193)
Cost of film production B EEN AR (1,210) (10,745)
Staff costs 8IRA 10 (69,186) (39,832)
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - -BERREBNE
equipment 10 (58,957) (59,578)
Amortisation of land lease prepayments R LT S 10 (13,757) (13,703)
Other operating expenses Hihig £ &H (79,200) (133,279)
Finance costs BE B A 9 (165,563) (119,356)
Loss on fair value changes of AMEEFALEEHEHE
convertible bond (4,902) (22,200)
Gain on fair value changes of BREMELARBES R
investment properties 1,080 1,500
Share of loss of an associate e —EEE 2R EE (3) (143)
Share of loss of a joint venture PME—HAELEEE (620) (904)
Loss before income tax BTSRRI E B (193,533) (327,092)
Income tax expense FTE TR X 11 = —
Loss for the year KEEEHE 10 (193,533) (327,092)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Hih2mE (X)) A
income
Items that will not be reclassified to EEJBEHYER

profit or loss
Loss on revaluation of properties held for B EE BMENEE

own use (42,907) (13,790)
Income tax credit relating to revaluation of AR EEFHIEE B EDN
properties held for own use Fris ik &
10,727 3,448
Items that may be reclassified RETEESBEH#NIER

subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of BREBIEBHBREGEE

financial statements of foreign B BE L E R

operations 72,371 (68,879)
Other comprehensive income/ FEEHBEZERAN

(expense) for the year, net of tax (X)) INKRHBIE 40,191 (79,221)

Total comprehensive expense for the AEEL2 TR ZEHE
year (153,342) (406,313)

Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited BRETILERERLAT '.-
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tf ZT—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B x F#ERT T
Loss for the year attributable to: BiEEEESE:
Owners of the Company ARBEEA (193,529) (327,091)
Non-controlling interests R E R (4) 1)
(193,533) (327,092
Total comprehensive expense EiE2EMXEHE:
attributable to: N
Owners of the Company KAREAA (153,338) (406,312)
Non-controlling interests IR A 2 (4) (1)
(153,342) (406,313)
Loss per share BREBE
Basic and diluted ERREE (HK4.45 cents (HK8.84 cents
12 #&1l) )
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OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2017 A-—Z—+F+=-HF=+—H

2017 2016
—ET—tF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B & Tt FET
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment = & 15 1,779,208 1,684,984
Investment properties "EY 16 - 33,700
Land lease prepayments ERATMAE 17 456,304 470,061
Intangible asset mEAE 18 - 1,079
Investment in an associate yp % NEIE &} 20 - 113
Investment in a joint venture BHERLRE 21 6,400 7,020
Available-for-sale investment —H HEKRSE 22 - 5,250
Other receivables and deposits Ef Ik RmEEiES 27 105,082 93,551
2,346,994 2,295,758
Current assets mBEE
Film products and film production in  E¥ EmMMEREFE
progress 23 2,420 3,630
Investments in films/dramas production ?E%/@z %{’EE’J& = 24 986 6,461
Trade receivables e E 1B 25 125,595 6,693
Inventories FE 26 2,981 2,414
Prepayments, deposits and other BRI FRIE - e R H MU
receivables RE 27 81,472 55,794
Amount due from a joint venture JE A & DERIR 21 2,414 2,414
Assets classified as held for sales DEABEHEEE 16 34,780 —
Cash and bank balances iﬁ@&fﬂﬂ & R 28 19,944 4,283
270,592 81,689
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade payables e 8 5 IE 29 25,666 1,846
Other payables and accruals E b fE N FRIE K E R B A 30 115,992 159,020
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 28 8,416 8,501
Loans from shareholders fE R B E 3 31 452,673 10,873
Borrowings EBE 32 200,547 131,490
Finance lease obligation B IS T B IE 33 7,153 3,036
Bonds &5 34 306,369 61,115
Convertible bond Al ;R (E 5 35 106,697 —
Promissory note I ER 36 83,991 —
Provision for income tax FT 15 3 8 18 2,951 2,951
1,310,455 378,832
Net current liabilities REBETSE (1,039,863) (297,143)
Total assets less current liabilities ZHEZEBRSHEHE 1,307,131 1,998,615

Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & {LEMERLAA .
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position % & 81 #% 4k il &

At 31 December 2017 R-—Z—+F+=-HA=+—H

2017 2016
—ET—tF ZE—RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
B & FHET FET
Non-current liabilities EREERE
Other payables Hh FE < 5OIR 30 - 24,236
Loans from shareholders REAHER 31 51,387 451,471
Borrowings BB 32 20,655 48,048
Bonds &5 34 413,551 445,688
Convertible bond MR ES 35 - 110,813
Promissory note & ER 36 - 81,655
Finance lease obligation B IS E R IE 33 15,478 20,370
Deferred tax liabilities REFHIBEEE 37 165,629 176,356
666,700 1,358,637
Net assets EEFE 640,431 639,978
Capital and reserves BEXREHE
Share capital & 2 38 451,416 399,839
Reserves Gk 188,781 239,901
Equity attributable to owners of the AAREE AEGER
Company 640,197 639,740
Non-controlling interests EE R R 234 238
Total equity HEDABE 640,431 639,978
The consolidated financial statements were approved and BEMBRREBEFER_ZE—N\F=A
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on “tHEHEMEREENE YHTINESREE
27 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: EREE
Chow Kai Weng Sin Kwok Lam
NS % B #
Director Director
EE EE
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EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATREABS
Contributed Properties Convertible Attributable to
Share capital Share  Special reserve surplus revaluation Translation ~~ Share option bond equity  Accumulated non-controlling
(note 38) premium (note 39) (note 39) Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve losses Subtotal interests Total
i3 HHEE RUER TRRES
() BHER (Hi39) (Wits)  HREERR REEE  BRERR L RithiR it FERERER e

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000
Tibi Tibi Tibi Tibi Tibi Tibi Tibi Tibi Tibi Tibi Tibi Tibi

A1 January 2016 RZF-RE-A-8 31 663,770 1,000 78,791 415357 (18579) 2629 80,081 (569,678) 90,143 2% 90382

Share issued upon conversion of - S AT EREAEERA

convertle bonds R (hits8)
note 38) 66,667 6793 - - - - - (18679 - 16,924 - 116,924
Eaty setlment of convertle B ERTRRES
bonds - - - - - - - (2699 2018 (15 - (15
Lapse of the equiy component of - TR EAMEXEH
convertible bonds E3) - - - - - - - (#2912 2912 - - -
Transaction with owners EERARNRS 66,667 6793 - - - - - (64,484 4579 116,909 - 116,909
Loss for the year KERER - - - - - - - - [327,081) [327,081) U (327.082)
Loss on revaluaton of propertes B EB BN EH
eld for onn use, net of tax FR NBHE - - - - (10342 - - - - (10342 - (10342
Exchangs dferences on BEENERERER
transaton of financil RELHENZE
statements of foreign
operations - - - - - (68,679 - - - (68,679 - (68,679
Tota comprenensive expense  AEE2ERRLE
for the year - - - - (10342 (68879 - - (327,001) (408312 1} (408313
At 31 December 2016 and RoE-AF
1 January 2017 t2R=+-8R
5-4%
-8 WE T 1400 7791 W (4 %29 I R 3 W e
Capialsetion of oan nterest BALERERHE
payables (note 38) (Ki3kag) 121 16,359 - - - - - - - 26570 = 26570
Captaisaton of other payables AR AR 5B
note 38) (Kikss) 38,198 53,154 - - - - - - - 91,952 - 91,952
Share issued pon erercise of  TRBRERZ ARG
shre optons (note 38) (Hi3kas) 1,568 349% - - - - (1212) - - 3861 = 3851
Equiy-setled share-besed WEREENRREH
payments note 43) () - - - - - - 342 - - 342 - 42
Lapse of share options BRELR - - - - - - 4559 = 4559 = = =
Transaction wih owners EERARHRS 551 72,008 - - - - 25651 - 4559 153,795 - 153,795
Loss for the year KERFE - - - - - - - - (198,529 (198,29 ) (193583
Loss on revaluation of propertes B EB BN EH
held or onn use, et o tax B8 NBRE - = - - (32,180) - - - - (32,180) = (32180
Exchange diferences on BEENERERRR
transaton of financil RELHENZE
statements of foreign
operations - - - - - 231 - = = 7231 = 31
Totel comprehensive fexpense))  REE2E(RR) /
income fo the year WABE - = = - (32,180) 3 - = (198,29 (158,339 ) (183,342
At 31 December 2017 RoE-tE
tzA=1-A 451,416 803,714 1,000 78,791 31283 (75,081) 51,880 16,507 1,059,949 640,197 24 640431
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE
2017 2016
—T—tF —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FER FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING HEEXBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax % 15 A0 B 18 (193,533) (327,092)
Adjustments for: RS EEL
Finance costs A& KR 165,563 119,356
Bank interest income R1TH B U A (13) (6)
Amortisation of film products BEYEMmEE 1,210 10,745
Amortisation of land lease prepayments TEAT L 7 & 8 5H 13,757 13,703
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WEMEBITE
equipment 58,957 59,578
Expenses recognised in respect of MR E TR
equity-settled share-based payments B2 31,422 —
Loss on fair value changes of AMRESF AN EZHEIE
convertible bonds 4,902 22,200
Net losses on early redemption of REELABRESN
convertible bonds 518 F &8 - 193
Waiver of interest of convertible bond MeramiRESHE - (12,513)
Gain on fair value changes of investment  EEWE QAL EZEHH
properties W 2= (1,080) (1,500)
Impairment losses of interest receivables & A B 8RB B 1B 5,239 —
Impairment losses of investments in B BB R ENRERSIE
films/drama production 5,775 —
Loss on disposal of an intangible asset HE-BREEENEER 79 —
Loss on disposal of an associate e S ARMEEB 110 —
Loss on capitalisation of loan interest EXRCENERTENEE
payables 1,570 —
Loss on capitalisation of other payables BN BN B EE 5,431 —
Impairment loss on available-for-sales AEHEERENREEE
investment 5,250 —
Impairment losses on trade and other B 5 & H b JE YR IE B
receivables BB 1B 13 —
Share of loss of an associate oG — S R E EE 3 143
Share of loss of a joint venture DiE—EEELEBE 620 904
105,275 (114,289)
Operating cash flows before movements in % & & 4 & B) i 1) 48 &
working capital REME
Increase in inventories &8 (567) (34)
Increase in film products and film BEYEMNWRAEREFER
production in progress 0 - (3,630)
Increase in trade receivables fE W E 5 s B N (114,468) (3,253)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and AR RIE ~ e M H A E I
other receivables FRIE N (30,144) (6,462)
Increase in trade payables FE 1 B 5 R IBIE N 22,929 667
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and  E th & <t Z 18 & fE 51 & B
accruals G A) /1840 (423) 18,764
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING WEEXBMANRSESR
ACTIVITIES (17,398) (108,237)
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Consolldated Statement of Cash Flows .?EF EHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BEEHNHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Increase in films/dramas production B, BB RN (300) (6,461)
Interest received F 2 WA 13 6
Payments for property, plant and equipment %% B REEMAR (102,274) (88,377)
Payments for land lease prepayments YA EEMNR - (11,419)
Proceeds from disposal of an intangible HE B\ EENSE R
asset 1,000
Purchases of available-for-sale investments B & aJ it H &R & - (125)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING BETBHFRAERS
ACTIVITIES (101,561) (106,376)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REFBNESR=E
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid B F 8 (155,199) (83,051)
Proceeds from shareholders loans 83 B 2 43 O 98,593 286,234
Repayments of shareholders loans EBERREER (61,876) (13,788)
Proceeds from short-term borrowing RHEEE MBS RIA 118,733 61,494
Repayments of short-term borrowing EBEEHEs (77,661) (265,996)
Repayments of loan from a related company & & — & B8 B 2 5 69 & 3¢ - (12,400)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds BITEAEMSHRE 412,457 242 678
Transaction costs of issuance of bonds BITEFNRHEA (87,557) (18,045)
Repayments of bonds BEES (73,819) (3,000)
Repayments of finance leases obligation (B2 B 15 10 E A (2,573) (98)
Proceeds from issue of share BT B FT 15 B 3,851 —
NET CASH GENERATED BY FINANCING BiEZFEFBIREEE
ACTIVITIES 174,949 194,028
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH R&RR&LHEHIEH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS wm o GRY)ZE 55,990 (20,585)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT SRS REL%(EIER
THE BEGINNING OF YEAR (4,218) 4,360
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE ExSHHMFIINERE
CHANGES ON THE BALANCE OF Ed:EA -
CASH HELD IN FOREIGN
CURRENCIES (40,244) 12,007
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRAERFEESEIER
THE END OF YEAR 11,528 (4,218)
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HeRIRZXEEEHESR W
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTHE SR 19,944 4,283
Bank overdrafts RITEX (8,416) (8,501)
11,528 (4,218)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEN

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

1. 1.

GENERAL

National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries as, the “Group”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 16 November 2001 as an
exempted company under the Companies Law,
Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. On 14 October
2010, the Company deregistered in the Cayman
Islands and continued in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the laws of Bermuda with effect
from 14 October 2010. The registered office of the
Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong is Rm. L&M, 21/F., Kings Wing Plaza, Phase
1, No.3 On Kwan Street, Shek Mun, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company is principally engaged in
investment holding. Details of the principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements. The principal
activities of the Group include film production and
distribution, the provision of management services
to artistes, event coordination, operations of film
studio and hotel and provision of travel related
products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the
functional currency of the Company and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (“HK$'0007)
unless otherwise stated.

rtainment And Culture Group Limited B S5 1L £BHRAT
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A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS”")

Amendments to HKFRS that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRS issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first
time in the current year:

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 7
Amendments to Recognition of Deferred Tax
HKAS 12 Assets for Unrealised

Losses

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRS
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to
HKFRS 12

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRS in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments
require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes in
financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included
in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following
to be disclosed: () changes from financing cash
flows; (i) changes arising from obtaining or losing
control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (i) the
effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv)
changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

rts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited EER&Z XL EMFRAR . :
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 BA B BB M |

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
(Continued)

A reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of these items is provided in note 46.
Consistent with the transition provisions of the
amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 46, the
application of these amendments has had no
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

New and revised HKFRS in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRS that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments®

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

HK (IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance
Consideration®

Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments?

HK (FRIC)-Int 23

2.

ts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited H& &L EMERAF
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e Consolidated Financial Statements % & &1 % 3 & i &

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. R HI#ial & &5 6T & & M %
REVISED TO HONG KONG e o o A0 ([ 8 B 5 e e
FINANCIAL REPORTING 1))

STANDARDS (“HKFRS”")

(Continued)
New and revised HKFRS in issue but not yet ERGERHRERZ T REETEEMBR
effective (Continued) HEA (&
Amendments to Classification and BBV HHRERED BERODABER AR
HKFRS 2 Measurement of Share- E25% (5] ) R5 2528
based Payment
Transactions®
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial EXVBHRERER EAESUBHRESER
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4 Ba5% (BRI ) FOREeMTA &
Insurance Contracts® BN ER
B 457 (R [ & #7°
Amendments to Prepayment Features with EXVBHHRERELN AFAMENRITER
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation? £ (B 5] &) 5 2
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets BREMBRELER KEEHREBE QAN
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its F10% BB aetEILENE
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture* 25T A A 285 ENEd &
(BT A)
Amendments to Long-term Interests in BB LR REERFI RE B
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint EPETACCHIR:S) 2 R ERE R
Ventures?
Amendments to As part of the Annual BEXEGFER ERBEBY KR EER
HKAS 28 Improvements to HKFRS 285 (1&FTA) —E-WEE=T
2014-2016 Cycle® —RNEERAZFE
R HE —EB e
Amendments to Transfers of Investment BEXEGFER IR EY RS
HKAS 40 Property® 4058 (BT &)
Amendments to Annual Improvements to EXVHREER BEPBREEN-Z
HKFRS HKFRS 2015-2017 Cycle? (UBETA) —RAEE-T—L
FIAHR 2 F o
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 1 RZEZ—F—A— BRI Z2ERABNFE
January 2021. B AR -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RZE-NF-A— BRI Z2ERABNFE
January 2019. AR FA) A A -
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 8 RZE-N\F—RA B ZHRHABNEE
January 2018. EAR AR -
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a ¢ REGEEZ AN 2 &ABRNFEHRH
date to be determined. E3
Except for the new and amendments to HKFRS and B TSP ET RASHE 5] B A8 B 15 i &5 22 )
Interpretations mentioned below, the directors of the MmaEIN RARESE((EF)BHERM
Company (“Directors”) anticipate that the application BEMEET RIS BB GRS ERIMZ
of all other new and amendments to HKFRS and BEARBREGAVBERRIBERY
interpretations will have no material impact on the 2.
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl ZRZ Xt EEERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRS in issue but not yet
effective (Continueq)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to
the Group are:

all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or
fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual
terms that give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income.
All other financial assets are measured at their
fair value at subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss;
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRS in issue but not yet
effective (Continueq)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under HKAS 39. The expected credit
loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the
Directors anticipate the following potential impact
on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Impairment

In general, the Directors anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of
HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of credit
losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the
Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
costs and other items that subject to the
impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9
by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the Directors, if the
expected credit loss model were to be applied by
the Group, the accumulated amount of impairment
loss to be recognised by Group as at 1 January
2018 would be slightly increased as compared to
the accumulated amount recognised under HKAS
39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses
provision on trade and other receivables. Such
further impairment recognised under expected credit
loss model would reduce the opening retained
profits at 1 January 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRS in issue but not yet
effective (Continueq)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continueq)

In the opinion of the Directors, based on the
historical experience of the Group, the Group
experienced bad debts on outstanding balances
with customers. Hence, the Directors anticipate that
application of the new impairment requirements
under HKFRS 9 may result in impairments on the
Group’s financial assets recognised in earlier
accounting period due to the expected loss
impairment model. The Group will perform a more
detailed analysis upon the application of HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a b5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer;
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in

the contract;
Step 3: Determine the transaction price;

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the
contract;

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance
obligation.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRS in issue but not yet
effective (Continueq)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to
HKFRS 15 in relation to the identification of
performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The Directors anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures, however, the Directors do not
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will
have a material impact on the timing and amounts
of revenue recognised in the respective reporting
periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for
the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is
controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except
for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRS in issue but not yet
effective (Continueq)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use and those classified as investment
properties while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and
an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
an asset and a related finance lease liability for
finance lease arrangement and prepaid lease
payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in
potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-
use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would
be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS")
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRS in issue but not yet
effective (Continueq)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately HK$137,962,000 as disclosed in note
40. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements
may results in changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRS issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the GEM Listing Rules and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$1,039,863,000 and the Group
continued to incur a loss for the year of
approximately HK$193,533,000. These conditions
indicate that there may exist a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
Notwithstanding the existence of these indicators,
the Directors are of the opinion that it is
appropriate for the consolidated financial
statements to be prepared on the assumption that
the Group will continue to operate as a going
concern. In order to improve the Group’s financial
position, immediate liquidity and cash flows, and
otherwise to sustain the Group as a going concern,
the Directors have adopted several measures,
including the following:

(i) in relation to those bank and other borrowings
which will mature on or before 31 December
2018, the Group is actively negotiating with
the banks and other third party lenders for
arrangements to renew or roll over the
borrowings upon maturity. The Group has not
experienced any significant difficulties in
renewing most of its short-term and long-
term borrowings upon their maturities and
there is no indication that the banks and
other third party lenders will not renew the
existing short-term and long-term borrowings
upon the Group’s request. The on-going
negotiations with the holders of the bonds
falling due in 2018, with carrying amount of
approximately HK$306,369,000 as at 31
December 2017, are proceeding well and
expected to result in, in the near term,
extension of the maturity dates of the bonds.
The Directors, having evaluated all the
relevant facts available to them, are of the
opinion that the Group would be able to
renew such borrowings, including the bonds
falling due in 2018, upon maturity;
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) the Group has obtained an undertaking from
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (“Mr. Sin”), the ultimate
substantial shareholder of the Company, that
he will provide funds to the Group to meet in
full all its financial obligations as they fall due
for the period of twelve months from 31
December 2017; and

(i) in March 2018, the shareholders of the
Company who had granted loans to the
Group agreed with the Group that the
maturity dates of the loans falling due in
2018 shall be extended by another one year.
As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amounts of such loans amounted to
approximately HK$688,869,000 in aggregate
and were classified as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2017.

On the basis of the foregoing, and after assessing
the Group’s current and forecasted cash positions,
the Directors are satisfied that the Group will be
able to meet in full the Group’s financial obligations
as they fall due for the period of twelve months
from 31 December 2017. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared on the going concern basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /mpairment
of Assets.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities (including structured entities) controlled by

the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns

from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give
it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings
of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidlaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s relevant components of equity and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant
reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s and
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interest (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRS). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
and joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting, except when the investment,
or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, in
which case it is or the portion so classified is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. Any
retained portion of an investment in an associate or
a joint venture that has not been classified as held
for sale shall be accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/
joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate or joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
venture.
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3. 3. EEFGBKE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate or a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount, Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a
joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the
Group retains an interest in the former associate or
joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate or joint venture on the same basis as
would be required if that associate or joint venture
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate or joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate of joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or an investment in a
joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair value
upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership investments
in an associate or a joint venture but the Group
continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the
gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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3. 3. EEFGBKE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or
a joint venture of the Group (such as a sale or
contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to
the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in
its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sales of such asset (or
disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified
as held for sale when the criteria described above
are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain
a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving disposal of an investment, or a portion of
an investment, in an associate or joint venture, the
investment or the portion of the investment that will
be disposed of is classified as held for sale when
the criteria described above are met, and the Group
discontinues the use of the equity method in
relation to the portion that is classified as held for
sale from the time when the investment (or a
portion of the investment) is classified as held for
sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.

=
=
13

AT REEREZRE(E

BERERSERZRRRAEDLER
NHESOTAEE) R - EEE QTN
LEEERGMEEZ W MERRAEE
REMBmATER  HENRASER

BMZBERRRAELEIRRRR -

g
= @

§

sy

=
=)
=

2
AN
Z

s
>R

REHENERDEE

WIERBDEEMMEARNEEESERE
BEEXHMIEFEERBKE - RIBREIER
PEENHEAN D BEAFEHE -BEE
E(GHERRN) TREER 2B RILREH
EWREE GRHERR) BT RIEMIGR
BIEFSHE RIHERATBEETTHR - IR A
FE - BERELAZNRNIEE BHERD
BEARE-—FARRRESTHEE -

BARKEAGE B R RREHE QR RE
B R $H B R B B R B R IERY - BIZ
MEBARWMBEENK AR ERERRRFE
HE THXPIRASEZEEEFMNER
Bl R B R SRR A M =5 -

EAKREARETI ML ERBERREA
BOEIZRERXHBORE Z HERT B -
6 LGt B THEZZRARERIS D
BRENER/FELE MERE GEBHE
BIEDBFELER  AEEK B Z
DEAFEHE 2B EAERE -

DERFIEHENIERBEE (R EAER)
Ty 1% %5 6 S5 A BR (B 82 2 At (EURL 38 B A AN
MENREETE -

Annual Report 2017 —FE— L& #§

137



Annual Report 2017 =2 -t £ %5

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably on the following bases:

Income derived from the production and distribution
of films, when the production is completed and the
film is released, the film has been distributed to the
cinema circuit and the amount can be measured
reliably, which is generally when the cinema circuit
confirms to the Group its share of box receipts.

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised when
services are provided.

Income derived from the licensing of the distribution
and broadcasting rights over films, when the
Group’s entitlement to such payments has been
established which, subject to the terms of the
relevant agreements, is usually upon delivery of the
film negatives to the customers.

Artiste management fee income, food and
beverage, sales of travel related products and
ancillary services are recognised when the agreed
services are rendered.

Entrance fee income is recognised when the tickets
are accepted and surrendered by the customer.

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant
risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have
been transferred to the buyers.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
over the lease term. Contingent rentals are
recognised on the accounting period when they are
incurred.

Interest income is recognised on time-proportion
basis using effective interest method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset. Other than investment properties
measured under fair value model, such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land held under operating leases, are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an
expense in the year in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT 3. HEFFHBUR
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leasing (Continueq)

Leasehold land for own use

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any Ilump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “Land lease prepayments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the leasehold land and
building elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under finance
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continuea)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under
construction for future productive use, which
are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency

borrowings;

. exchange differences on transactions entered
into in order to hedge certain foreign currency
risks; and

. exchange differences on monetary items

receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary items.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKS) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs and employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans. The Group
operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries or the maximum
mandatory contribution as required by the MPF
Scheme and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the
contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.
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3. 3. EEFGBKE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and employee benefits
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs (Continueq)

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), except Hong Kong, are required to
participate in the employee retirement scheme
operated by the relevant local government bureau in
the PRC and to make contributions for their eligible
employees. The contributions payable by the
subsidiaries are calculated based on a certain
percentage of the salaries and wages of those
eligible employees and are recognised as an
expense during the period to which they relate.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short-term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based employee compensation

All  share-based payment arrangements granted
after 7 November 2002 and had not vested on 1
January 2005 are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. The Group operates equity
settled share-based compensation plans for
remuneration of its employees and directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are
measured at their fair values. These are indirectly
determined by reference to the share options
awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions.

All share-based compensation is ultimately
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately,
with a corresponding increase in share options
reserve. If vesting periods or other vesting
conditions apply, the expense is recognised over
the vesting period, based on the best available
estimate of the number of share options expected
to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication that
the number of share options expected to vest
differs from previous estimates. No adjustment to
expense recognised in prior periods is made if
fewer share options ultimately are exercised than
originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are later forfeited or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based employee compensation (Continued)

Issue of convertible bonds as share-based payment
fransaction

If the identifiable consideration received by the
Company appears to be less than the fair value of
the convertible bonds issued, the Company
measures the unidentifiable services received (to be
received) as the difference between the fair value of
the convertible bonds issued and that of the
identifiable consideration received, and the
difference is recognised in the profit or loss
immediately unless qualified for capitalization.

The debt component (i.e the bondholder’s right to
demand payment in cash) of the convertible bond
will be accounted for as a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction while the equity component (i.e
the bondholder’s right to demand settlement in the
Company’s shares) of the convertible bond will be
accounted for as an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction. The entity first measures the
fair value of the debt component, and then measure
the fair value of the equity component by taking into
account that the bondholder must forfeit the right to
receive cash in order to receive the equity
instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
debt component of the convertible bond is stated at
fair value, with changes recorded in the income
statement under gain/(loss), net. The equity
component is not re-measured subsequent to initial
recognition.

Share options granted to suppliers/consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
with parties other than employees are measured at
the fair value of the goods or services received,
except where that fair value cannot be estimated
reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted, measured
at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair values of
the goods or services received are recognised as
expenses (unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE—

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before
tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

tertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & w{LEMERLA

inancial Statements GEMBHREME

—tEF+-A=+—HLFE

3. EEFGBKE

IR

FRiS B sz (0 A 30 B B (S T TH BRI Bl 18 2 48
R e

B0 B BRI ARG 2 R AR B m FIGt 5 - JB
RBENEFSEE R A2 Em K ER R
(BRAEEITE RN ETNEERER
it 4 J& JE AR B A9 M A S AT S AN A B 3 IR
B RN B A ER BRI KB 2 A
B - NEBRKHIEG GARSE ARS8

HRERBMH 2 HEAH -
EREMEARRGEEMBREMIEERAR

ZEEEEAE E%Mmﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
EFRERZRETUER BEEHREAGR
FENMARRNEREZET AR - BT
MEEEBTRAEHRAMAEREZHK
Bz 8 SR B0 A B BE AT A AT IR AT B =2
BYUER - MR —ERXSP  AEExA
EBAMNRERGEAEMCEERAR
MmolR e EHZERTTZERRBGEH - 75

TEESTEN AT ERRAFEERE

& o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B % 8 & fi =

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than
through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, hotel properties and film
studio, are stated at acquisition cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.
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3. 3. EEFGBKE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continueq)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment less
their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the lease term
Buildings Over the shorter of the lease
term or 31/3%
Leasehold Over the shorter of the lease
improvements term or 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%
office equipment
Motor vehicles and 20%
yacht

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Property, plant and equipment measured using
revaluation mode!

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognise in profit or loss, in which case
the increase is credited to profit or loss to the
extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is
transferred to retained profits.
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3.

e Consolidated Financial Statements GEMBHREME

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continueqd)

Property, plant and equipment measured using
revaluation model (Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets. However, when there is no
reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained
by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction for such purposes).
Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held
for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of
the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using the
fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as part
of the carrying amount of the investment properties
under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately. Alternatively, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses
on tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE—

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Film products

Film products are completed films produced by the
Group. Film products, are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation of film
products is calculated at rates sufficient to write off
their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal useful lives are one to three years.

Film production in progress

Film production in progress is stated at cost less
any impairment losses. Costs include all direct
costs associated with the production of films such
as direct labour costs, cost of services, facilities
and raw materials consumed in the creation of a
film. Upon completion, these films under production
are reclassified as film products. Film production in
progress is accounted for on a film-by-film basis.
Impairment losses are made for costs which are in
excess of the expected future revenue generated by
these films.

Investments in films/dramas production

Investments in film/drama production are stated
initially at cost and adjusted thereafter for the net
income derived from the investments less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs, including an appropriate
portion of fixed and variable overhead expenses,
are determined by the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can
be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial
assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of which
interest income is included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT 3. HEFFBE )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) &MIRE)
Financial assets (Continued) tHEE(E

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Fair value is

determined in the manner described in Note 6.
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3. 3. EEFGBKE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity dates that the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity
other than:

a) those that the entity upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or
loss;

b) those that the entity designates as available
for sale; and

C) those that meet the definition of loans and
receivables.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less any impairment
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on financial assets below).

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-
maturity investments or (c) financial assets at
FVTPL.
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3. EEGFBKRE

3.

e Consolidated Financial Statements %4 & 817 R & Mt &

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)
Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that
are classified as AFS financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period
except for unquoted equity investments whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured. Changes in the
carrying amount of AFS debt instruments relating to
interest income calculated using the effective
interest method are recognised in profit or loss.
Dividends on AFS equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amount
due from a joint venture and cash bank balances)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).
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3. 3. EEFGBKE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continueq)

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired when there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 30 days to 90
days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continuea)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment lo(Continued)ss
recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE—

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continuea)

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under equity. In respect of AFS debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reserved through profit or loss if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Company’s own equity instruments.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial liability is (i) held for trading or (i) it is
designated as at FTVPL or (iii) contingent
consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as
part of a business combination to which HKFRS 3
applies.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of repurchasing it in the near term; or
o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual

pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes/
excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities
and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line
item.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
of the Group are convertible bonds classified as
share-based payment transactions and are
measured at fair value on initial recognition. At the
end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through
profit of loss are re-measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in the
period in which they arise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT 3. HEFFBE )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continueq)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, bank overdrafts, loans from
shareholders, finance lease obligation and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Bonds and warrants

Bonds are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

Warrants that are contractually transferable
independently of the bonds and entitle the holder to
acquire a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments for a fixed amount of cash are
equity instruments. The proceeds (net of transaction
costs) allocated to the warrants are recognised in
the warrant reserve in equity.

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity
share capital at the option of the holder, where the
number of shares that would be issued on
conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an
equity component.
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3. 3. EEFGBKE

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components (Continued)

Convertible bond issued by the Company that
contain both financial liability (together with the early
redemption option which is closely related to the
host liability component) and conversion option
components are classified separately into respective
liability and equity components on initial recognition
in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible debts
(with early redemption option). The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component is allocated to the conversion
option that meets the definition of an equity
instrument, and is included in equity as convertible
bonds equity reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity
component, representing the option to convert the
liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised or
expired.

When the option is exercised, the convertible bonds
equity reserve and the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion, are
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. Where the
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible bonds equity reserve
will be released to the retained earnings/
accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
option.
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SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continuea)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of
the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i

or

(i

the party is a person or a close member of
that person’s family and that person,

(a)

(b)

has controls or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent
of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(a)

(b)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i);

a person identified in (j)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and
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3.

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(i) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(h)  the entity, or any number of a group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the presents of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influence by, that person in their dealing with
the entity.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have
a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management and bank overdrafts.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use. Bank overdrafts
are shown in current liabilities.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in Note 3, the
directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised if the revisions
affect only that period, or in the period of the
revisions and future periods if the revisions affect
both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowance for and write-off of irrecoverable receivables

The Group’s management determines the allowance
for irrecoverable receivables on a regular basis. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of the outstanding
receivables. These estimates are based on the
credit history of its customers and current market
conditions. When the Group’s management
determines that there are indicators of significant
financial difficulties of the debtors such as default or
delinquency in payments, allowance for debtors are
estimated. The management of the Group
reassesses the estimations at the reporting date.
When the Group’s management determines the
debtors are uncollectible, they are written off
against the allowance account for debtors. Any
amount held in the allowance account in respect of
those debtors is reversed.

L

ent And Culture Group Limited H1% &% (L £ HA R4

4. FRG G B XA A
Al 2 32 AR K

FEREMMESMt c R EB S BKBRE
FoARRAEFAHRENE bR TR
BZBERABREERDHE Gt RE
R ZEMHAREBRRDBEBELR M
WRLSHEMZEMEAREL - ERERXRE
HZEEFAMTR -

EEEGHZE M RARBRRFELETR
A e e HETETERR  BEFT g5
SAREFEIX MR AT e AT e R
ZBHIRER BRI FEIRITE] A
PARCR R ERRE - RIAER TSR] B3R DA BOoR 2K
HAFEI BE AR o

T HEEN 2 EERE

TR RS R KA AR BEE T E R B
FREEENABERAERAFERFHRMER
KA T EBRE LG THEER M 2 E M
FTEFRR-

TR 2149 JE A 70 19 3 g K 75

AEENEIEE S T HEE T4 & U
IR R B o 0 AT Ad R U 3 A JE W RO & 4
BE DRIV R {E L KRB HET - th F 5 TYIA
EPEELRBLARTRARER - MAKE
ERERECEDRBTRELANBREAMB
R - B s e KR AR AR (AT B WOR
RH B - NEBOEEERNRE BEH
A BT - i AN 5 B & 12 B RUE e AR K
AEEdmE - B MEH B WOR SRV BB R - B
Az EREESNBRBRABANIASHE
g T ARG -

Annual Report 2017 —FE— L& #§

169



Annual Report 2017 =Z—t £ R

oﬁs to the Consolidated Fihacial Statements ZE MR R M
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
after taking into account their estimated residual
value. The Group assesses annually the residual
value and the useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment. If the expectation differs from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the
depreciation and the amortisation charge in the
period in which such estimate is changed.

Estimated impairment loss on film products and film
production in progress

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of
the Group’s film products and film production in
progress with reference to its estimated future
revenue less the relevant costs, its intended future
use and current market environment. Impairment for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired. In determining whether
impairment on film products and film production in
progress is required, the Group takes into
consideration the present value of future cash flows
expected to be received.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed
criteria in making that judgement. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a
finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold
separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property
does not qualify as an investment property.
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S.

CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from 2016.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt (which includes trade payables, other payables
and accruals, bank overdrafts, loans from
shareholders, borrowings, finance lease obligation,
bonds, convertible bond and promissory note net of
cash and cash equivalents) and equity attributable
to owners of the Company (comprising issued share
capital and reserves).

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements.

Gearing ratio

The Directors review the capital structure regularly.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buybacks as well as the
issue of new debt.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period
was as follows:

3.
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Total debts 4R IE TS
Total assets wEE
Gearing ratio EARBELE

2017 2016
—F—t¥F ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER TAT
1,808,575 1,373,060
2,617,586 2,377,447
69% 58%
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. W T H
(a) Categories of financial instruments (@) &MIANE
2017 2016
—ET—tHF —E—REF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B 3% F#T FET
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables B2k & FEW RIS
Non-current assets ERHEE
Other receivables and EMEWRERIES 27
deposits 105,082 93,551
Current assets RBgEE
Trade receivables FEUE 5 FIE 25 125,595 6,693
Deposits and other & R H M EWFKIA 27
receivables 62,011 32,480
Amount due from JEW A& & DEFIE 21
a joint venture 2,414 2,414
Cash and bank balances & NIRTT4 % 28 19,944 4,283
315,046 139,421
Financial liabilities SRBE
Fair value through BAREAES
profit or loss
Convertible bond Al % 1 A 35 106,697 110,813
Amortised cost R A
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Other payables H h fE 7 5R1E 30 - 24,236
Loans from shareholders % 8 &) & 3k 31 51,387 451,471
Borrowings BE 32 20,655 48,048
Bonds & % 34 413,551 445,688
Promissory note HHBE 36 - 81,655
Finance lease obligation B 75 FH B R E 33 15,478 20,370
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B S8 29 25,666 1,846
Other payables H At T B KA 30
and accruals 833! 107,094 153,501
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 28 8,416 8,501
Loans from shareholders R B E X 31 452,673 10,873
Borrowings BE 32 200,547 131,490
Bonds & % 34 306,369 61,115
Promissory note R ¥ 36 83,991 -
Finance lease obligation B A 33 7,153 3,036
1,799,677 1,552,643
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial
risks which result from its operating, investing
and financing activities. The Group’s major
financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables,
cash and bank balances, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, bank overdrafts,
loans from shareholders, borrowings, finance
lease obligation, bonds, convertible bond and
promissory note. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies applied
by the Group to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The Directors manage and monitor
these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the
Group’s exposure in respect of financial
instruments or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks.

Market risks

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Several
subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. Certain
trade receivables and payables of the Group
are denominated in either RMB or United
States Dollars (“‘US$”). The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy as the Directors considered that the
volatility of the exchange rates between HKS,
RMB and US$ is limited. However, the
Directors monitor the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continueq)

Market risks (Continueq)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the
fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of the loans from
shareholders, borrowings, bonds, convertible
bond and promissory note which are subject
to fixed interest rates are disclosed in Notes
31, 32, 34, 35 and 36 respectively. The
Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy, however, the Directors
monitor interest rate change exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
change exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the end
of each of the reporting period. The analysis
is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting periods were outstanding for the
whole of each of the reporting periods. A 50
basis points increase or decrease in the
market rates is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the
year ended 31 December 2017 would
increase/decrease by approximately
HK$31,000 (2016: approximately HK$
33,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on loans
from shareholders, borrowings, bonds,
convertible bond and promissory note.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continueq)

Market risks (Continueq)

Other price risk

As the Group has no significant investments
in financial instruments at fair values, the
Group is not exposed to significant price risk.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that the
counterparty to a financial instrument would
fail to discharge its obligation under the terms
of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group. To minimise the
credit risk, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

Majority of the Group’s bank balances are
deposited with banks in Hong Kong and the
PRC and the Group has limited the exposure
to any single financial institution. The credit
risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good credit-
rating.

Credit risk is concentrated as 36% (2016:
9%) of the total trade receivables are due
from the Group’s largest customer within film
studio operation segment (2016: film studio
operation segment). However, the
management of the Group closely monitors
the progress of collecting the payments from
the customers and reviews the overdue
balances regularly. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. @t TH %

(Continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) HMBEREBREEHERBRZE)

ertainment And Culture Group Limited EHERLX{LEMERLA

policies (Continueq)

Credit risk management (Continued)

Collateral held as security and other credit
enhancements

The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit
risks associated with its financial assets.

Liquidiity risk management

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities. In the
management of liquidity risk, the Directors
monitor and maintain a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate to finance the
Group’s operations and to meet its debt
obligations as they fall due. The Group
finances its working capital requirements
mainly by the funds obtained from the
issuance of equity instruments.

At the reporting date, the maturity profile of
the Group’s and the Company’s financial
liabilities based on contractual undiscounted
payments and the earliest date in which the
entity can be required to pay were set out
below.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6.
(Continued)

T H @)

MBRREEEGERR (&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)
policies (Continueq)

RYETmBEEE (&
RBETR(E)

Liquidity management (Continueg)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

TREFENERARNERERE - 0¥
BEXME KAUREBHEABRS
HRBRAOTSNERGFESH -

The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from market interest rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period.

Weighted On [[ERED
average demand 1 year Total
interest or within but less More than undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year than 5 years 5 years cash flows amounts
i BREXRS SR—F RUERRE
EHFH = -k BELREE SRAE REEH AR (E
% HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
THET THERT THET THERT THET
At 31 December 2017  MZ-F—t#F
+-A=+-H
Non-derivative financial F{T£&mERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables [EffE S3BE R E
and accruals T RRIB A K JE
FER - 137,040 - - 137,040 137,040
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 4.50 8,447 - - 8,447 8,416
Loans from shareholders R R &1 & 9.56 472,532 55,233 - 527,765 504,060
Borrowings EE 9.61 212,871 22,440 - 235,311 221,202
Bonds E% 8.24 360,443 412,573 72,408 845,424 719,920
Promissory note SRS 9.00 86,145 - - 86,145 83,991
Finance lease obligation ~ Bf 5 78 & & 11.40 9,041 7,927 59,055 76,023 22,631
1,286,519 498,173 131,463 1,916,155 1,697,260
Derivatives fTEIR
Convertible bond ik ES 11.48 110,187 - - 110,187 106,697
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6.
(Continued)

il TH (%)

MBERREEEGEERR(E)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)
policies (Continueq)

Liguidity management (Continued) ROECAREE (&

Liquidity tables (Continued) nBEER(E)
Weighted On More than
average demand 1 year Total
interest or within but less More  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1year  than 5years  than 5 years cash flows amounts
e REKH SHR—F AERRE
FHFE —FR BIRRE SRAF MEAE HHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FTET FET FTET
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB-RE
+=-ZRA=+-H
Non-derivative financial ~ F¥#T4££MIE
liabilities
Trade and other payables BN ESHBEREM
and accruals R FIEARIE
FER - 155,347 23,366 870 179,583 179,583
Bank overdrafts BITBEX 450 8,533 — - 8,533 8,501
Loans from shareholders REMER 9.74 53,689 508,213 - 561,902 462,344
Borrowings BE 8.22 137,565 49,437 — 186,992 179,538
Bonds &% 13.70 135,017 454,762 126,276 716,055 506,803
Promissory note A ER 9.00 7,200 83,707 - 90,907 81,655
Finance lease obligation BERERE 11.40 4,802 7,495 60,960 73,257 23,406
502,143 1,126,980 188,106 1,817,229 1,441,830
Derivatives fTETIR
Convertible bond HRES 11.48 10,866 117,430 - 128,296 110,813
(c) Fair value measurements (c) AfEEFE
Fair value measurements recognised in the RGEHBRAZNER S A EFE

consoligated statement of financial position

RBERR AEETEEFAEER

At the end of the reporting period, the Group AL A B R
= AR ITIEETEFMNETE °

did not have any assets and liabilities that
were measured at the above fair value
measurements hierarchy.

HE_Z—tFR-_FT—XRF+=-A
=+—HALFE F-HEE_H2Z
MY EARBEZER  NEER
AR ERENE =R

During the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016, there were no transfers of fair
value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level
3.

nd Culture Group Limited ElEREXLEMERAA
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7.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME, /.

OTHER (LOSSES) AND

GAINS

Revenue and other income, which

year is as follows:

is also the
Group’s turnover, and other losses derived from the
Group’s principal activities recognised during the

1) B W i

Uy
BN

Revenue

Artiste management fee income
Hotel room income

Food and beverage income
Entrance fee income

Event income

Films production and licensing income
Rental income

Sales of travel related products
Sales of goods

Ancillary services

Other income

Bank interest income

Waiver of interest of convertible bonds
Others

Other losses

Impairment losses of investments in
films/dramas production

Impairment losses of interest
receivables

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investment

Loss on capitalisation of loan interest
payables

Loss on capitalisation of other payables

Loss on disposal of an intangible asset

Loss on disposal of an associate

Net losses on early settlement of
convertible bonds

L' ON
BAEBERA

B JE B R A
ERWBA

P75 A

LRI UN
ERRERFFRA
e WA

5 & Bk 22 48 B n
EmiHeE

B R AR 75

Hib A
RITH B WA
MR BRRESHNE
H A

Hibgs18

HEY BB REN
KREHRERE

& W R BB R B RS 1R

A ERERERBE

BEARCERNERNE®
BB

B A E Al A 5
[ SE]

HE-—REVEERR

HE—MBERRER

e B4 5 AT R R MR 25 1Y
BRI

WA~ A A~ 2 Ath (s

FAERREAEEZIEZBHOWA - B
AREMBRTEASEENZXE) W

2017 2016
—F—tHF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHET
929 1,321
17,545 11,711
31,619 19,793
63,677 10,143
11,285 -
912 1,215
76,969 10,636
816 339
2,355 942
15,265 1,727
221,372 57,827
13 6
- 12,513
854 995
867 13,514
(5,775) -
(5,239) -
(5,250) —
(1,570) -
(5,431) -
(79) =
(110) -
- (193)
(23,454) (193)
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by business
lines. In @ manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the Group is currently organised into
three operating segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

Films production and — Production and distribution of
distribution, sales of films, sales of travel related
travel related products, products, provision of travel
artiste management and related products, provision
event coordination of management services to

artistes and event
coordination

Film studio operation — Operation of film studio

Hotel operation — Operation of hotel

Segment information about the Group’s reportable
segments is presented below.

ure Group Limited EHERLT{EMERLA

cial Statements 4% & B % 8 R M &t

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue

and results by reportable segments:

Year ended 31 December 2017

Revenue from external customers
Inter-segment revenue

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment (loss)/profit

Other income

Loss on fair value changes of
convertible bonds

Loss on capitalisation of
loan interest payables

Loss on capitalisation of other payables

Gain on fair value changes of investment
properties

Unallocated corporation expenses

Finance costs

Loss before income tax

BE-%-t¥+t-A=t-H

1g:3:4
RENFEPHYA
GEEON

A
AREEFRAERBER

ERCERNEFFEBR

ERABERTERR
BEMELAEEDNE

APERARX
BEARA

BRASHABE

8. HEbE M (&

Film
production
and
distribution,
sales of travel
related
products,
artiste
management
and event
coordination
EMRER
BT HE
i3t
ERBA
EER
EHRE
HK$'000
TEL

2,817
53

FBBARESR

UNTRIEA2®mDEE
EBREENMN

Film studio
operation

AR
HK$'000
87

166,829

ID AR EBBA

Hotel Inter-segment

operation

BEEE
HK$000
TET

51,726
952

elimination

HEEEE
HK$'000
TET

Bl
HK$000
TET

- 221,372
(1,005) -

2,870

166,829

52,678

(1,005) 921,372

(25,724)

57,517

(49,340)

= (17,487)

867
(4,902)

(1,570)
(5,431)

1,080

(527)
(165,563)

(193,539)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. k&R (&

(Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) PBEANRESE(Z)
Film
production
and
distribution,
sales of
travel related
products,
artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel  Inter-segment
coordination operation operation elimination Total
EFRER
BT HE
RS
ER-ZA
FER
THRE  YRNEE BEELE  HHMES BeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T TR T
Year ended 31 December 2016 Eﬁ%:ﬁ;iﬂ’:ﬂi‘f—ﬁ
FFEE
Revenue from external customers RANREPHRA 2,955 20,947 33,925 - 57,827
Inter-segment revenue PEREBA 273 - 644 917) -
Reportable segment revenue NEFABPMA 3,228 20,947 34,569 917) 57,827
Reportable segment loss NERAHER (23,900) 68,152) (44,358) - (136,410)
Other income EgA 1,001
Waiver of interest of convertile bond S & AT REEHH & 12,513
Net losses on early settlement of REEAITRRESNERTFE
convertible bonds (193
Gain on fair value changes of investment ¥ ZMEALBEED
properties &= 1,500
Loss on fair value changes of convertible T EA DA BEBER
bond (22,200)
Unallocated corporate expenses FPEARMAY (63,947)
Finance costs BERK (119,356)
Loss before income tax BEERAIER (327,002)
Revenue reported above represents revenue EREFHURAEREFTEARGINRARR
generated from external customers and inter- A K 53 BB ) 85 6 o
segment sales during both years.
Segment (loss)/profit represents the loss incurred DEEE) RFIES D IMEEMNERE
by each segment without allocation of central ERYESRPROTBRA(BEESH
administration costs including directors’ salaries, loss & BARNEEMNERFEEE EREM
on capitalisation of loan interest payables, loss on R RIEEE  REMELIABEZ S W
capitalisation of other payables, gain on fair value AMBRES AR EZEEE  RPBmRE
changes of investment properties, loss on fair value EFE - IREAENTRRES 2 BEFE -
changes of convertible bond, waiver of interest of Hfhg A - BB A RAEBER) o 1ty
convertible bond, net losses on early redemption of ABORBERMIHSBREMAEZLER
convertible bonds, other income, finance costs and KREMENFTTETE -

income tax expense. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation

and assessment of segment performance.
4. N
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. k& B ()

(CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities

SBAERAR

At 31 December 2017

R=%-t&+-RA=+-H

Film
production
and
distribution,
sales of
travel related
products,
artiste
management
and event
coordination
BEHRER
BT HE
Ik HE
ER BA
EBR
HK$°000
TET

Film studio
operation

yiases
HK$'000
T

Hotel
operation

BeE
HK$'000
FET

Reportable segment assets 2R BEE 18,389 1,645,751 898,941 2,563,081
Property, plant and equipment nE BERRE 613
Cash and bank balances ReRBRTER 16,384
Assets classified as held for sale PEEBENERE 34,780
Unallocated corporate assets KOBDAEE 2,728
Consolidated assets GREE 2,617,586
Reportable segment liabilities TERABERE (6,126) (88,672) (24,722) (119,520)
Loans from shareholders RRHEN (504,060)
Borrowings BE (221,202)
Bonds &% (719,920)
Convertible bond R ES (106,697)
Promissory note SIS (83,991)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE (165,629)
Provision for income tax FEREE (2,951)
Unallocated corporate liabilties RARRAEE (53,185)
Consolidated liabilities GRERE (1,977,155)
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. k& B ()

(CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PBEEREE(Z)
Film
production
and
distribution,
sales of
travel related
products,
artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total
BELER
BT HE
igudiEte
Em-E2A
EER
ek FRALE BELE BmeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAET TAT TAR
At 31 December 2016 WZE-"E+ZA=1+—H
Reportable segment assets ERHBEE 33,509 1,433,305 871,348 2,338,252
Property plant and equipment nE BERRE 1,233
Cash and bank balances BeRFTES 2,181
Intangible asset EWEE 1,079
Investment properties REME 33,700
Unallocated corporate assets KAEDRAEE 1,002
Consolidated assets GREE 2,377,447
Reportable segment liabilities ERHHERE (8,529) (114,652) (77,058) (200,239)
Loans from shareholders BRENER (462,344)
Borrowings B8 (179,538)
Bonds E% (506,809)
Convertible bond THRES (110,813)
Promissory note EHEE (81,655)
Deferred tax liabilities BEREER (176,356)
Unallocated corporate liabilities KARAREE (19,721)
Consolidated liabilities GEBRE (1,737,469)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. k& B ()

(CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) SHEEREEE)
For the purposes of monitoring segment RERIBRBARRDSHABESEEIR
performance and allocating resources between
segments:
—  all assets are allocated to reportable segments — BRRAFEEN FBEESNRES
other than corporate assets; and A2HHH: K&
— all liabilities are allocated to reportable — BRRAFEAGEN FBEABEEIRZES
segments other than corporate liabilities. AIE2W|MHEB o
Film
production
and
distribution,
sales of
travel related
products,
artiste
management
and event Film studio Hotel
coordination operation operation Total
ERRER
BT HE
TRiEAR
EREA
EER
EHRE HRWEE EEEE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET TET TAER
At 31 December 2017 R-B-tE+-A=+-H
Depreciation of property, plant and nE BRERSERE
equipment 1,764 28,194 28,798 58,756
Amortisation of land lease prepayments 14 £ 118 & 8 35 - 11,512 2,245 13,757
Amortisation of film products EYEREH 1,210 - - 1,210
Addition to non-current assets FrRBEEEM 2,185 97,527 2,562 102,074
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"E+ZA=+—H
Depreciation of property, plant and N BREERERE
equipment 1,236 28,442 29,488 59,166
Amortisation of land lease prepayments A 117 & & 4 - 11,458 2,245 13,703
Amortisation of fim products FRHEREH 10,745 = = 10,745
Addition to non-current assets ERBEELN 346 68,914 18,997 88,257
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. k& B ()

(CONTINUED)
Geographical information W EE
All the Group’s revenue and non-current assets are AEBEMBRARERBEELNFEREF
principally attributable to the PRC including Hong ZEARKMBE(FED(BEEB)(BIAE
Kong (being the place of domicile of the major EETNEZRAIFTEMNIDE) -
companies comprising the Group).
The geographical location of customers is based on BEPMEBERDERERFEFRFTAL
the location at which the contracts are negotiated W EME - REIIFEFLHBWAEER
and entered with the customers. The total revenue B -
from external customers is mainly sourced from the
PRC.
Information about major customers FHEEEFMEH
Revenue from customer contributing over 10% of REMAREEBIAFEIBI0%EE P A WA
the total revenue of the Group is as follows: N
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Customer A BEEA 48,468' N/AT i 2
1 Revenue from film studio operation. ! HARBEERNWRA -
2 The customer did not contribute over 10% or more 2 ZEPRZFETHEERNEEBLRABION
to the Group’s total revenue in the year.
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. REE A
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Finance lease charges e B R 2,171 1,852
Interest on bank overdrafts RITHEZF B 364 380
Interest on bonds BEHF B 83,025 50,944
Interest on convertible bond Al S A T B - 14,290
Interest on promissory note A EEFE 9,536 9,279
Interest on loans from shareholders BRERBFE 43,699 32,501
Interest on loan from a related company — & B8 5t 2 7] & ZUE0 F) B - 454
Interest on unsecured other borrowings £ th £ 4 4 {£ & F| & 14,360 8,779
Interest on secured other borrowings ~ E b G K EEF & 12,145 -
Interest on secured bank borrowings BEEFRITEERE 263 877
165,563 119,356
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE
10. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. B Pt 5 B¢ i Jes 18
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH&ET FHET
Loss before income tax is arrived BRATEHABES IR,
at after charging/(crediting): GtA) T3I%E
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 1,118 610
Amortisation of film products 5 B 1,210 10,745
Amortisation of land lease prepayments &1 4 ith FH & £ §4 13,757 13,703
Costs of inventories recognised as HRAERAIZMEFEERAR
expenses 629 379
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BELRETE
equipment 58,957 59,578
Equity-settled share-based payments & TR A RAEDN
granted to consultants 1% 9 1+ 9,581 -
Impairment losses of investment in fims/ ¥ &5 BB 2 e IL &
dramas production /YR B & 18 5,775 —
Impairment losses of trade receivables JEUWE 5 TA KR EE 1B 13 -
Net exchange (gains)/losses fE5 (ks) /EEFRE (47,809) 33,998
Minimum lease payments under BEGCLEHEREDEN
operating leases in respect of HEBEMNRK
rented premises 12,521 11,483
Rental receivables from investment REMERKESREE
properties less direct outgoings of 4 2 #963,0007% 7T
approximately HK$63,000 (ZZE—RF 8
(2016: approximately HK$165,000) 165,000/ JT) (149) (187)
Employee benefit expenses EEBANMAX
(including directors’ remuneration) (BREESZMS)(ME13)
(Note 13)
— Salaries, allowance and benefits —— #H& RN EY
in kind =l 37,189 33,555
— Contributions to retirement — BRI AIE E R
benefits schemes 10,156 6,277
— Equity-settled share-based — UWESEENRHD
payments B 21,841 -
69,186 39,832
Note: Equity settled share based payments recognised as B RE - LA BE 2 45 60 AR 10 1 SR HE R szf’?ﬁ@ﬁ?@
employee benefit expenses include an amount of FIFA X - B 354,790,000 TR FIE - KK
HK$4,790,000 representing the fair value of share BT —2EENBRENAAE ZES
options granted to an employee who subsequently HERAESEREIRKALEE — £
resigned from the Group and became a consultant M BHZE—t&E+—ARBER -ZEE
of the Group with effect from November 2017. The RIER B B EIRE 58 -
share options vested immediately on the date of
grant.

Annual Report 2017 =T —t 8§ 187



Annual Report 2017 =Z—t £ R

e Consolidated Financial Statements %4 & 817 R & Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. P 453 B8 B X

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profit for both years. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as there were no assessable profits arising in or
derived from Hong Kong for both years.

The PRC Enterprises Income Tax at 25% has not
been provided as the PRC subsidiaries have
available tax losses brought forward from previous
years to offset the assessable profits generated
during the year.

The PRC Enterprises Income Tax at 25% has not
been provided as the PRC subsidiaries incurred
losses for taxation purposes for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to
loss before tax per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:

RMEFEAR - FBMNEHIS LA ERH
M PA16.5% At H o A W B E NS |
FRELREEEMERBERN - I E5
BENSHIEL BB -

MRPENBAREEEBAREFEZA
RAHREBBEAENFRNEL 2 BRTEN
A ko Bl TS (R K R25% ) 1B
B e

HRPENBARRBE—_T—R"Ft+_-A
ST BUFEAREREER  RXEH
TR EMEH (X R25%) fEH B4 -

REM DA RE SN H IR TR AR A%
EABEANETE -

AEERERAX A BEARENEMEEK
ARHBRHRABEERAT

2017 2016
—E—tf —E—RHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiET
Loss before tax Br % Al & 1B (193,533) (327,092)
Tax at domestic income tax rate EBERMEHHETEN
1A (28,780) (62,238)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ 7] 3051 5 2 89 B 15
for tax purpose ze 26,597 36,731
Tax effect of income not taxable BERB WA BB
for tax purpose A (7,522) (429)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B e BT R FER B B 1B
recognised 518 (9,339) (285)
Tax effect of unrecognised estimated — REER L HEEIEL
tax losses BiseE 19,044 26,221
Income tax expense for the year AKEEZEBRAX - -

Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl ZRZ Xt EEERAF




ertainment And Culture Group Limited E & &Yt E@MERAR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B % 8 & fi =

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. B3 B B X ()

(CONTINUED)
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive REMEZERNERHFEHR
income
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FiET
Deferred tax EERIE
Arising on expense recognised EfEREMEERX
in other comprehensive income: R A -
Revaluation of properties EHFEERME
held for own use (10,727) (3,448)
Total income tax credit recognised in R E M 2 E W AERE
other comprehensive income FrEsfike@ss (10,727) (3,448)

12. LOSS PER SHARE 12. Bk

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$193,533,000 (2016:
approximately HK$327,092,000) and the weighted
average of approximately 4,348,296,000 (2016:
approximately 3,700,776,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year. Diluted loss per share for loss
attributable to the owners of the Company for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 was the
same as basic loss per share because the impact
of the exercise of the share options and convertible
bonds is anti-dilutive.

TR BRERNEBEEDRERQAEAR AR
{5 518 49193,5633,0008 L (T — NF : 4y
327,092,000/ 70 ) & B 217 & I 38 A% &9 00 i
SE 15 8 494,348,296,000/ (= F — /N F 4
3,700,776,0000%) 5t & - B8 i 1 & n] % &
FMNITHEEERBEEYE At BHEZZT
—tFR_E-ARF+_A=t+—BLFE
ARABHEBEABGEENSREEEERES
fE E A E B AR -
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 13. % % J% 5 4 2 B A B 7
EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten ENSENTE(CE—R"F: WB)EER
(2016: nine) Directors and the chief executive were SREBEAENTMAT
as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_E—t&+-A=+—HILEE
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement Equity-settled
and benefits benefits share option Total
Fees in kind schemes expense emoluments
e 2R BHER NEREE
fe ENET L BRERX BHe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TER
Executive Directors: HrEs:
Ms. Law Po Yee BEfat - 960 18 514 1,492
Ms. Sin Ho Yee rERLT - 240 12 514 766
Mr. Chow Kai Weng AEELE - 720 18 5,164 5,902
Non-executive Directors: ez
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam REREE - 2,400 18 514 2,932
M. Li Sin Hung, Maxim FREREMZT-NF
(Resigned on 5 January 2018  —ARAET) 40 - - 514 554
Dr. Lam Lee G. WERBEL(R-E—+%
(hopointed on 30 June 2017)  KEZTREZH) 50 - - - 50
Independent non-executive ~ BAFHTES:
Directors:
Mr. Chan Tin Lup, Trevor BRI%E 60 - - 514 574
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert ERLEE 60 - - 514 574
Prof. Wong Lung Tak, Patrick ~ EEEHR 60 - - 514 574
Mr. Li Kit Chee X e 60 - - 514 574
Total emoluments ZHs 330 4,320 66 9,276 13,992

Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited BRETILERERLAT '.-
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13. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF 13. EFEEHBAEHRANEH M &)
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZFT-—X"F+ZA=1+—HILEFE

Salaries,  Contributions
allowances  to retirement

and benefits benefits Total
Fees in kind schemes emoluments
e EZMER REREFFE
ks ENEN 5% gMe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTAET FTiET TER
Executive Directors: BTEE:
Ms. Law Po Yee BERut — 960 18 978
Ms. Sin Ho Yee i) koG - 240 12 252
Mr. Chow Kai Weng AmMERE - 720 18 738
Non-executive Directors: ERTEE:
Mr. Sin Kwok Lam BB - 2,400 18 2,418
Mr. Li Sin Hung, Maxim FHEEE 40 - - 40
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
Directors:
Mr. Chan Tin Lup, Trevor BRI EAE 60 - - 60
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert BECEE 60 - - 60
Prof. Wong Lung Tak, Patrick HEEAE 60 - - 60
Mr. Li Kit Chee FhzEE 60 - - 60
Total emoluments Be 280 4,320 66 4,666
Notes: B2
Ms. Law Po Yee (“Ms. Law”) is also the chief executive of BERUT((B LT RABHFEERABITHE
the Company and her emoluments disclosed included HoOBEERZHEEREBEAITREH FTEME
those for services rendered by her as the chief executive. BREHHE BE-_ZT—+tER TR E+=
There was no arrangement under which a director waived A=+ HLIFEYETNEEEENEXRE
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years WEEM S H LT EE -
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the REE-_ZT—+tFR-_T—X"F+-_A=+—8
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the HTEE AREFHMERERNES S NEMME
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the NRBIEEMARNEESEAMARNER 7 #S
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. BB (E o
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14. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 14. 1 B % ™

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments ERAEELAESHMALS RE2H
in the Group, all (2016: three) of them were (ZE2E—RE:ZH)RARAES  HEH
Directors of the Company whose emoluments are FTHER EXHFI3TEE - REEZS
included in the disclosures in Note 13 above. The —RNFTZA=Z+—HLEFE HBMEBEA
emoluments of the remaining two individuals for the THHBAT

year ended 31 December 2016 were as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHBT
Salaries and other benefits FekEMBET - 780
Retirement benefit costs iR R A& F A A - 36
- 816
Their emoluments were within nil to HK$1,000,000. ®ZERFH BN T Z 51,000,000 7T ©
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the FRN-AEEBEANIEERSNeEE XM
Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as o] 3R B 1 72 D0 A 7 £ B o 0 A B 2 52 Bl 3k
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or BERmE( T — T |-

as compensation for loss of office (2016: nil).

nd Culture Group Limited EZR&{LEMERLA
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. W% ~ BUR K 3k
EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
land and Hotel Leasehold office vehicles Film
buildings properties improvements equipment and yacht studio Total
HETHE HEYE KR RER
B2 EEN# kB BAERE  REREE b2 o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
COST BE
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZE-R"E-R—
A &R 11,574 801,245 3,848 47,85 6,556 899,307 1,770,386
Additions "E 113 18,120 362 924 330 68,528 88,377
Deficit on valuation HEEE - (26,793) - - - (36,505) (63,298)
Effect of foreign currency NEERZENTE
exchange differences (777) (40,170) (59) (3,052) (99) (47,208) (91,348)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R=ZF—/E+=A
and 1 January 2017 =+-Bk=%
—tE-A-HH
&4 10,910 752,402 4,157 45,728 6,793 884,127 1,704,117
Additions RE - 1,765 89 3,769 288 96,363 102,274
Deficit on valuation HEEE - (8,956) - - - (82,440) (91,396)
Effect of foreign currency MNEEREZENTE
exchange differences 831 41,198 55 3,409 111 49,648 95,252
Balance at 31 December 2017 R=F—-t§+=f
=+-BH&ER 11,741 786,409 4,301 52,906 7,192 947,698 1,810,247
DEPRECIATION &
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZE-R"E-RA-
A &R 1,446 - 1,877 5,507 1,099 - 9,929
Depreciation expense NERX 502 22,980 664 7,765 1,139 26,528 50,578
Surplus on valuation R - (22,980) - - - (26,528) (49,508)
Effect of foreign currency NEERZENTE
exchange differences (118) - 32) (673) (43) - (866)
Balance at 31 December 2016 W =F—A~E+=A
and 1 January 2017 =+-Bk=%
—t5—-R-BH
&8 1,830 - 2,509 12,599 2,195 - 19,133
Depreciation expense NERAX 492 22,008 695 8,004 1,187 26,196 58,957
Surplus on valuation hERs - (22,293) - - - (26,196) (48,489)
Effect of foreign currency MNEERZENTE
exchange differences 157 - 35 1,192 54 - 1,438
Balance at 31 December 2017 K=%—t%+=R
=+-BHER 2,479 - 3,239 21,885 3,436 - 31,089
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
Balance at 31 December 2017 R=F—-t£+=H
S+-HH%E 9,262 786,409 1,062 31,021 3,756 947,698 1,779,208
Balance at 31 December 2016 R=F—~F+=A
=+-AREH 9,080 752,402 1,648 33,129 4,598 884,127 1,684,984
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (Continuea)

Hotel properties were revaluated on 31 December
2017 and 2016 by RHL Appraisal Limited (“RHL”)
an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group. RHL is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and have
appropriate qualifications and recent experience
in the valuation of properties in the relevant
location. The revaluation deficit of approximately
HK$13,337,000 (2016: deficit approximately
HK$3,813,000) net of applicable deferred income
taxes credit of approximately HK$3,334,000
(2016: approximately HK$953,000) was debited
to properties revaluation reserve in the amount
of approximately HK$10,003,000 (2016: debited
to properties revaluation reserve of approximately
HK$2,860,000). If the hotel properties had not
been revalued, it would have been included in the
consolidated financial statements at historical cost of
approximately HK$453,713,000 (2016: approximately
HK$451,947,000) as at 31 December 2017.

Film Studio were revaluated on 31 December
2017 and 2016 by RHL. The revaluation deficit
of approximately HK$56,244,000 (2016: surplus
approximately HK$9,977,000) net of applicable
deferred income taxes credit of approximately
HK$14,061,000 (2016: approximately HK$2,495,000)
was debited to properties revaluation reserve
in the amount of approximately HK$42,183,000
(2016: credited to properties revaluation reserve of
approximately HK$7,482,000). If the film studio had
not been revalued, it would have been included in the
consolidated financial statements at historical cost of
approximately HK$791,490,000 (2016: approximately
HK$645,479,000) as at 31 December 2017.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl ZRZ Xt EEERAF

e Consolidated Financial Statements GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

15. W3 ~ W B sk i (42)

BEEMER - ZE—+F R _T— X FE+_-A
=+— EEE%%IJ??%@EEF?EBE ﬂ(rﬂo‘ru
7 —FEREEEHENB LA ﬁt

EHEMERGB - XMNITAEAESSNSME

Eﬁ 8 -ABEEE ﬁtﬂﬂﬁﬁ;ﬁ#taﬁaiﬁﬂﬁ
#H AT E L E - E 1 E5 18 4913,337,000/% TT
(ZZF—7X% : {B18493,813,000/8 7T) 1k iE
FB B3R AT BT 15 77 4K 6 493,334,0008 7T (= &
—7NE  49953,0008 ) ERN M EE L EE
IR 4910,003,0008 70 (ZZE— X F : 1)
3 5 (B 3B 492,860,000 7T) ° i B
EWMETEETENL AR _T—tF
+ZR=+—HB®E % KA %453,713,000
}% ﬁ(_ = — N4 #9451,947,0005% 7T) 5t
VT\ Hﬁﬁ%#&ﬁ"

ERHOR ZE—+ER_T—RE+_A

=+t —HHBXATEHR - EHEBHEY
56,244,000 (= & — N F: H & 4%
9,977,000/ 7T ) 1 B i@ FHE’JFL)SE SR
#914,061,000%8 7L(= T — X F: 8
2,495, ooo;%ﬁ)e%%%ﬁtaﬁﬁﬁﬂtﬂtu&%%@
42,183,000 0 (Z T —NF R EEAFH
& 5T A 47,482,000/ TT) ° it 52 48 L K 45
B HERR -_E—+E+-A=+—¢
B P Ak 7N #9791,490,0008 7T (= & — /%
F 1 4)645,479,0008 L) T ASR & MR K -

ﬁAtEqu%%E’J’&jﬂEET MENERERE
Rz RERA RS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B % 8 & fi =

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continuea)

The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these hotel properties and film studio
are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and key inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the key inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

As at 31 December 2017:

ertainment And Culture Group Limited BIER&ET{LEMBERAR

15. W3 ~ W )m Bl (&)

AV

TRERAEZZBEENERTZERN
BrAEE(CERMAHRERTREIEE
ABRBIWEN URBBAAEFERR
AAEHEIBZGAREBENAIEBEEREND
BHAREER(F-—REE=MH) -

RZE—tF+ZA=+—8:

Fair value Valuation techniques and Significant Range/
Element hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs Amount  Sensitivity
EXTIHE
TE ALERE FHERKRIEZEGABR BAHRE HE/ /8 HBE
Hotel Level 3 Depreciated replacement costs Replacement costs of RMB655,000,000  The higher the costs of
properties approach (based on current cost constructions constructions, the

of replacement of the hotel properties higher the fair values
improvements, less allowance for
physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence
and optimisation)

BEME F=/ FESERAL(ERMELBEAN I FRRMEE  ARK655000000 BEXADS AnfE
BEERAN BREBEBEER-Y KA A&
TEEF A MR E REL L)

Film studio Level 3 Income approach-discounted Discount, rate -1% to 1%  The higher the discount
cashflow approach rate, the lower the fair

value
TR i WNE - BRBESREE BRE -1%Z21% ZHEAS RaERE
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 15. W3~ W ekl )
EQUIPMENT (Continuea)

As at 31 December 2016: RZE-—RF+-A=+—8:
Fair value Valuation techniques and Significant Range/
Element hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs Amount  Sensitivity
EXTIHE
TE ARERE FHERARIEGHABR BAYRE HiE/ 28 BEBE
Hotel Level 3 Direct comparison method by Discounts on quality -10% to 10%  The higher the premiums or
properties assuming sales transactions as of properties discounts, the higher or

available in the relevant market lower the fair values
(i.e. sales transaction price per
hotel room)

BENE o BEERBE MREBTSLEHE YNEERNTE -10%210% HEIMBDR AAE
25 (ANBHBEERERNHEER S ABRAE
&)

Film studio Level 3 Depreciated replacement costs Replacement costs RMB337,000,000 The higher the costs of
approach (based on current cost of constructions constructions, the
of replacement of the on the land higher the fair values
improvements, less allowance for
physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence
and optimisation)

FRM E=H FESERAL(ERWELRBEN T EBSMEER ARMK37,000000m BEKARS DAE
BEERA BRERERR-—T XK A
TR A MR E RE(L L)

Market approach (based on the Discounts on quality -10% to 10% The higher the discounts,
comparable accommodation value of properties the lower the fair
sq. ft. observed from the market) values
THE(BRETSBRAGNAL SNEERNTE -10%E10% HERE DAERE

BEEHETHRER)

ure Group Limited EHERLT{EMERLA
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (continuea)

As can be seen from the table above, there has
been a change in valuation technique for the
valuation of the hotel properties and Film Studio. In
respect of the hotel properties, the valuation
technique was changed from a market approach to
a cost approach. In the opinion of the Directors,
the change resulted in a fair value measurement
that is more representative of fair value in the
circumstances taking into account the uniqueness
of the hotel properties, which are situated in the
Film Studio area.

In respect of the Film Studio, the valuation
technique was changed from a cost approach to an
income approach. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the change resulted in a fair value
measurement that is more representative of fair
value in the circumstances taking into account the
fact that the commencement of full commercial
operations of the Film Studio in January 2017 has
enabled the Group to reliably estimate the future
amounts of cash flows, income and expenses and
hence has enabled the Group to adopt the income
approach, which results in a fair value
measurement that reflects current market
expectations about these future amounts.

At the end of the reporting period, the net carrying
amount of film studio held under finance leases of
the Group was approximately HK$9,262,000 (2016:
approximately HK$9,080,000).

15. W3 ~ W )m Bl (&)

B LR OHENERZY RS E
BilE—HED - A EMEMS - BEE
METIBERARAE  EFRA - %@
EH—EAREHE TERERAANBRT
MARME EEREHREENER R
SEADE-T A

PR ERBME - A ERMNERAEN K
NE RRBEZARAR  ZEBEHELENAA
BEAEAERRBABERATHNARE  BE
TEFREZFRBEELRN _T—tF—A
MERZERNXEE EAKBEEA S
ARBERE WARRXHERE  BAE
BERARNE FIEEN AR BB RBR
ARZERREENE R MISHE-

RBERR AEEREVBEHEESENY
R 2 B FE 4 59,262,000 T (==
— 75 4E © #99,080,000/ 7T) °

Annual Report 2017 —FE— L& #§

197



Annual Report 2017 =2 -t £ %5

inancial Statements 4 & Bt % 8 R M 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. #EM

The Group’s properties interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

AEBEARRAS KN EREANZEMRBL
EHERENMERSRAAARBEREG
E - VHEAREMESIBERAK:

2017 2016
—F—tHF —ZE-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH& T
Fair value AfIE
At 1 January wn—A—H 33,700 32,200
Net increase in fair value recognised RIEBZEAERN B
in profit or loss R 1,080 1,500
Reclassified as held-for-sale EMHERFBELE (34,780) -
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H - 33,700
Changes in unrealised gain on KEEFABEHER
revaluation of investment properties KEMERSR K=
for the year included in profit or loss K& H) 1,080 1,500
Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment FREREVENALEHE

properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 has been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
the respective date by RHL.

The fair value was determined using the direct
comparison approach based on price information of
comparable properties is made. Comparable
properties of similar size, character and location are
analysed and carefully weighted against all the
respective advantages and disadvantages of each
property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of
capital values.

tertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & w{LEMERLA

AEENRENER _ZT—LFR_F—7
FHZA=1+—A02 R EREHXMTR
ERBHET ZHEER

Dl

7
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(Continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties (Continuea)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and
information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31
December 2017 are as follows:

ntertainment And Culture Group Limited ER&TLERMERAR

16. &M% (&)

FRERBVENAREANE (B

R-F—tF+-_A=+—8 AKEARE
MEZHFBRBBAABEBRZERDT :

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E ] £-4 5=4 @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT AT FEL TEL

Properties located in Hong Kong ~ RIRE B ME - 34,780 - 34,780

Details of the Group’s investment properties and
information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31
December 2016 are as follows:

RZE—RNFE+_A=1+—8 AEFKLKSE
MEZHBRBEEAABEERZERNT

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

5% FEZHR BEH @zt

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL AL FTAET FTHEL

Properties located in Hong Kong WM E BRI ME - 33,700 - 33,700

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, all of the
Group’s investment properties have been pledged to
secure the bank overdrafts granted to the Group.

The Group intends to sell of investment properties it
no longer utilises in the next 12 months. No
impairment loss was recognised on reclassification
of the investment properties as held for sale not at
31 December 2017.

RZE—+tFR_E—R"F+A=+—
A AEBEMEREVECEBIERAEEE
WZRITBEL ZEA -

AEBBNAFI2MEANEEETBEAL
KREME - R _T—tF+-_A=+—H"
BMERBFTOERENVER/FFLERRE
AR EE R -
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17. LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS 17. AT L&

2017 2016
—E—t§ —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MBEBEN 2T
Non-current asset FERBEE 456,304 470,061

18. INTANGIBLE ASSET 18. & JE & &

Licence
HK$’000
FHT
COST 5%
Balance at 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 W _Z— X XF—HA—H —ZT—F
and 1 January 2017 +—A=+—R8ARrk=_Z—+t
—A—BMN&Es 1,079
Through disposal of a subsidiary (note 45) Bi@EE—FEHB R A (M E45) (1,079)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZTE—+F+ - A=+—B8&EH —
CARRYING AMOUNTS R B
Balance at 31 December 2017 N-FB—tFE+-A=+—HHER —
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE-—RE+TA=1T—-—B&8#&#% 1,079
The licence represents the licence plate which hE PR 4 7t FF B O A P B B S B AR 1T B K2 B
enable the vehicle to travel and hang licence plate BHoehBEER BRBREFANREKAE
in both PRC and Hong Kong. The licence is B EERARNEEBBEEERRBIL G
renewable every year at minimal cost. The directors NIFEEERRE -

are of the opinion that the Group would renew the
licence continuously and has the ability to do so.

The licence is considered by the management of AEEEBEERAERAERGHEN -
the Group as having an indefinite useful life BTEAR KRR O] MR IR Bl A AR S B A R B A
because it is expected to generate economic mo MBAGHE KRIFARCHFEHEE
benefit to the Group indefinitely. The licence will not RAR AW EBEBFEERRENRETH
be amortised until its useful life is determined to be AT RE IR R E R AT R E R -

finite. Instead it will be tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that it
may be impaired.

tertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & w{LEMERLA
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19. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 19. Bt & 2 W) 51 %

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at ARARRBEPRROETENBRARFBW
the end of the reporting period are set out as N
follows:
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Forms of Place of paid share capital/  value of issued capital/
business incorporation or registered capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary structure registration paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
EMBIEE ERTRARKRE FATFMBEBTRE
HEAEHTE $BEERS S HMEE BEEx EE/ERERLH TREH
2017 2016
—E-tF i
National Arts Entertainment Limited Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of management services to
(“NA Entertainment”) HK$1,500,000 (indirect) (indirect) artistes in Hong Kong
BEREERAFA(HERE]) FMRUL Ak &8 %1,500,000% 7T 100% 100% HEENEAREEERY
(%) (F#)
National Arts Entertainment Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Holdings Limited Islands US$192,308 (direct) (direct)
BEREZRERAA a4 EBERES  EBER192308% T 100% 100% HEEBETREER
(E#) (E#)
National Arts Production & Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of promotional performance
Promotions Limited HK$1 (indirect) (indirect) services in Hong Kong
BEEEREEERDA g7 AvA S E@EBRIET 100% 100%  FEEBREHEER RS
(%) (f#)
National Arts Films Production Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Provision of distribution of film in
Limited (“NA Film”) HK$1,500,000 (indirect) (indirect) Hong Kong
HEYRREFRAR EAligIAvA Ak &8 %1,500,000% 7T 100% 100% HAEBRERETEY
(TEEFR]) (%) (F#)
Art Tour Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Property investment in Hong Kong
HK$10,000 (direct) (direct)
BEERRA Bl £ & #1%10,000%8 T 100% 100% EFBETHERE
(E#) (E#)
Glory Max Group Limited Incorporated  British Virgin Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
Islands USs$t (direct) (direct)
g7 AvA EB&REE EBRIER 100% 100% HEEBETREAER
(E#) (E%)
Head Return Limited (“HRL”) Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
HK$100 (indirect) (indirect)
HEERRAR(&E]) EAligIAvA Ak B R1007E T 100% 100% HEEBETREAR
(%) (F#)
Expand Pacific Limited (‘EPL") Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Investment holding in Hong Kong
HK$100 (indirect) (indirect)
AFFRBERAATATRE  FRKT £ L#AR100% T 100% 100% EFBETRELR
=3} (i #%) ()
Foshanshi Huixing Jiudian Wholly foreign  PRC Paid-up capital of 100% 100%  Hotel operation in the PRC
Co., Ltd* owned US$32,418,681 (indirect) (indirect)
enterprise
(“WFOE")
BILTEZBEERAA NEBELE HE B 54 732,418,681 100% 100% EHRELEEE
eV (i #%) (%)
Foshanshi Huishoujingqu WFOE PRC Paid-up capital of 100% 100%  Property development and operation
Kai Fa Co., Ltd* US$33,909,113 (indirect) (indirect) of film studio and theme park in the
PRC
BUTEEREREBRAA NEBERE PH % 5% 433,909,113 100% 100% HETHERNEREEZARREIE
e (%) () 2H
Foshanshi Yupinxuan Trading Domestic PRC Registered capital of 100% 100%  Retailing of souvenirs in the PRC
Co., Ltd* enterprise RMB100,000 (indirect) (indirect)
BILTHRFEEERAA NEL%E HE AMERARE 100% 100% HEHRETEL2M
100,0007C () (A#&)
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19. B J& 2wl 51 3% ()

(Continued)

inancial Statements 4 & Bt % 8 R M 5t

19. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Issued and fully

Forms of Place of paid share capital/
business incorporation or registered capital/
Name of subsidiary structure registration Paid-up capital
HEMmbEE ERTRARRE
HBLE & EERALE EReL e meE%
Foshanshi Yufu Food & Domestic PRC Registered capital of
Beverage Co., Ltd"* enterprise RMB100,000
BILTHERRERDA NEL%E HE AMERARS
100,0007C
Rainbow Dragon Corporation Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
Limited \ HK$150
BIERAF ElifIAvA EE L@ R150% T
Wide Expand Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
i HK$100
(21 NG g7 AvA S L@kiET100
Broad Sky Investment Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
HK$20
BRREERAR a4 B L mR0E T
National Arts Travel Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
) HK$500,000
BEREERAF EAligIAvA EE & 1 1%500,00038 7T
Elegant Motion Enterprises Limited  Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of
) Islands USs$1
HDCEFERADA gD AvA EBGEREE EBERIET
Flash Star Holdings Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of
) Islands USs$1
BEERERAA gD AvA EBGEREE EBERIET
Wealth Day Enterprises Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary shares of
) Islands USs$1
EHMCEBRAA g7 AvA EBGEREE EBERET
Lux Unicorn Limited (“Lux Unicorn”) Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
HK$100
BBERAA (RS a4 B ERAR100% T
In Industrial Company Limited Incorporated  Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
(“In Industrial”) ) HK$1
FREZERDAFAERD MR EE ERRIET
NA Sing Sing Entertainment Limited Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares of
) HK$500,000
ZEREERNA g7 AvA S & 17500,000/ 7T

Proportion of nominal
value of issued capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

Principal activities

TERH

AABMBERTRE
HiE/ERERLH

2017 2016
—T-tF e
100% 100%
(indirect) (indirect)
100% 100%
(%) (F#)
100% 100%
(indirect) (indirect)
100% 100%
(i $%) (F#)
100% 100%
(indirect) (indirect)
100% 100%
(%) (F#)
100% 100%
(direct) (direct)
100% 100%
(E#) (E%)
100% 100%
(indirect) (indirect)
100% 100%
(i $%) (F#)
100% 100%
(direct) (direct)
(E8) (E#)
100% 100%
(direct) (direct)
(E8) (E#)
100% 100%
(direct) (direct)
100% 100%
(E#) (%)
100% 100%
(indirect) (indirect)
100% 100%
(%) (F#)
- 100%
(indirect)

- 100%
(F#)

51% 51%
(indirect) (indirect)
51% 51%
(%) (F#)

Light refreshment restaurant in the
PRC

RABEREERER

Investment holding in Hong Kong

EEBETREER

Investment holding in Hong Kong

EEBETRERK

Property investment in Hong Kong

EEBETNERE

Provision of travel related products
in Hong Kong

EERRUKERBER

Investment holding in Hong Kong

ERBRITRERR

Investment holding in Hong Kong

ERBRITRERR

Investment holding in Hong Kong
EEBETRERK
Investment holding in Hong Kong
EEBETREER
Investment holding in Hong Kong
EEBETRERR

Provision of event coordination

services in Hong Kong

ERRRHEEZDAERY

*

Note:

For identification purpose only

None of the subsidiaries had issued any listed securities at
the end of the reporting period. The Group had no
subsidiaries which have materials non-controlling interests
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl ZRZ Xt EEERAF
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20. INVESTMENT IN AN 20. BiE A wl B &
ASSOCIATE

Details of the Group’s investment in an associate AEEREEARNKREFBOT
are as follows:

2016
ZE-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FET
Unlisted investment, at cost IFEEMKE KA E 375 375
Share of post-acquisition loss and DG UL RS 18 B 1B Ik E At
other comprehensive income, 2EUA - B
net of dividends received 2 AR B (265) (262)
Less: disposal of an associate Do R = iR /Nl (110) —
— 113
Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the AREEBERARRBEHROFBELOT
reporting period are as follows:
Country of Principal place Proportion of ownership Proportion of voting rights
Name of entity incorporation of business interes;; héld %y ﬁtraz Group held by the Group Principal activity
E]
BEREH HMBIER FEEEBY EeE: 232140 FEEBENRTELY TEEH
2016
—E-RF
Faithful Arts Entertainment ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong - 37.5% - 37.5%  Provision of creative multimedia
and Culture Limited (indirect) (indirect) services and acting as events
organiser
BEREICBERAA N Bk (F#%) (%) TE%E‘EE&%E%HH%&EE%@
Summarised financial information of the associate BEATMBEMBE
Summarised financial information in respect of the BEAEERE RN BERREHINRN
Group’s associate is set out below. The T o A THMBERBERE S ARRES
summarised financial information below represents BB REENRENTHEREATOE
amounts shown in the associate’s financial o

statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS.
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20. Wi AW & (2

20. INVESTMENT IN AN
ASSOCIATE (continuea)

Summarised financial information of the associate BEATMBENBRE (2
(Continued)
The associate is accounted for using the equity BERARRLEEREVHERRAFEAER X
method in these consolidated financial statements. ABR e
2017 2016
—T—tE —E—XF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FHET
Current assets MEEE - 84
Non-current assets IFRBEE - 216
Current liabilities nE B & - —
Non-current liabilities ERBAaE - —
Cash and cash equivalents e hkBEEMBEEE - 84
Current financial liabilities HRBeREE(TEE
(excluding trade and other payables BB ZHEREA
and provisions) JE AT SRTE DA R B 1) - —
Non-current financial liabilities FnRBeREE(TRE
(excluding trade and other payables FETE 5308 R E A
and provisions) FE T RUIE DA e B ) — —
Revenue A - 971
Loss for the year KEEZEEIE - (382)
Other comprehensive income AEEEMZEEA
for the year = —
Total comprehensive expense AEEEERZLE
for the year — (382)
Dividends received from the associate N4 [ B B & X 7
during the year W ER B9 A% 2 = —
Note: Bt 3T
In July 2017, the Group entered into sale and purchase RIE—+HF+A AEFR-ZE=HIVE
agreement with a third party, to acquire an aggregate of EmaE ARRBIUE T WE LB 4 H37.5%#
37.5% interest in Faithful Arts at a consideration of HK$1. RN SHEHNIBREREE 110,000/ T ©

approximately HK$110,000 in profit or loss.

This transaction has resulted in the recognition of a loss of

Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl ZRZ Xt EEERAF
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21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT 21. B ERE
VENTURE

Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture AEEEGECERENFBOT
are as follows:

2017 2016

—F—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHER FAET

Unlisted investment, at cost IFEEMKE KA E 11,400 11,400
Share of post-acquisition loss and DG UL RS 18 B 1B Ik E Ath
other comprehensive income, Z2HEBA - B2 K

net of dividends received @S (5,000) (4,380)

6,400 7,020

Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of AEBGELERBREHROFBENOT

the reporting period are as follows:

Country of Principal place Proportion of ownership Proportion of voting rights
Name of entity incorporation of business interest held by the Group held by the Group Principal activity
EREE HMRIER IEZENE  FRARANAEEELGIHS FRERFHREHELSN IEEH
2016
ZE-RF
Zhuhaishi Guoyi Yingshi PRC PRC 60% 60% 60% 60%  Cinema Operation
Management Co., Ltd* (indirect) (indirect) (indirect) (indirect)
WETEEYREEERE +E FE (B#) (i) () (M%) ®EEFR
BRAA
* For identification purpose only * EREE
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21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT 21. B ERE &)
VENTURE (continuea)

Summarised financial information of the joint BELEMBEMBE

venture

Summarised financial information in respect of the ﬁ%ﬁ$%é%ﬁ¥ﬁ’]%i§/§\ﬂiﬁ\%%%ﬁljm
Group’s joint venture is set out below. The e LA—T{Q%QMTJE%ETE AECERER
summarised financial information below represents AHBRELNFERHOABREMAN S
amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial o

statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity BEERRNEFREMBREAEAEDE
method in these consolidated financial statements. Ak e
2016
—F—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
Current assets MEEE 2,336 2,605
Non-current assets FEMBEE 13,742 14,137
Current liabilities nEEE 5,437 5,836
Non-current liabilities ERBBEE - —
The above amounts of assets and il EERAESSE
liabilities include the following: BEATEE:
Cash and cash equivalents RehRE&EEHAEE 1,239 644
Current financial liabilities nBEeMEECTERE
(excluding trade and other payables BNESHZEREAM
and provisions) FE S FRIE DA R B ) — —
Non-current financial liabilities FnRBeREE(TEE
(excluding trade and other payables JETE 5308 kA A
and provisions) FE T RUIE DA R B ) — —

tertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & w{LEMERLA
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21. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT 21. B ERE &)
VENTURE (continuea)

BELRMBEANME S

Summarised financial information of the joint
venture (Continued)

2017 2016
—F—t%F —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET
Revenue A 7,212 8,575
Loss for the year KEEERE (1,087) (1,507)
Other comprehensive income AREFHMEERKA
for the year = —
Total comprehensive expense AEEL2ERFX L
for the year (1,087) (1,507)
Dividends received from the REEABEEDRE
joint venture during the year W ER B i B - —
The above loss for the year include L AFEEERRE
the following: LATIE B
Depreciation and amortisation e R#E (155) (157)
Interest income B A 2 5
Interest expense FMERXZ - —
Income tax expense FriS B 2 - (31)
The amount due from a joint venture was EHALMENERZEAEEI K%
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BRBEREIE o

Annual Report 2017 =T —t 8§ 207



Annual Report 2017 =Z—t £ R

oﬁs to the Consolidated Fihacial Statements ZE MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 22, [ L BB E

INVESTMENT

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHER FET

Unlisted investment, at cost FELMEE  EKAE 5,250 5,000

Addition NE - 250
Provision for impairment loss BRI EEERE

recognised (5,250) —

— 5,250

The above unlisted investment represents
investment in unlisted equity securities issued by a
limited liability company incorporate in the British
Virgin Islands. Based on information obtained by the
Group in respect of the investee, which information
may not be up to date, the investee is an
investment holding company whose subsidiaries are
principally engaged in a manufacturer of bottled
distilled water based in PRC.

The investment is measured at cost less impairment
at the end of the reporting period because the
variability in the range of reasonable fair value
measurements is considered to be significant for
equity instruments of such type of entity and
probabilities of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
when measuring fair value.

The Group assessed whether there was any
objective evidence that the investment was impaired
as at 31 December 2017. In this respect, the Group
noted that during the financial year, the investee
had ceased to respond to the Group’s requests for
information and updates. This fact, taken together
with financial information received by the Group in
the earlier part of the year about the consolidated
financial position and results of the investee and its
subsidiaries which showed that the investee had
suffered significant losses after the initial recognition
by the Group of the investment, provided objective
evidence of impairment of the investment. Such
losses suffered by the investee and the
noncooperation of the investee had a significant
impact on the Group’s estimation of future cash
flows of the investment compared to that previously
estimated by the Group at the time when it made
the investment. Based on the revised estimates, the
future cash flows of the investment were expected
to be insignificant in amounts compared to the
initial cost of the investment, hence full impairment
loss of approximately HK$5,250,000 was recognised
in consolidated profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited BRETILERERLAT '.-

PR ERHRERD —HRABHE RS
MR 2 BRAREITZAR EMBRAE S o
REBEAEEFRMESEARKKRETWERCK
VEBRHFER HRREQAR—MRKREE
BRF HMBAR AT EETENERE
R EBRNEER -

ZIERE TR E HIR - AR AR (B B 1R
JIE ARAEAREFERENE( Y
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HEANSEGEOAEE RFEAAE
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REBIFEREEATMNREBERMZEE
R-E—+FE+-_A=+—BEHME - stk
ME  AEEEIER REBFER HR
EHEFILOEASEEYRHEEN MEHE
AMMEK - WBEE N EAEBERF RIS
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BARAREENMBFEER  HPhRBREEE
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23. FILM PRODUCTS AND FILM

PRODUCTION IN

i

23. TR E h K AR RUE R R

PROGRESS
Films
production
Film rights in progress Total
EFHEF EREVER @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEIL FEL FET
Cost: B
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZE—X"F—H—H
B 45 103,187 - 108,187
Additions NE — 3,630 3,630
Transfer to film products BREZEYEM — - —
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+A
and 1 January 2017 =t—BEZZE—LF
—A— BN 108,187 3,630 106,817
Additions NE — _ _
Transfer to film products EREEYED 3,630 (3,630) -
Balance at 31 December 2017 WRZ-T—+t%£
+-A=+—-BHEEH 106,817 - 106,817
Accumulated amortisation R EERRBESRE:
and impairment losses:
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—A—HK
R 92,442 - 92,442
Amortisation of film products BEYEmEBH 10,745 - 10,745
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+A
and 1 January 2017 =t—HBEZZE—LF
—RA—HH%&H% 108,187 - 103,187
Amortisation of film products BEYEMEBH 1,210 — 1,210
Balance at 31 December 2017 WZ=F—+t%
+ZA=+—-B0EE 104,397 - 104,397
CARRYING AMOUNTS R (E
Balance at 31 December 2017 WZ-F—+t%
+ZA=+—Hi & 2,420 - 2,420
Balance at 31 December 2016 R-T—REF
TZRA=T—BH&EH - 3,630 3,630
Note: Bt 3 -

Amortisation charge of approximately HK$1,210,000 (2016:
approximately HK$10,745,000) with respect to fim rights
has been included in cost of film production in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Amortisation of film right is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are one year to

three years.

ERAE R ERN NS T £1,210,0008 T (=ZF
—NEE : #910,745,0008 7T) BEFF AL A B R E
fh 2 EURARP R E L RAIEM AR o BRAEFHE6H
VA B4R 0 4 LA At AT (65 R 4 HA B 8 L Bk AR (B R
FerBEAE -TEAFEAFHA—ZE=F-
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24. INVESTMENTS IN FILMS/

nancial Statements GEMBHREME
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24. ftEH

341 EXG

DRAMAS PRODUCTION

2017 2016

—E—+tF T —RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Investments in films/dramas production % & &5 BBl &1 986 6,461
Note: B E

The amount represents investments in licensed production
houses for co-financing the production of films and/or
dramas. The investments are governed by the relevant
agreements entered into between the Group and the
production houses whereby the Group is entitled to
benefits generated from the distribution of the related films
and/or dramas.

As at 31 December 2017, the productions of
certain films and/or dramas were completed but the
distribution thereof had not yet commenced. Due to
the delays in the screening of these films and/or
dramas and the inability of the production houses to
satisfy the Group about the reliability of estimated
timelines for the screenings, the Group had fully
impaired the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment cost in these films and /or dramas.
Accordingly an impairment loss of approximately
HK$5,775,000 (2016: nil) is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the year ended 31
December 2017.

tertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & w{LEMERLA
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%
25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. EWE 5k H
2017 2016
—E—t§ —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Trade receivables EURE 5 58 125,595 6,693
The Group generally allows a credit period from 30 REEREZSRPRHENEER—RAI0
to 90 days (2016: 30 to 90 days) to its trade HZEQ0H (ZZ— /4 : 30HZ90RH) - FEI
customers. The following is the ageing analysis of BS5HIE (R REREE) NEEMRAH
trade receivables, net of allowances for bad and BERE AT ¢
doubtful debts, presented based on the invoice
date:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FHET
0 to 60 days 0£60H 40,669 2,881
61 to 90 days 61290H 19,906 144
91 to 180 days 91&180H 37,129 1,123
Over 180 days HB#180H 27,891 2,545
125,595 6,693
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

25.

At 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
approximately HK$60,575,000 (2016: approximately
HK$3,025,000) were neither past due nor impaired.
These balances related to certain customers whom
there was no recent history of default.

Included in the balances are debts with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$65,020,000 (2016:
approximately HK$3,668,000) which were past due
at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. Trade receivables that
are past due but not impaired relate to a number of
customers and the directors are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is the ageing analysis of trade
receivables which are past due but not impaired
based on the due date:

e Consolidated Financial Statements % & &1 % 3 & i &

JEWE 5 a3k H (&)

R-TE—+E+-_A=+—H EKEH
X I8 4960,575,00008 ;T(Z & — N F: 4
3,025,000/ 0) W AR HF B WERE - %5
EHR BT ESHERLENETER
B

4 & R FT B 1A BR B A #965,020,0007% JT
—ZEB— N 1 #93,668,000/ 7T ) KBS R
SRHEEE AEEVEAZSEGER
BEEERE CAPETRRENERES
REBHSRETER MEEREHRZEER
FREEEETESEAES  ZEEHBNE
RAEAZEWE  WEARZELERIERE
BE - ANEBYERZSESEEEAR -

£
EZ =T A

1815 21 B 2 B S S R R R 5
HHERE DT T -

0 to 90 days
Over 90 days

0Z90H
H#90H

2017 2016
Bt —E-AE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# 5 T
37,129 1,123
27,891 2,545
65,020 3,668

Movement on the Group’s allowance for impairment
of trade receivables are as follows:

AEERWESHBERERBENESHIOT

2017 2016
—B—t% —E-AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT TR

At 1 January ®n—A—A

Impairments losses of trade receivables & U & 5 X 18 8 8 (B &5 18 13 —
Receivables written off W E A E &7 8] Y E i i

during the year as uncollectible £ 1) FE W kA (13) —
At 31 December R+-_A=+—8 - —
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26. INVENTORIES 26. # &
2017 2016
—F—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
Food and beverage B 1,369 1,022
Merchandise Gl 1,074 912
General operating supplies and others — LW E & E ity 538 480
2,981 2,414
27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS 27. A K IE ~ ¥ 4 S FE il JRE Uk
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES X JH
2017 2016
—F—tF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
Non-current assets ERHEE
Other receivable (notes (i) and (ii)) H b FE YR 3B
(B £ G) B (i) ) 100,181 88,651
Deposits (note (iii)) =& (B e i) 4,901 4,900
105,082 93,551
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments BT RIA 19,461 23,314
Rental deposits HERS 1,672 2,994
Other deposits HEiHe 1,165 832
Deposits paid to suppliers BEfHEEZS 6,341 8,680
Other receivables H e 518 52,833 19,974
81,472 55,794
186,554 149,345
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

tertainment And Culture Group Limited

The other receivable balance as at 31 December
2016 represented the amount due from a local
government company which was repayable in 40
years and secured by the Wong Tai Sin Temple
located in Xigiao Mountain in Foshan City, the PRC.
The Group and the PRC local government company
mutually agreed that interest, based on the
People’s Bank of China Benchmark Interest Rates,
would not be accrued until the Wong Tai Sin
Temple records a monthly turnover of more than
RMB100,000 for six consecutive months. The
amount was denominated in RMB. As at 31
December 2016, the monthly turnover threshold
had not been met yet.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
PRC government issued Guozongfa (2017) No. 88
(the “Guozongfa”) on 3 November 2017 to address
the commercialisation issues relating to the
development of Buddhism and Taoism in the PRC.
Under the Guozongfa, it is promulgated that
commercial capital is strictly forbidden to intervene
in Buddhist Taoism and no organisation or
individual may invest or contract for the operation
of Buddhist Taoism activities or conduct business
operations on or through Buddhist Taoism venues.

After the issuance of the Guozongfa, the Group,
with the assistance of PRC legal advisers,
proceeded to assess the legal effects of the
Guozongfa on the construction management
agreement entered into with the PRC local
government company and to discuss with the PRC
local government company in order to effect
amendments to the terms of the agreement
considered necessary as a result of the
promulgation of the Guozongfa. The management of
the Group was taking actions and steps considered
necessary to respond to the changes in regulatory
environment brought about by the Guozongfa with
a view to safeguard the Group’s interests in the
Wong Tai Sin Temple and optimize the synergistic
benefits that the temple can bring to the Film
Studio as the temple is located in the film studio
area.

HEREXLEMERAA
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(i)

*

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group and the PRC
local government company reached mutual
agreement on the changes to the contractual
arrangements between them to take account of the
changes in the applicable laws and regulations due
to the promulgation of the Guozongfa. In March
2018, the Group and the PRC local government
company officially entered into a loan repayment
agreement which superseds all previous
agreements between them. Under the terms of the
loan repayment agreement, the PRC local
government company would repay the principal
amount and accrued interest payable under the
superseded agreements amounting to
RMB74,700,000 in aggregate in the following
manner:

— RMB11,259,000 to be repaid on 21 March
2018

— The remaining RMB63,441,000 to be repaid
annually in equal instalments over a period of
15 years, bearing interest at 5% per annum
to be paid together with the annual
repayment instalment.

The amount of RMB11,259,000 was duly repaid by
the PRC local government company on 21 March
2018. As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate
amount of RMB74,700,000 owed to the Group was
classified as follows:

— Current assets: approximately HK$13,517,800
(equivalent to RMB11,259,000)

— Non-current assets: approximately HK$76,169,000
(equivalent to RMB63,441,000)

Included in the balance of other receivables as non-
current assets of the Group as at 31 December
2017 was loan receivable of RMB20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$24,012,000). Loan
receivable was unsecured, bearing interest at 10%
per annum and repayable in January 2019.

Included in the balance of deposits classified as non-
current assets of the Group as at 31 December
2016 was deposit of approximately RMB3,570,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,651,000) in
relation to a proposed acquisition of 60% equity
interest of LTI EXBA BT AR A A (Foshan
City Yi Mei Wedding Photography Limited*) at a
consideration of RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,931,000). As at 31 December
2017, the proposed acquisition is still under
progress.

For identification purpose only

rtainment And Culture Group Limited B & 18 2
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e Consolidated Financial Statements %4 & 817 R & Mt &

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

CASH AND BANK
BALANCES/BANK
OVERDRAFTS

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks
and in hand and bank overdrafts.

Cash at banks earn interests at the floating rates
pbased on the daily bank deposits rates. Bank
overdrafts carrying interest at market rate which
range from 0.75% per annum below HKD Prime
Rate to 1% per annum over Hong Kong Inter-bank
Offered Rate (2016: range from 0.75% per annum
pbelow HKD Prime Rate to 1% per annum over
Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate).

At 31 December 2017, included in cash and cash
equivalents of the Group was approximately
HK$2,878,000 (2016: approximately HK$1,967,000)
of bank balances denominated in RMB placed with
banks in Hong Kong and the PRC and on hands,
which are not freely convertible into other
currencies.

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group was granted by its suppliers’ credit
periods from 30 to 60 days (2016: 30 to 60 days).
The following is the ageing analysis of trade
payables based on invoice date:

28. e R BATH 8 MRITIE X

RelREeFEBABRRBITLFAREIN
FARITE »

RITR ST RO BIREN T HRITEHF
EMENFHERTE - RITEIT 2 FH=
ENREBTHREENEFH0.75%E FART
BEFREIMB(CE—XNE: NRABELEE
BRI EBO7T5%EFBRITEEFREN1%)
BT I5FIRET B -

R-ZT—+tE+-A=+—HB AEAY
RehBE2EEBEBREUARBFER
FTRREANTRZMETNRITES N
F IR 4 42,878,000 L (ZZ —RNF : 4
1,967,000 L) - ARBEARAIERELBR AR
HhE -

29. FEAF § 5wk

N5 HEH KRR X FI0R £60H (= F
—RFE:30HEE0R)EEH - EHNE SR
HRBEHRZAYOKRETOT

0 to 30 days 0&30H
31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61£290H
91 to 180 days 91£E180H
Over 180 days H#E180H

2017 2016
—E—t —EAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#5t Tt
3,154 934

68 224

14 164

1,048 79
21,382 445
25,666 1,846

Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl ZRZ Xt EEERAF
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30. OTHER PAYABLES AND

31.

i

£

30. 3 fth FE AF a5k H K BE 5t £ H

ACCRUALS
2017 2016
—E—tf —E—XE
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#T FHET
Current liabilities RBER
Accruals EETE A 35,680 98,198
Receipts in advance 78 W F A 8,898 5,519
Other payables H i & FE 71,414 55,303
115,992 159,020
Non-current liabilities EREERE
Other payables H fth FE {31008 - 24,236
115,992 183,256
LOANS FROM 31. JBE R 1Y B 3
SHAREHOLDERS
2017 2016
—ET—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# T FBT
Current liabilities HEaE
Mr. Sin (note (a)) S (MR (a) 396,269 —
Ms. Law (note (b)) 7 2+ (M 5E (o)) 35,661 —
Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong (“Mr. Tsang”) Bk EAE(TEEED
(note (c)) (Ff5E(c)) 3,500 873
Mr. Tse Young Lai (“‘Mr. Tse”) AR E (T LD
(note (d)) (Fff 5% (d)) - 10,000
Mr. Yiu Kin Kong (“Mr. Yiu”) oMl % A& (THk kD
(note (e)) (Ff5E(e)) 17,243 —
452,673 10,873
Non-current liabilities EREERE
Mr. Sin (note (a)) L @) 20,000 413,510
Ms. Law (note (b)) 7+ (M sk (o)) - 35,661
Mr. Tse (note (d)) i 5t £ (MY 5E(d)) 7,244 —
Mr. Yiu Kin Kong (“Mr. Yiu”) BhEMI S & (T e £
(note (e) (Bt 5% (e) ) 24,143 2,300
51,387 451,471
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31. LOANS FROM
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

inancial Statements GEMBHREME

—tEF+-A=+—HLFE

31. e 3 i B Ak ()

The loans from shareholders are repayable as BROERERUTHRAEE
follows:
2017 2016
—F—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH&ET FHET
Carrying amount repayable: BRUATHRANERZ
BRTEE :
Within one year —FR 452,673 10,873
More than one year, but not exceeding — F A 18 TR B /M F
two years 49,087 179,961
More than two years, but not more F LA EBREEAF
than five years 2,300 271,510
504,060 462,344

Notes: B ET

(@  The loans are unsecured. The loan amounting (a) ZEEREER REAXTENERME
HK$40,000,000 included in the loans from Mr. Sin 2 /3 %140,000,0008 TH ERH R B RER
is interest-free and is repayable within one year. —FREE - B EXFMRERIN KREE
Except for the abovementioned loan, the loans from %A E U N F6.00% E15.00% K F ﬂ
Mr. Sin bear interest ranging from 6.00% to EGERERMFENER - %Z?;_g -~
15.00% per annum and are repayable within two F+-_A=+-—"BLFE HER 7%%51
years. During the year ended 31 December 2016, 20,000,000 7T+ 7] B 8 E & S EE
the loan amounting HK$20,000,000 is freely transfer HEBHIAEME D AR LR ERET 2%
and/or assign all or any part of the loan and the Ao FE KRBT EMAL
rights, interest and benefit of Mr. Sin hereunder to
any person.

(o) The loan is unsecured and bears interest at 5.00% (b) HEFEIEMRIZ5.00%FFEFE (=
per annum (2016: 5.00%) and is repayable within T—NF :5.00%) RER—FREE-
one year.

(c)  The loan is unsecured and bears interest at 15.00% () ZEFEERKIE15.00%60FFEFE (=
per annum (2016: 5.00%) and is repayable within T —RNF 1 5.00%) RBAR—FNEE-
one year.

(d)  The loan is unsecured and bears interest at 11.50% (d) ZERAEERRIZFF E11.50%
per annum (2016: 12.00%) and is repayable within —7NFF 1 12.00% ) FTE &ﬁﬁAWﬁinﬁi&
two years.

(e)  The loan is unsecured and bears interest ranging ) ZERAEERRZN T FFEL.00%ZE

from 8.00% to 12.00% per annum (2016: 11.75%)
and is repayable with two years.

tertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & w{LEMERLA
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32. BORROWINGS 32. f§ &
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET FAET
Current liabilities REBBEE
Bank borrowings — secured wITEHE — BER
— Fixed rate (note (a)) — T E (K@) - 16,745
— Floating rate (note (b)) — F B (D) 7,000 7,500
7,000 24,245
Other borrowings — secured HifgE — KA
(note (c)) (FF5E(C)) 100,000 —
Other borrowings — unsecured HiEE — MM
(note (d)) (M5 (0)) 93,547 107,245
200,547 131,490
Non-current liabilities FRENEHE
Other borrowings — unsecured HifgE — mER
(note (d)) (M 5% (0)) 20,655 48,048
221,202 179,538
The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows: AEBEEEEARNATHRAERER
2016
—F—tHF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAET
Carrying amount repayable: AR THRANEZRZZ
BREE :
Within one year —FN 200,547 131,490
More than one year, but not exceeding — F JA 18 7~ i [l F
two years 7,497 48,048
More than two years, but not MELEETBBERF
exceeding five years 13,158 =
221,202 179,538
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32. BORROWINGS (Continued)

33.

Notes:

(@)

The fixed rate bank borrowing of the Group is
secured by the personal guarantee executed by a
director of the Company and bears interest at
17.40% per annum. The fixed rate borrowing is
denominated in RMB.

The floating rate bank borrowing of the Group is
secured by the Group’s investment properties (Note
16) and bears interest at 2.75% per annum over
Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate (2016: at
2.75% per annum over Hong Kong Inter-bank
Offered Rate). The floating rate bank borrowing is
denominated in HKS.

The other borrowings is secured by (i) the personal
guarantee executed by Mr. Sin, (i) share capital of
Glory Max Group Limited and EPL and bears
interest at 13.00% per annum.

The other borrowings are unsecured and bear
interest ranging from 2.88% to 36.00% per annum
(2016: from 4.00% to 15.00% per annum). The
other borrowings are repayable within one year to
three years (2016: within one year to two years).
Included in other borrowings is amount of
approximately HK$51,250,000 due to Mr. Chow Kai
Weng, the director of the Company.

FINANCE LEASE
OBLIGATION

Future finance lease payments arising from the
leasing of film studio and motor vehicle are due as
follows:

Not later than one year
Later than one year but

BN —4F

not later than five years hF
Later than five years EBRAF
Balance at 31 December 2017 HR-Z— 4
S =—F
2 EE R

B — B TER

32. fi & (#)

Bt 3

(@ AEETERBRIIEEHARREZESTEIN
A AERIEIR R IZ17.40% ) FFIREHE -
EEEEUARBE-

(o) AKEFERTEERAREEREYE M
FE16) A MR BB RIT R XK B I12.75%
MEME(ZE—XRF: EBRTAERS
M2.75%MEFEFF)F S - FERBEBEMK
BIEHE

(©) HEMEEAATSEAER  (ALEET
) E AYELR K (i)Glory Max Limited &2 K
FRRERMRAR - WIRF £13.00%5 8 °

 HtEEAEKMRERIZEN F288%2
36.00%HM EFEFEHE(ZZE—REFENT
4.00%E15.00% 8 F F| X) - A8 EER
—EE-FREE(CE-—AF : R—F=
MER) - HMEEREENARREEZA
B 88 4 A HY 3R I8 #951,250,00058 7T

33. W %5 L R i

FMEkREREEENARREENRN
T

Minimum

lease
payment Interest Present value
REBAERFR B RE
2017 2017 2017
—F—tF —F—tF —F—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TER FTER
9,041 1,888 7,153
7,927 7,487 440
59,055 44,017 15,038
76,023 53,392 22,631

Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & {LEMERLAA .
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33. FINANCE LEASE 33. MB M E&E 2
OBLIGATION (continued)

Minimum
lease
payment Interest Present value
SEMBEMNK FILE BE
2016 2016 2016
—E—REF —ZE-REF —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
Not later than one year TER—F 4,802 1,766 3,036
Later than one year but BR—FEMNER
not later than five years hF 7,495 6,997 498
Later than five years EBRAF 60,960 41,088 19,872
Balance at 31 December 2016 » —Z — /N4
+=-F=+—H
2R 73,257 49,851 23,406
The present values of future lease payments are AREENRNBEI A :
analysed as:
2017 2016
—F—tHF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHER FAET
Current liabilities mBAaE 7,153 3,036
Non-current liabilities ERBAaE 15,478 20,370
22,631 23,406
Finance lease obligation that are denominated in the NBEMSEBEE G ERTENMBHER
functional currencies of the relevant group entities BHIMOT
are set out below:
2017 2016
—ET—tHF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FAET
RMB AR ¥ 22,348 23,023
HKS$ BT 283 383

22,631 23,406
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34. BONDS 34. &%

New Issued Bonds

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company issued the bonds with an aggregate
principal amount of approximately HK$412,457,000
(2016: approximately HK$242,678,000) at par value
in accordance with the conditional placing and
underwriting agreement entered into between the
Company and the independent placing agents. The
bonds have a maturity from three months to 8
years (2016: from 1 year to 8 years) from the dates
of issue and bear coupon interest ranging from 0%
to 9.60% per annum (2016: from 4.66% to 12.00%
per annum), accrued daily and payable annually in
arrears. A default rate ranging from 0% to 9.60%
per annum (2016: from 4.66% to 12.00%) will be
charged on any sum due and payable under the
Bonds from the due date to the date of actual
payment in full. The bonds were denominated in
HKS.

The movement for the period on the bonds was as
follows:

mETES

HE-_Z—+E+-_A=+—BILEE &K
NEMBEARR BB A ENRIEFTZNEIF
HRERBEDGE HAERTASLES
#9412,457,0008 (= T — N F: 4
242,678,000/ L) MEH c X S EH R ETT
AfExIZ@AAZENF(ZE—RF: — &
NE)EH  EXENTFEF0%ELC0%(ZF
— NF B F466%%12.00%)  Fl BT H
2V EBSFRERINANNE - KL
YNZEEFNAMEIBRENEE  BRD
HHEER 28 EHIEEF0%E9.60%
B (ZZ—NF : FF466%E12.00% ) EH
FIRLTAAB - ZEEHFUNBITETE

AHEABEFOEBHET

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH#ET FHET
Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz#&#% 506,803 273,970
Proceeds from issue of the bonds BITESAT 15 412,457 242,678
Transaction cost allocated NEZEEDBSH
to the liability component TG A (87,557) (18,045)
Interest expense (note 9) B (it 5E9) 83,025 50,944
Interest paid during the year FRENFE (97,271) (39,744)
Repayment during the year FRER (73,819) (3,000)
Transfer to other payables B H b R 5RIR (23,718) -
Balance at 31 December R+t A=+—H2Z2&% 719,920 506,803
Carrying amount repayable: ARUTHRRANEZRZZ
BREE :
Within one year —FR 306,369 61,115
More than one year but not exceeding —&F A EBTBBME
two years 183,015 212,325
More than two years but not exceeding 4 A 1B BB L F
five years 166,773 134,266
More than five years HFEU 63,763 99,097
719,920 506,803

rts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited EER&Z XL EMFRAR . :
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34. BONDS (Continued)

35.

New Issued Bonds (Continuea)

The fair value of the Bonds at 31 December 2017
amounted to approximately HK$849,432,000 (2016:
approximately HK$607,907,000). The fair value of
the Bonds are calculated using cash flows
discounted at rate on the borrowings rate ranging
from 7.26% to 8.99% per annum (2016: from
4.84% to 6.36% per annum) and are within level 2
of the fair value hierarchy.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

CB4

As part of the consideration of the acquisition of
remaining equity interests in HRL and EPL, the
Company issued convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$420,000,000
(“CB4”) on 2 October 2013. The CB4 has a
maturity of 3 years from the date of issue and
bears coupon interest at 4% per annum, accrued
daily and payable annually in arrears. A default rate
of 8% per annum will be charged on any sum due
and payable under the CB4 from the due date to
the date of actual payment in full. The CB4 was
denominated in HKS$.

The conversion price of the CB4, subject to the
antidilution usual adjustments, is HK$0.112 per
conversion share. As a result of the share
consolidation and the rights issue of the Company
and in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the CB4, adjustment to the conversion price of the
CB4 from HK$0.112 per conversion share to
HK$1.063 per conversion share has become
effective. The outstanding principal amount of the
CB4 can be converted in whole or any part (in
minimum amount of HK$420,000 or an integral
multiple thereof) into conversion shares from the
date of issue of the CB4 up to and including the
date falling on the 7th day immediately prior to the
maturity date.

i

34. &% (&)
HRTESE (D)

BER_ZE—+F+-_RA=+—RHZAKMHE
4 /849,432,000 T(= & — XN F: 4
607,907,000/ 7T) ° EH < AR EBEITVIRBIE
BEERMRFEN F7.26%%E8.99% (— T — X
F:FENTF484%56.36%) B 2B ER
EBE WIARABESERE_H -

35. Wl it 15 2%
ELERE T

EREER MK P FAREBEA R
BANRE ARARAR_ZT—=FF+A=-A%
1778 & 42 58 /420,000,000 7T & A #2 f% (&
F(EMPATMRES]) - FOHL AR E
FRETHBEA=ZF2H BFLXA
4% FEEHRFALASFRMRIN T
AR o il R BE S AN 58 PO 4L AT 4 IR 4B 25 9 4F
MEMENESE AN EER2HX
A B FB%MENNEINHME - 5
POHE AT R (B 2 A B JTRT B -

BT HBREFNEREATR L BRG
0112870 A —MREEAEMBRR -
AR AR R G 0F &AL IR LA R AR % 55 g it
AR ES 2GR R IET  FEBL T BRE
FNABRERTRILBREMHOA12BTAE
BERNEBIRMI.063ETERENR - BF
Pt AR E AT R R E BRI A
F+H(BEZB)HE SO BRERES
KR (EERN S (KK FE A420,0008 T
S ETEGE) A 2P EIRK LB

{/'\ °
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(Continued)

CB4 (Continued)

The holder of the CB4 shall be entitled to request
the Company to pay interest to it (wholly or partly)
by way of allotment and issuance of new shares of
the Company at the conversion price on the due
day of the interest payment in lieu of payment by
cash. Such interest conversion arrangement is only
applicable to the 4% per annum interest payment
and is not applicable to the 8% default interest
payment. The Company may redeem the CB4 at
any time prior to the maturity date in whole or any
part (in minimum amount of HK$420,000 or an
integral multiple thereof) at the principal amount of
such CB4 thereof plus interest accrued thereon up
to the actual date of redemption.

The CB4 has been valued at the issuance date by
a qualified professional valuer. The fair value of the
liability component of the CB4 was estimated at the
issuance date using an equivalent market interest
rate for a similar bond with call option. The residual
amount (being the difference between the fair value
of the CB4 at issuance date and the fair value of
the liability component on initial recognition) is
assigned as the equity component and is included
in equity heading convertible bond equity reserve.
The liability component is subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component of the CB4 was calculated using future
repayments discounted at an estimated discount
rate of 15.63%. Subsequently, interest expense on
the CB4 is calculated using the effective interest
method by applying effective interest rate of
16.47%. On initial recognition, the amount of equity
component of CB4 was approximately
HK$120,540,000.
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FOgTRRES(E)

BT HBREFNFEAGRRARRAE
KR BRI A ERE BB MEITA
RAFRHDRAEZFFE (2 KHBD)
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T [ BB 77 00 R % 11 35 ) 1T (A FF © F
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(Continued)

CB4 (Continueq)

In August 2014, the Company has early redeemed
the CB4 with aggregate principal amounts of
approximately HK$215,460,000 by cash at
approximately HK$208,996,000 which Mr. Sin
offered to waive the accrued interest up to the date
of repayment and to provide a discount of 3% on
the principal amount). A loss on redemption of the
CB4 of approximately HK$25,252,000, which
represented the difference between the redemption
price allocated to liability component of the CB4
and the carrying amount of the liability component
of the CB4 at the redemption date, has been
credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2014. In June 2016, the Company has
early settled the CB4 with aggregate principal
amounts of HK$9,869,000 by cash at approximately
HK$10,473,000. A loss on redemption of the CB4
of approximately HK$193,000, which represented
the difference between the redemption price
allocated to the liability component of the CB4 and
the carrying amount of the liability component of the
CB4 at the redemption date, has been recognised.
The CB4 was valued at the redemption date by a
qualified professional valuer. The fair values of the
liability component and the equity component of the
redeemed CB4 at redemption date were derived by
means of the same method used at issuance date.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, CB4
were fully settled by the issuance of several fixed
borrowings and loans from shareholders (note 47).
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35. W L& % (&)

FORTRRES(E)

R-_Z—MmWEFENA ARAFUNREH
208,996,000 L (KR E kAR E =EE
BHIEMEFE RIRHE A S EI%MITN)
12 BB [0 /K & 48 58 49215,460,000/8 7T 8 5
Mt R EAR - BE - —WNE+ - A
T BLEFENGAEEWRERACITA
25 70 #E AT 2 B% 15 25 1 & 3] /85 18 4925,252,000
BT HER SR TR TREESAE
HomEBERELASF Ut BRESFEESD
RELHHMNERENERE R_T—~F
N A AR A AR € 410,473,000 T iR R
4N A& #4858 59,869,000/ 7T 2 & MO #it 7] #
MRES - CHERE M A # AL E 5B O &
18 49193,000/8 7T - HHE KN H B T 5 Mt ]
BRELFBESI S NERLEEF AR
BEHBEERIRNERNBHNERENZ5 -
FrgtABRESEREORHRAERE
EGEMETHE - CEBE N RRE
(BERH RERLEOINELBHENAAE
TEBRETHEATEREBMER A AER -
HE-_Z—R"E+-_A=+t—BIEE &
Mt R EAEBRBETZARTEER
REBREOE B (M 5E47) o
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(Continued)

CB5

As part of the consideration of the acquisition of
Lux Unicorn Limited as detailed in note 46, the
Company issued convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$300,000,000
(“CB5”) on 15 April 2015. The CB5 has a maturity
of 8 years from the date of issue and bears
coupon interest at 9% per annum, accrued daily
and payable annually in arrears. The conversion
price of CB5, subject to the anti-dilution usual
adjustments, is HK$0.18 per conversion share. The
CB5 was denominated in HK$.

The conversion price of the CBS5, subject to the
usual adjustments, is HK$0.18 per conversion
share. The outstanding principal amount of the CB5
can be converted in whole or any part (in minimum
amount of HK$300,000 or an integral multiple
thereof) into conversion shares from the date of
issue of the CB5 up to and including the date
falling on the 5th day immediately prior to the
maturity date.

The holder of the CB5 shall be entitled to request
the Company to pay interest to it (wholly or partly)
by way of allotment and issuance of new shares of
the Company at the conversion price on the due
day of the interest payment in lieu of payment by
cash by giving not less than 7 business days’
written notice prior to the due date for payment of
interest. Such interest conversion arrangement is
only applicable to the 9% per annum interest
payment. The Company may redeem the CB5 at
any time prior to the maturity date in whole or any
part (in minimum amount of HK$300,000 or an
integral multiple thereof) at the principal amount of
such CB5 thereof plus interest accrued thereon up
to the actual date of redemption by giving to the
bond holder not less than 10 business days’ written
notice of its intention to make such redemption.
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35. L& % (&)

BAMTRRES
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(Continued)

CB5 (Continued)

The fair value of the liability component of the CB5
was calculated using future repayments discounted
at an estimated discount rate of 11.28% per
annum. The residual amount of approximately
HK$46,697,000 (being the difference between the
fair value of the CB5 at issuance date and the fair
value of the liability component on initial
recognition) is assigned as the equity component
and is included in equity heading convertible bond
equity reserve. The liability component is
subsequently stated at fair value, with changes
recorded in consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

In May and July 2016, CB5 with aggregate principal
amounts of HK$84,600,000 and HK$35,400,000
were converted into 470,000,000 ordinary shares
and 196,666,666 ordinary shares of the Company in
total at a conversion price of HK$0.18 each
respectively. In June 2015, CB5 with aggregate
principal amounts of HK$79,800,000 were
converted into 443,333,333 ordinary shares of the
Company in total at a conversion price of HK$0.18
each. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
Mr. Sin and four holders of CB5 offered to waive
the accrued interest up to the date of conversion of
approximately HK$12,513,000.

CB5 is due to Mr. Sin. As at 31 December 2017,
the principal amount of the CB5 is approximately
HK$100,200,000 (31 December 2016:
approximately HK$105,316,000).

ts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited H& &L EMERAF

35. W L& % (&)

BAMTRKRES(E)

FRATHREFEBELXIPNARENRS
F11.28% ) {f 5T 3T B R 3738 R 2R 38 30 &t
H o Fl#r 4 5B 446,697,000/ 7T (BN At 7]
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RZT—XFRAREA AeBEA
84,600,000/ 7T }35,400,0007% 7T 1) 5 1 #it
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N4 4858 579,800,000/ 7T B & T 4L AT # AR
BEHFEHIBESRISELERAKXQAAS
443,333,333\ EBP - REZE T —<F
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35. CONVERTIBLE
(Continued)

The movement of the liability components of the

BONDS

35. W & 2% (#)

ERMBRREERNABRRESABRD

convertible bonds recognised in the statement of R mT -
financial position are as follows:
CB4 CB5 Total
U kA ERH
o] & B 15 5 ik E S st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAET FET FAET
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZTE—RF
—A—BM&ER 151,382 226,068 377,450
Effective interest expenses TR A BB (M 5E9)
(note 9) 14,290 - 14,290
Early settled by the issuance of &8 ¥ 5 31T
loan from shareholder BEREEN
(note 47(i) (Pt 3E4703)) (9,869) - (9,869)
Interest paid during the year FRENFE (302) — (302)
Waiver of interest of convertible #A % 7] # % (& % &9
bond A B — (12,513) (12,513)
Fair value changes NTRER ) — 22,200 22,200
Converted into ordinary shares 2 & & i i% — (115,924) (115,924)
Transfer to interest payables — #5 {# Z= & | 8 - (9,018) (9,018)
Settled by the issuance of BBABETHMEER
other borrowings and loans RERRAERLE T
from shareholders (note 47(i)) (B 5E47(i)) (155,501) — (155,501)
Balance at 31 December 2016 BN =—Z—<XF+=A
=T —H®EH — 110,813 110,813
Fair value changes N EEE - 4,902 4,902
Transfer to interest payables 5 # = J& {5 F & - (9,018) (9,018)
Balance at 31 December R=-ZFT—t&+=H
2017 =E+—88Ee - 106,697 106,697

nd Culture Group Limited ElEREXLEMERAA
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35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS
(Continued)

Balance at 31 December 2017

rtainment And Culture Group Limited B S5 1L £BHRAT

35. W L& % (&)

AZF—tE+-A=t+—HZER

CB4 CB5 Total
kg EhHt
o] & B% & % Gk Y A st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T THET F#IT
Carrying amount repayable ZEM LI THIR R {EiE
ZIREE
Within one year —F R - 106,697 106,697
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+ZA=+—HEHW&E#
CB4 CB5 Total
Eguskiig ER
AR ES AR E BET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET FET
Carrying amount repayable ZEM LI THIR R {EiE
ZIREE
More than one year but not BB —FRETHEA
exceeding two years Y F — 110,813 110,813

The fair values of the liability components CB5 at 31
December 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$106,697,000 (31 December 2016:
approximately HK$110,813,000). The fair values of
the liability components of CB5 are calculated using
cash flows discounted at rate based on the
borrowings rate of 7.24% per annum (2016: 4.57%
per annum) and are within level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy.

Ro=E Zt+—HER#ATBAR

BEHFABEIDH A R EL A106,697,000/%#
7T : A=+ —8:%
110813000%7_5) el REsFaE
DHRARE TR B ENE Ettﬂ’]ﬁaiﬁf
l¢724%(_7* E
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& o
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36. PROMISSORY NOTE 36. & 5t 5 BE

PN 1

On 15 April 2015, the Company issued promissory
note with principal amount of HK$80,000,000 (the
“PN 1”) at par value in accordance with the sale
and purchase agreement dated 22 December 2014
entered into between Elegant Motion Enterprises
Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, the non-
executive Director. The PN 1 has a maturity of 3
years from the date of issue and bear coupon
interest at 9% per annum, accrued daily and
payable annually in arrears. The PN 1 are
denominated in HK$.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, on initial
recognition, the fair value of the PN 1 was
calculated by discounting future repayments at an
estimated discount rate of 12.37%. Subsequently,
interest expense on the PN 1 was calculated using
the effective interest method by applying an
effective interest rate of 12.41% per annum.

The movement for the period on the PN 1 was as
follows:

RREH

RZZE—RAFMNA+HRE  ARFABEARD
RIZEMBRRMESCEER AR EIEHNTT
EEAEAMELETTVER AT —NE+ =
AZ+-HZEEHe HEEZETA:S
% 580,000,000/ 7T 2 & H Z i ([F 5 EZiE
1)) o A H ZEHIREITH BT = F 518
ZRRENRIREH R WANEGEH
R o B EFEATIABTEHE -

HE-_Z—AF+-_A=+t—BLEE B
PHERE AL ERIZ AR BT ERHET
BRIRE12.37%ERIR R R BRAANE - E&
EAZBIERBERA R ERFERR X
12.41% EF B -

AARBINBMAZESHIT

PN 1

&R ER

HK$ 000

FAET

Balance at 1 January 2016 RZT—RF—A—B8&EH 79,576
Effective interest expense (note 9) BB A B (M 59) 9,279
Transfer to interest payables HREEMSF S (7,200)
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE-—RET_A=+—A8&E#H 81,655
Effective interest expense (note 9) FLEF S (M 559) 9,536
Transfer to interest payables EREEMNTE (7,200)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZT—tF+A=+—ANEH 83,991

The fair value of PN 1 amounted to approximately
HK$85,395,000 (2016: approximately
HK$88,505,000). The fair value of PN 1 s
calculated using cash flows discounted at rate on
the borrowings rate of 7.54% per annum (2016:
5.48% per annum) and are within level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy.

tertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & w{LEMERLA

A EZEAH A A2 B 4 A85,395,0007 7T (=
T — XN F R R E K14 A88,505,000%8
) e AR BRI A RBENRBEREER
R R EGETBA% (ZE—NE: 54
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37. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the tax
rates applicable in the tax jurisdiction concerned.

The following are the deferred tax liabilities
recognised by the Group and movements thereon
during the year.
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37. W %€ B H AR

BEERBERABEEEIAEEEEZRRERR
A B8 0 M RO M [ A0 A R T A 2 B A -

TBI A e B B R 0 ESE BB B (8 R A
ERMET -

Revaluation of

properties

MES M

HK$’000

FHET

At 1 January 2016 RZZE—-—RF—-—H—H 179,804

Charged to property revaluation reserve R EEGHFEEBERNR (3,448)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZE—RF+A=+—8K

—E—+F—H—H 176,356

Charged to property revaluation reserve Ry EEEFEEANR (10,727)

At 31 December 2017 R_E—+F+_A=+—H 165,629

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unused tax losses of approximately
HK$534,911,000 (2016: approximately
HK$486,132,000) available for offsetting against
future profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Included in the estimated unused tax losses
are losses of approximately HK$199,748,000 (2016:
approximately HK$185,709,000) that will expire
within 5 years. Other estimated unused tax losses
of approximately HK$335,163,000 (2016:
approximately HK$300,423,000) may be carried
forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of these estimated unused
tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit
streams.

RBESER  AEBEFHFADARBEEE
49584,911,000%8 t(= & — X F: 4
486,132,000 7T) * A] FA{EIKSHE £ BB R
REIZ R HH - et KRB ARIEEEYE
/E5 18 £199,748,000%8 ;L (= & — X F : 4
185,709,000/ /) R A F A fE H - Efbfh
=tk B B 548 49335,163,00058 7T (— & — /<
F ¢ 4300,423,00078 J0) Al FE R EREE 45 - A
TR PR e8 FI B DATER) - iR 4 Bk B OB B R B
RIEL T I8 E E -
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38. SHARE CAPITAL

Notes

M

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each & & E0.178 1T

—tEF+-A=+—HLFE

38. ik A

Number of Shares

k& E

Share Capital
A

(2016:HK$0.1 each) —E-REF:
FREE01ET)
Vg B R
Authorised: BT
At 1 January and 31 December " —A—H &
+=A=+-8 6,000,000 6,000,000 600,000 600,000

Issued and fully paid: ERTRHYR:

At 1 January E(‘_ﬂ —H 3,998,389 3,331,722 399,839 333,172

Capitalisation of loan interest & & 5 F| 8B &L

payable (@) 112,107 - 11,211 -
Capitalisation of other payable HMENFBEERL (o) 387,984 - 38,798 -
Share issued upon exercise of 171 B I HEFTE1THY

share options & 15,680 - 1,568 —
Shares issued under upon RBTARESRAE

conversion of convertible TR (P 2E)

bonds (note) () - 666,667 - 66,667

31 December W+=A=+-8 4514160 3,998,389 451,416 399,839

Notes: B 5

(@) On 21 April 2017, the Company issued 112,107,623 (a) R-ZE—tFWA-_+—H8 ARAAEE
shares at HK$0.1 each to Mr. Sin to settle interest f5%0.17% 7T » 3 17112,107,6230% B% 19 F %k 5%
payables of the loans from shareholder, convertible ENRENER TR ESLRAN
bonds and promissory note amounting to =7 ERF B - & % 4925,000,000 JT
approximately HK$25,000,000 (note 47(i)). (Bt 547(3)) »

() On 21 April 2017, the Company issued 387,984,117 ) RZE—+tFHUAZ+—H ARARE
shares at HK$0.1 each to the third parties to settle HQO.L%E % 17387,984, 117D F 5 =
the other payables amounting to approximately F U&ERFEMENRKRE € 8H
HK$86,472,000 (note 47(ii). 86,472,000/ 7T (Mt 5T47(i) ) °

(c)  During the year ended 31 December 2016, a total ) BEZE-—REF+-A=+—-HILHFE-

of 666,666,667 ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.1 each were issued upon conversion of the
CB5 (note 35). In May and July 2016, CB5 with
aggregate principal amounts of HK$84,600,000 and
HK$35,400,000 were converted into 470,000,000
ordinary shares and 196,666,666 ordinary shares of
the Company in total at a conversion price of
HK$0.18 each, resulting in an increase in share
capital and share premium of the Group of
approximately HK$66,667,000 and HK$67,936,000
respectively.

Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl ZRZ Xt EEERAF

4 1£666,666,667 1% & A FEE0. 1B TR AR
AEBRARABERIATRRESFRET
(H3535) - R—ZT—X"FRARLA &%
#8586 /484,600,000 7T % .35,400,0005% 7t H)
FRAMATRRES R BREFTRISE T
a8t 5 7K N\ 7] A $£470,000,0000% % 8 X &
196,666,666% & i@ AR - B BUA £ B AR A
& & 15 5 1B o Bl 3 0 £966,667,0007% T &
67,936,000/ JT °
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39.

40.

RESERVES

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 116 of the
consolidated financial statements.

The special reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the
shares of the Company issued in exchange for the
shares of the acquired subsidiaries under the
reorganisation.

The contributed surplus account was designated by
the Company within the meaning of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda which represented () the
entire amounts standing to the credit balance of the
share premium account of the Company as at 30
June 2010; (i) the transfer of the share premium
arising from capital reduction on 29 September
2010; and (i) the offset with the accumulated
losses in full up to 31 December 2010.

OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

rtainment And Culture Group Limited B S5 1L £BHRAT

39. fifi i

AEBAFEMBEFENFEBBELESR
EHNEAVBRRENCENFARAE
BERANZT -

R Tl 7 48 18 PT U B PN /B8 2 R AL () RO T (B 22 R
RENBAR ST B A R RO M
BITHRNDOEEMENZR -

AARFTEENEHRARE(TERBERE
—NAN—FRALE)EOAR A KD HER
R-IZE—ZFENA=Z+ENERZEEHS
A =—Z—ZF A =+ B RS RE
ARMDEENEE  LiBRBREEE T
—EF+-_A=Z+—HHRHAEBE-

40. BEMBE & #

FREEREBEA
RBEHR AEERBETAIHELEEE

commitments for future minimum lease payments BUTRERNFEBESFRE - BHEBR
under non-cancellable operating leases which N
approximately fall due as follows:
2017 2016
—F—tHF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH&ET FET
Within one year —FR 9,303 12,665
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZFERF
(BEERMF) 29,388 35,091
Over five years A F 99,271 98,943
137,962 146,699
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40. OPERATING LEASE

COMMITMENTS (continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

The HRL and its subsidiaries leased two pieces of
land located near Xigiao mountain in Foshan, the
PRC, under operating leases of 20 years
commencing from 3 October 2010 and renewable
for another 20 years automatically. One piece of
land had been leased since 2010 and recognised
as finance lease obligation in 2011 as disclosed in
note 33. Lux Unicorn leased three pieces of land
also located near Xigiao mountain in Foshan, the
PRC, under operating leases of 18.5 vyears
commencing from 1 November 2013 and renewable
for another 20 years automatically. The Group also
leased premises under operating leases which are
run for an initial period of three years. None of
these leases include contingent rentals.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$210,000 (2016: approximately
HK$352,000). The properties held have committed
tenants for one year for the year ended 31
December 2016.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

inancial Statements 4 & Bt % 8 R M 5t
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0. BEMERE 2

FREERREANE)

EANMNEBARIRBELLEHE AR AF
EfLmE LR mE L B - —FF+
A=HBRAH-_+F ra®EHE_TF-
AN FEQSFTHE c Rt E T —
TEHREEBER S ——FEHRAMKA
EAE BREBRELCEAERA MM EPEH
BLFEE L=t B —=F+—
A— B AH18sFE JaAFBEH —_+F-
AREBRRELERELAYE  ZEHE
NEEB=-F - ZEHEBRTEERAME
@ o

FREERLEA

FRBRIRZWEMRS WAL H210,0007 7T
(ZF—XF  4352,0008 T) c HE - &
—RNE+_A=+-BIEE FEAENY
E¥EHEAFRE—FHNEE-

RBERR ARECBART LAY - K
REREEENFKMOT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RHF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FH#T FET
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE—

ainment And Culture Group Limited gtﬁ%iﬁ:

41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41. E AR KB
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FET
Contracted but not provided for: B EES: L
Construction of properties LS 91,807 128,734
Authorised but not contracted for: EHEERATY ¢
Construction of properties (Note) My E R (M EE) 360,187 344,986
Note: M5
Capital commitment for construction in properties related W) B R AR Y B R RCHE BR A b B 3k L) BB AR A
to capital commitment for construction of film studio and BIEMEREERR - BRIEBEERBEAR AR (KAQF
hotel in Foshan, the PRC. The authorised amount was ZEEWMBAR) EARFE LT A KEREE
approved by the directors of the Company according to THERREESUNHEBAREEELEEES
the land lease agreements signed between Lux Unicorn, M8+ i A Etﬁ% CARRNBEECDHELRTE
the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the local £ - BBEEAEASNEZ:IHE s B R
authority in Foshan, the PRC, in relation to the leasing of ZERNERNRTRIEAZE -
lands for development of tourism and related
entertainment business and hotel operations. The
completion of constructions and commencement of
operations of the projects shall be within three and four
years respectively from the signing of the lease
agreements.
42. RETIREMENT BENEFIT 42. B 1@ Al EE A

PLANS

The Group participates in employee social security
plans as required by the regulations in the PRC.
The Group also participates in the Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme to which all qualified
employees of the Group in Hong Kong are entitled.
The assets of the retirement benefit schemes are
held, separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of the trustees. The employees of
the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of social
security schemes operated by the relevant local
government authorities. The pension plans are
funded by payments from employees and by the
relevant group companies. The amounts charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income represent
contributions payable by the Group at the specified
rates according to the respective plans. The only
obligation of the Group in respect of the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

AEBBRBEPEER 2R ELEREHER
it 8 - ARE T2 EERARAEEAREE
ZIBREREERZAFIMARESE - R
RENFE 2 EERARB 2 EERFETA
sz EZ2 0 RARKE RHPBEMBARZ
BEABRAEMBTHBEHR 2 SRR
gz E - ‘W?HtﬂZé@X?ﬁ?%tE%&tﬁ
MEBRRZHR NG BEAEMERH
WHERARZBEAARERE S BIRE
FE LR A 2 5K - AR E A BRI RN
o BRERELEEHRNR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had share
options schemes for employee compensation as set

out below.

(a)

Post initial public offering share option
scheme

The post initial public offering share option
scheme (“Post-IPO Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved by a resolution of the
sole shareholder dated 22 July 2002 (the
“Effective Date”). Major terms of this scheme
are summarised as follows:

(i

(i

(i)

(iv)

The Post-IPO Option Scheme enables
the Company to grant share options to
selected persons as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the
Group.

The participants of the Post-IPO Option
Scheme include any employee, director,
advisor and consultant, supplier,
customer and shareholder of any
member of the Group as well as any
provider of financial assistance to any
member of the Group.

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the
Company on acceptance of the share
option offer. The share option offer will
be offered for acceptance for a period
of 14 days from the date on which the
offer is granted.

Share options may be granted on such
terms and conditions in relation to their
vesting, exercise or otherwise as the
board of directors of the Company may
determine, provided such terms and
conditions shall not be inconsistent with
any other terms and conditions of the
Post-IPO Option Scheme. The grantees
are not required to hold any share
options or any shares allotted pursuant
to any share options for any minimum
period.

tertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & w{LEMERLA
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Post initial public offering share option
scheme (Continuea)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

The subscription price for the shares
under the Post-IPO Option Scheme will
be determined by the board of
directors of the Company and notified
to each grantee and will be at least the
highest of (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the share option,
which must be a business day, (b) the
average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of
grant and (c) the nominal value of a
share.

The limit on the number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Post-IPO
Option Scheme and other share option
schemes must not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Post-
IPO Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at 17 October 2002,
amounting to 49,219,623 shares (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit"). The
Company may renew the Scheme
Mandate Limit at any time subject to
prior shareholders’ approval. However,
the Scheme Mandate Limit as renewed
must not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of the aforesaid
shareholders’ approval.

43. VAt 2 B ME R Ak 2R 5 (42)

(a)

rtainment And Culture Group Limited B S5 1L £BHRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-Z—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 43. DL Ay 7 B HE R A 5K 28 5 (#2)

TRANSACTIONS (continueq)

(a)  Post initial public offering share option (a) BRAMBREBRESEZ)

scheme (Continuea)

(i)

(i)

The total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the share
options granted under the Post-IPO
Option Scheme to each grantee
(including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue from time to time. Any
further grant of share options to such
grantee which would result in the
shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all share options granted
and to be granted to such grantee
(including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of
such further grant representing in
aggregate over 1% of the shares in
issue, must be subject to shareholders’
approval with such grantee and his
associates abstaining from voting.

A share option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Post-
IPO Option Scheme at any time during
the period notified by the board of
directors of the Company to each
grantee provided that the period within
which the share option must be
exercised shall not be more than 10
years from the date of grant of the
share option.

The Post-IPO Option Scheme remains
valid for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Effective Date. In
addition, the Company may, by ordinary
resolution in general meeting or the
board of directors of the Company may
at any time terminate the operation of
the Post- IPO Option Scheme. Share
options which are granted during the life
of the Post-IPO Option Scheme may
continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the
extraordinary general meeting of the

Company, the Post-IPO Option Scheme was
terminated on 29 September 2010.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

New share option scheme

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the

extraordinary general

meeting of the

Company, a new share option scheme (the

“New Scheme”)

was approved on 29

September 2010. Major terms of this scheme
are summarised as follows:

(M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The purpose of the New Scheme is to
attract and retain the best available
personnel, to provide additional
incentive to selected person and to
promote the success of the business of
the Group;

The participants of the New Scheme
include any employee of the Company
or any subsidiary of the Company, a
director, a shareholder, a supplier, a
customer or any subsidiary of the
Company; an agent, adviser,
consultant, strategist, contractor, sub-
contractor, expert or entity that
provides research, development or
other technological support or any
valuable services to Company or any of
its subsidiary; a holder of any securities
issued by Company or any of its
subsidiary;

HK$1 is payable by the grantee to the
Company on acceptance of the share
option offer. The share option offer will
be offered for acceptance for a period
of 14 days from the date on which the
offer is granted;

No offer of a New Share Option which
is capable of or open for acceptance
shall be made after the expiry of the
exercise period pursuant to the New
Scheme;

43. VAt 2 B ME R Ak 2R 5 (42)

(b)
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) New share option scheme (Continueq)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

The subscription price for the share
under the New Scheme will be
determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion at the time of making the
offer of grant of a new share option but
in any case the subscription price must
be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of the offer of grant,
which must be a Business Day; (i) the
average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five Business
Day immediately preceding the date of
the offer of grant; and (iiij the nominal
value of the shares;

The total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the New
Scheme and any other schemes in
aggregate not exceeding 10 per cent of
the issued share capital of the
Company as at 29 June 2017 (2016:
24 June 2016), amounting to
4,498,481,222 shares (2016:
3,801,722,816 shares) (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”"). The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit at any
time subject to the approval of the
Shareholders in general meeting
provided that such renewed limit shall
not exceed 10 per cent of the Shares
in issue as at the date of approval of
such limit;

The total number of New Shares issued
and to be issued upon the exercise of
the New Share Options granted to each
grantee (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding Share Options) in any
12 month period shall not exceed 1 per
cent of the relevant class of securities
of the Company in issue. Further New
Share Options may be granted to such
grantee, which, if exercised, would
result in such grantee becoming entitled
to subscribe for New Shares in excess
of the limit, by obtaining approval of the
Shareholders in general meeting with
such grantee and his associate(s)
abstaining from voting;

Entertainment And Culture Group Limited Bl ZRZ Xt EEERAF k
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

New share option scheme (Continued)

(vii)

(ix)

The share options may be exercised in
whole or in part by the Participant at
any time during the exercise period, i.e.
not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant of the relevant New Share
Options pursuant to the New Scheme,
by delivering to the Company a notice
duly signed in a form approved by the
Board (together with payment of the
exercise price in full in respect of each
New Share to be subscribed for) and
delivery of the New Share Option
certificate for amendment or
cancellation; and

The New Scheme will remain in force for
a period of 10 years commencing on
the date on which the New Scheme
becomes unconditional. The Board may
amend any of the provisions of the New
Scheme or withdraw or otherwise
terminate the New Scheme at any time
but no alterations shall be made to the
advantage of any Participant unless
approved by the Shareholders in
general meeting. All New Share Options
granted prior to such termination and
not then exercise shall continue to be
valid and exercisable subject to and in
accordance with the terms of the New
Scheme.

43. VAt 2 B ME R Ak 2R 5 (42)

(b)
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 43. DIy B R AT X R 5 (&)
TRANSACTIONS (continuea)
The following table discloses details and TEBBEHE-_ZT—tER-T—R"Ft+=
movements of the Company’s share options held by A=1T—BLFEBREF 6ERKEBUK
the directors, eligible employees and other REBEMSEEMBENNRABBRE
participants of the Group during the years ended 31 AEREY-

December 2017 and 2016:

Number of share options
BREYE
Outstanding at Exercised Outstanding at
1 January Granted during during the Lapsed during 31 December
Option type 2017 the year year the year 2017

R-E-t%

=t B +2 7

~A-BH =+-8

BRAES AT REABE  RENFE  REAKR  BRGE

Post-IPO Option Scheme & X AR Rk %

B3l 12,885,263 - - (788,938) 12,096,325
New Scheme #et gl 10,787,062 288,740,000 (15,680,000) (2,554,075) 281,292,987
Total @t 23,672,325 288,740,000 (15,680,000) (3,343,013) 293,389,312

Exercisable at the end of R ERA{TE
the year 23,672,325 293,389,312

Weighted average exercise Al F191T(# (B
price HK$5.18% T  HK$0.25%T  HK$0.25%T  HKS6.158T  HKS3.31ET

ional Arts Entertainment And Culture Group Limited ERETLEMEGRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 43. DL Ay 2 B ME R A 5K 2R 5 (#2)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Number of share options

EREHE
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding at
1 January during the during the during the 31 December
Option type 2016 year year year 2016
RZE-1F RZE—RE
—A-HH ) \ . tZA=+-A
BREES Gk REREH RERTE RERKH WARTTE
Post-IPO Option Scheme ERNEL
Bl 12,885,263 - - - 12,885,263
New Scheme Hatdl 10,787,062 - - - 10,787,062
23,672,325 - - - 23,672,325
Exercisable at the end of RERTATE
the year 23,672,325 23,672,325
Weighted average METHATEE
exercise price HKS5.187% 7T - - - HK$5.1878 1T

Note: B EE

The following share options under the New Scheme were NTHABTHERERBEE T —F+=_H

exercised during the year ended 31 December 2017: =+ —RILFEETE:

For the year ended 31 December 2017 RBE-_FT—t&E+-_A=+—HILEE
Share price
immediately

Number of Share price at before the date

Date of option grant Shares Exercise date exercise date of exercise

BT

REBKRESH Ko 8B TEBH fTEBHRE B #5789 Bz &

16 May 2017 2,240,000 18 December 2017 0.43 0.46

—E—tFRHA+RH 2,240,000 —E—tF+=ZA+NAH 0.43 0.46

16 May 2017 13,440,000 20 December 2017 0.42 0.40

—T—+HFARA+H 13,440,000 —E—+F+=-A=+H 0.42 0.40
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43. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continueq)

As at 31 December 2017, the number of shares of
which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the share option scheme was
298,389,312 (2016: 23,672,325) representing
approximately 6.5% (2016: 0.59%) of the
Company'’s issued shares capital at that date. The
weighted average remaining contractual life was 4
years (2016: 3.8 years).

43.

The fair value of the share options granted to
employees and directors was determined using the
binomial Model.

The following assumptions were used to calculate
the fair values of share options:

Date of grant

i A

Number of shares to be issued upon exercise of Options granted

EREERERETERZE TETZRNEE
Estimated fair values of options granted (rounded to HK$’000)
HEHERLEREZANBEWEETET)
Grant date share price

KRB E S

Exercise price

TEE

Expected volatility

T8 HR K 18

Expected life of options

FE R RETE 5T B AP

Risk-free interest rate

1 3 B 1| 22

Expected dividend yield

8 B U 3

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the share prices of other
companies in the similar industry over the expected
life of the options. No other feature of the options
granted was incorporated into the measurement of
fair values.

The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair values of the share options are based on
the Directors’ best estimate. The value of an option
varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

Options granted are fully vested at the date of
grant.

HEREXLEMERAA

tertainment And Culture Group Limited

inancial Statements 4 & Bt % 8 R M 5t

VA I Ao 2 B 8 B8 5k ik 22 5 (42)

R-E—+F+-A=+—08 RERE:S
ST EERHBMORITEBRENRGEE
£293,389,3121% (= & — /X F : 23,675,325
B) (R ARRREENEEITRAE Y
6.50% (=& — 7N 4F : 0.59% ) o h1#E F 15 £
TAELHERABOE(ZE—NE : 3.848) -

ETRENREFTBRENAAENER =R
BEEEE -

AEERENLAAESECHANTER
16 May 2017

—T—+ERAT+HEA

288,740,000

288,740,000

HK$31,422,000
31,422,000/% 7T
HK$0.2240
BT
HK$0.2456
BT

76.45%
76.45%

2.64 years
2.644F

0.887%
0.887%

0.00%

0.00%

TEHR IR IR AR S RRIT R Z DR RR
ERBRIETRE FH R 2 IR EMEE
SAEAAER YEMACDELZBREZ
H AR #h -

HERBIEY AR ERER BHEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

44. RELATED PARTY 44, Bk 5 R 5
TRANSACTIONS
Save as disclosed in notes 7, 9, 31, 35 and 38 to Bir e B RmARME7 ~ 9 31 35K%38FT#H
the consolidated financial statements, the Group BN AEEBEEHBH AT L TIRS
entered into the following transactions with related
parties:
2017 2016
—ET—tHF —E—XF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest paid to a related company 2 — B B 2 &) ) B - 454
Interest paid to shareholders BEATREF A 43,699 32,501
Waiver of interest of convertible bond — £A % A] # % & % 7l & - 12,513

Loss on capitalisation of loan interest & AL & B U F| B 518

payables (1,570) —
Compensation of key management personnel TEEEASHRH
The Directors consider that they are the only key FERE BERAEBE FZERAE
management personnel of the Group and details of HERMNESFBERHAMFEIZ -

their compensation are set out in note 13.
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45. DISPOSAL OF A 45. W& — H b8 A W
SUBSIDIARY
In March 2017, the Group entered into a sale and RZE—+F=R FAEEE-BE=FF]
purchase agreement with a third party to dispose of VEBEWE LEAEEFAENEBEAE
the Group’s entire equity interest in In Industrial for R IRE R EAE1,000,0008 7T  FARAE
a cash consideration of HK$1,000,000. In Industrial ERNBRAMK Lz BBEREERRAA -
is an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong.
Analysis of asset and liabilities over which control REBRHEZEEREBEM
was lost

HK$’000
TFET

Non-current assets ERHEE
Intangible asset EAE 1,079
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEEE 1,079
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHMEBATZEE
HK$’000
Fi# T
Consideration received 2R E 1,000
Net assets disposal of BHEEEEE (1,079)
Loss on disposal HEZERE (79)
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE-EMBATRZRERNFHE
HK$’000
F#T
Consideration received in cash and URe MRS EBEE WERZKE
cash equivalents 1,000
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46. RECONCILIATION OF 46. M E WS B P E R AR Z BHIR
LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s TRFNAEEREFDMELEABZE
liabilities arising from financing activities, including g pPRESRIFEEMIENES - #E
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising EEMELARERSRECKLIARRES
from financing activities are those for which cash RERESBEAAEBERARERERANZ
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in BEEHMNESRENEHEEE -

the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

Loans from Finance lease Convertible  Promissory
shareholders  Borrowings  obligations Bonds bond note Total
% M B
HER B HERE &% RE%H RRAER @it

(note 31) (note 32) (note 33) (note 34) (note 35) (note 36)
(Hi§E31) (B 5t32) (Bi5t33) (Bit34) (P 3£35) (Pi3E36)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TET FET FAT T T
At January 2017 RZE—tF—-A 462,344 179,538 23,406 506,803 110,813 81,655 1,364,559
Financing cash flows REBLTE 3,851 16,385 (2,584) 153,810 - - 171,462
Finance costs recognised & # R &4 A A 43,699 26,768 2,171 83,025 - 9,536 165,199
Fair value change NREEZH - - - - 4,902 - 4,902
Transfer to other payables 8 # % X fto JE
and accruals B R B E (5,834) (2,081) - (23,718) (9,018) (7,200) (47,851)
Effect of foreign currency HNEERZHFE
exchange differences - 592 (362) - - - 230
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F
+-A=+—8 504,060 221,202 22,631 719,920 106,697 83,991 1,658,501
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47. MAJOR NON — CASH 47 FRFEBERH

TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company issued 112,107,623 shares at
HK$0.1 each to Mr. Sin to settle the
amounting to approximately HK$25,000,000
(Note 38).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company issued 387,984,117 shares at
HK$0.1 each to the third parties to settle the
other payables amounting to approximately
HK$86,472,000 (Note 38).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
aggregate outstanding principal of CB4
amounting approximately HK$9,869,000, early
settled by the issuance of loan from Mr. Sin
(Note 35).

REZE-_FT—+tF+-A=+—8H1F
FERARAREROAB T BT
112,107,623/ F A & B &84
25,000,000/ 7t (Ff5E£38) °

i REBEE-_T—tF+-_A=+—8L1Lt
FEARARAREROE T BT
387,984,117 FHE =7« ST E b fE
P 30I8 - 4 %8 4986,472,00058 7T (B 5%
38) °

ii. (BT -—R"F+ZA=+—HLF

F FENH I RRESEMAREELAS

48 %A #9,869,000/% JT 38 8 % S £ 31T
,\,MEE,\DH(W.&%)

iv.  During the year ended 31 December 2016, the v. HEZFE-XR"F+ZA=+—HILF
aggregate outstanding principal and accrued BN RRRESFHKRERERS
interests of CB4 amounting approximately BFE & FEET A B 5 Bl £9149,520, 000/%
HK$149,520,000 and HK$5,981,000 7T %5,981,0008 LM B EITHMEE
respectively, settled by the issuance of other 49114,879,00078 7T & 2K B IR R A B 3%
borrowings of amounting approximately #940,622,0007% 7T 45 1+ (M 3E35) ©
HK$114,879,000 and loans from shareholders
of amounting approximately HK$40,622,000
(Note 35).
48. DIVIDEND 48. it B
No dividend has been proposed or declared by the —E—+tF+-_A=F+—HLEFE E
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2017 EMEEZAETRRE(ZE—RF: E) -
(2016: Nil).
49. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL 49. ik vk 0 % R R
STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements for the year HE-_Z—+tF+-_A=+—HILEFEHLR

EMBBEREN_F—
EEedERMm-

NF=A-++tHE

ended 31 December 2017 were approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2018.

tertainment And Culture Group Limited EZR & w{LEMERLA




L

ent And Culture Group Limited H1% &% (L £ HA R4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4 & Bf %5 3R % Mt 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

50. A 2 W] By B 85 ik Ot k& K
fili

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVES

OF THE COMPANY

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FHET
Non-current assets RBHEE
Property, plant and equipment M- RERZE 3 5
Investments in subsidiaries WBARZ&E 882 882
885 887
Current assets RHEE
Prepayments, deposit and other FERRE - e REME
receivables W KT8 2,724 1,436
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR B B A7) 18 2,233,299 1,936,091
Cash and bank balances R & KIR1T 4 5 16,037 2,102
2,252,060 1,939,629
Current liabilities AR ‘
Other payables and accruals HEmMmENREBEREGTER 44,295 20,302
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASH I B R A R 1,019 784
Loans from shareholders % 3R B & R 452,673 10,873
Borrowings B 177,945 90,845
Bonds &5 306,369 61,115
Convertible bond Al MR (& & 106,697 —
Promissory note AR E R 83,991 —
1,172,989 183,919
Net current assets RHEEFHE 1,079,071 1,755,710
Total assets less current liabilities ZBEEBERABER 1,079,956 1,756,597
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Loans from shareholders REMER 51,387 451,471
Borrowings BE 20,655 48,048
Bonds &5 413,551 445,688
Convertible bond AR E - 110,813
Promissory note & H R - 81,655
485,593 1,137,675
Net assets BEFE 594,363 618,922
Capital and reserves BEXRGHE
Equity attributable to owners of RAAREE AEGER
the Company
Share capital f% Z< 451,416 399,839
Reserves ke 142,947 219,083
Total equity HSAE 594,363 618,922
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 50. A 2 w) w8 8 5K Bl % K

POSITION AND RESERVES i i ()
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
The Company’s statement of financial position was RARZHBRABEREBRETEN-F
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of —N\FZAZ T tAMERRETIE  LH
Directors on 27 March 2018 and are signed on its THESEREESTEEE
behalf by:
Chow Kai Weng Sin Kwok Lam
AR s % B
Director Director
= E2

HEREXLEMERAA

re Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements GEMBHRERMEE
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50. A 2 | B 5 R O ik &
s &

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE—

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AND RESERVES
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves FATNREED
Convertible
bonds Share
Share Capital equity Contributed options  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve losses Total
EEY 3¢
RiEE N1 R RHRR MRERE RiBHR @zt
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
4% FHEL FHEL FHEL FHEL FHEL FHEL FHEL
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZZE-A4—F—A
H 663,770 (25) 80,081 76,471 26,229 (250,851) 595,675
Early settlement of convertible RABNARRES
bond - - (2,893 - - 2,878 (15)
Share issued upon conversion of XA AR EH T
convertible bonds (note 35) # M8 4 (F1 535) 67,936 - (18,679) - - - 49,257
Lapse of the equity component T?Mx EHFERDH
of convertible bonds - - (42,912) - - 42,912 -
Loss for the year Zl‘ir BB - - - - - (425,834) (425,834)
Balance at 31 December 2016~ HW=T—X<E+=A
and 1 January 2017 =+—-HRkZ=%
—+E-A—-HHK
=3 731,706 (25) 15,597 76,471 26,229 (630,895) 219,083
Capitalisation of loan interest ERERFEERL
payables 15,359 - - - - - 15,359
Capitalisation of other payables — H{th /B R IBE A (L 53,154 - - - - - 53,154
Share issued upon exercise of 171 AR & AT & 1T
share options &1 3,495 - - - (1,212) - 2,283
Equity-settled share-based T & 5 R AR 3R
payment (note 43) (1 ££43) - - - - 31,422 - 31,422
Lapse of share options B AR KA - - - - (4,559) 4,559 -
Loss for the year KEEEHE - - - - - (178,354) (178,354)
Balance at 31 December 2017~ RZZT—+F
+-A=+-8 803,714 (25) 15,507 76,471 51,880 (804,690) 142,947
The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a ARRNEZRBTRARARNEAMES - B

result of capital reorganisation and represents the
entire amounts standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company as at 30 June

ARBR-_Z-—FFEXA=THNORMEE
BRAVEFR 2R N AR AN B P EE AR - A
HEREEARR RN RFTER - RIZE

2010 and the credits arising from capital reduction RE-—NN— $ ET?% R RARINE BB
for eliminating or setting off the accumulated losses R ATt 9 R © WA A EIEEAEE ()

of the Company from time to time. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of the Company is available for

$ jTEz_‘ZﬁAQ BB GT B IR
S AEH 2 IKR TR A E BB & & ¢ 3k(ii)
AAREER T RABESEN NS A

distribution. However, the Company cannot declare &EE?’* TRRAR B () B E R EF - AR
or pay dividend, or make a distribution out of the RATMSEEARSGT EIRSOR R ESE

contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds
for believing that: () it is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.

The capital reserve of the Company arose as a
result of the reorganisation and represents the
excess of the combined net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange
thereof.

Hl' 7k ©

BARFHIDEEAMEE - BPTIK
BAMAHEEFERLAREER
THRARENBD °

i

=
%M
%%D)E
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

b B T NF —_T-hFE —_T--NE —_T-—=fF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET FHET FHET

Revenue PN 221,372 57,827 40,038 15,260 19,094

Loss before income [ &% A /&5 18

tax (193,533) (827,092) (264,834) (142,989) (17,682)
Income tax expense FT{§HRI &2 - — — (5,924) (6,543)
Loss for the year FANEE (193,533) (327,092) (264,834) (148,913) (24,225)
Attributable to: LA RS
Owners of the KNARHER

Company (193,529) (827,091) (264,828) (148,913) (20,614)
Non-controlling SRR

interests (4) (1) (6) — (3,611)

(193,533) (827,092) (264,834) (148,913) (24,225)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND o~ AR
EQUITY
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
- LR —T—XF —T—HF —T-mOF —T—=
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET FAET FET FET
Total assets AEMEEE 2,617,586 2,377,447 2,448,510 1,835,642 1,572,053
Total liabilities BERTE (1,977,155) (1,737,469) (1,518,128) (763,168) (862,635)
640,431 639,978 930,382 1,072,474 709,418

Equity attributable to 72~ 2 Al #E B A
the owners of the JEL =

Company 640,197 639,740 930,143 1,072,474 709,418

Non-controlling Sl e X
interests 234 238 239 - =
640,431 639,978 930,382 1,072,474 709,418
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